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SOLICITORS

P.C. Woo & Co.
Conyers Dill & Pearman

STOCK CODE
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INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT OF THE
COMPANY

Tel: (852) 3628 2352
Fax: (852) 3628 2335
Email: investor.inquiry@dreameast.com
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| am pleased to present the annual results of DreamEast
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year").

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$19.0
million, representing a decrease of 84% from HK$120.0
million in 2019, which was mainly due to the decrease
in revenue from sales of properties.

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$1,802.1 million (2019:
HK$201.2 million). The loss was primarily attributable to
(i) the loss on fair value change of investment properties
amounted to HK$194.1 million (2019: gain of HK$91.6
million) and (ii) the impairment loss recognized in respect
of property, plant and equipment and properties under
development for sales amounted to HK$114.2 million and
HK$1,376.8 million respectively. The loss on fair value
change and impairment loss recognized was initiated by the
compression of commercial property market sentiments
and the slowdown of mainland China’s economic growth
amid the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. In addition, there
was provision for settlement fee and other relevant cost
incurred in respect of the litigations with certain construction
contractors and lenders of HK$178.8 million.

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group
decreased to HK$9,049.4 million from HK$10,358.6
million as at 31 December 2019. The net assets of the
Group decreased to HK$950.7 million (31 December
2019: HK$2,654.1 million).

Basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year amounted to HK$6.1828 (2019:
HK$0.6999).

In the course of business transformation and rapid
development, the Company shall reserve sufficient
capital for development of existing and new projects,
hence the Board of the Company has resolved not to
propose a final dividend for the Year (2019: Nil).

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my greatest appreciation to the
entire staff of the Group for their hard work and efforts in
the Year. | would also like to extend my gratitude to the
investors, business partners, suppliers, local governments
and shareholders of the Company for their support and
confidence in the Group over the years, in particular their
advice and help offered to the Company in the critical
time of business transformation. | am highly confident
that, with the existing strategic planning, the Group is
well-positioned to overcome challenges and create value
for customers, thereby generating significant shareholder
value. | look forward to sharing with you our rapid
developments in years to come.

Zhou Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 May 2021
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group adhered to the cultural entertainment
industry as the core, closely followed social
opportunities, and continued to promote the
implementation of its strategy, focusing on project
development in the three major metropolitan areas,
including Greater Beijing, Greater Shanghai and Greater
Shenzhen. During the period under review, the principal
activities of the Group included the development and
operation of cultural tourist resorts and theme parks
under the brand of “DreamEast”, property development
and leasing businesses.

The outbreak of the new coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic in 2020 almost disrupted the whole industry,
sector and space, with the cultural tourism industry
hit badly. In addition, the outbreak coincided with the
spring festival holiday, which is the peak season for
cultural tourism, thus causing a huge impact on the
cultural tourism industry chain. The whole industry was
almost “shut down”. Even after the epidemic control
has come to an end, the resumption of cultural tourism
industry was shadowed by the sluggish demand due
to public worries about the epidemic. Cultural tourism
industry suffered a heavy setback from the epidemic,
with industry revenue, profits and growth rate facing a
precipitous decline.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
IR fE =Y e B AT

In 2020, sales in the real estate industry were stagnant.
Group marketing activities, online registration filing
channels in some cities and even issuance of pre-sale
permits were suspended due to the impact of the pre-
epidemic policies. During the post-epidemic period,
capital and investment intentions shrank, and it will take
a long time for overall sales and leasing to resume after
the work resumption. Real estate companies generally
faced tighter financing channels, higher financing costs
and unmet financing conditions, which affected liquidity.
In addition, the inability to proceed with the launch
schedule and the delay in project commencement also
had a significant impact on the operation of enterprises.

Under such a difficult environment, the Group's
operations inevitably suffered a significant impact.
In order to comply with the epidemic prevention and
control measures, the DreamEast Future World, a
tourist resort of the Group, has temporarily suspended
its operation from February 2020 to June 2020 in
accordance with the epidemic prevention requirements
in various regions, resulting in a significant decline
in the Group’s revenue and profit. The DreamEast
Future World resumed operation since July 2020
and the number of tourists have steadily returned to
normal. In addition, the construction in progress has
been suspended and some projects are experiencing
capital shortages. The Group is actively seeking various
solutions to address these issues. However, there was
also a lot of good news in 2020. The DreamEast Xiake
Island Ecological City was sold out on the same day of
commencement of sales for three times in 2020, and
such phenomenal hot sales performance was recorded
in the history of Wuxi property market. The DreamEast
Future World was assessed by the Department of
Science and Technology of Hebei Province as “the
first batch of science demonstration bases in Hebei
Province".
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CULTURAL ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS

Adhering to the promotion of Chinese culture with the
focus on Chinese stories in the form of entertainment,
original designs and craftsmanship, the development
concept featuring “all-IPs” in our projects and the
principle of User First, DreamEast is committed to
delivering new entertainment experience with perfect
online and offline integration by creating a unique
offline entertainment platform. Meanwhile, with the
vision of “Share the Beauty of China with the World
(BERAZE 5 2 3X)", it commits to the development
approach of “Innovation and Globalization” which
integrates Chinese history, humanities, art, aesthetics
and fashion into its works, and creates unique new
entertainment experience for customers with its oriental
craftsmanship.

Hengyang DreamEast Resort

The Hengyang DreamEast Resort is situated in
Hengyang, Hunan Province, China. It is at the south of
Mount Heng, which is surrounded by time-honoured
cultural heritage and magnificent natural landscape,
and is the important origin of Huxiang Culture.
Hengyang DreamEast Resort selects its site in the
urban district of south Hengyang, backed by Yumu
Mountain and Hengshan Technology City in the east.
It is approximately 15 kilometers away from Hengnan
County in a straight line, and is created as a city of
memory related to Huxiang Culture with Huxiang
Culture as the soul and Huxiang landscape as the
skeleton.

The development of the Hengyang DreamEast Resort
comprised of “Four Towns and Five Parks”, including
the cultural town, the science and technology town,
the forest town and the agricultural town as the Four
Towns, and the DreamEast Adventure Park, the Fantasy
Waterpark, the Pets Kingdom, the Agricultural Cultural
Park and the International Sports Park as the Five
Theme Parks. The DreamEast Shooting (Clay) Centre
with a site area of approximately 69,000 square meters
in the Hengyang DreamEast Resort was completed, and
held the clay shooting match of the thirteenth sports
game of Hunan province and the Hunan “DreamEast
Cup"” Youth Shooting Championship (Clay Project)
successfully. The shooting centre will be opened to
tourists for shooting experience in the future as one of
the entertainment activities.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E R W B D AT

Taking advantages of the rich historical cultural and
ecological resources of Hunan Province, and its
superior development location, Hengyang DreamEast
Resort undertakes the historical opportunities for
the development and transformation of the entire
city. With the support of vigorously developing the
cultural and tourism industry by the nation, provinces
and cities, Hengyang DreamEast Resort is expected
to emerge as a tourist destination in Hengyang City
and a national benchmark of industry linkage among
primary, secondary, tertiary industry, and industry-city
integration development, with aims to achieve a new
industrial development model featuring with industry-
city integration, tourism-city integration, and ecological
integration, and thus creating a new center of Hengyang
cultural and tourism industry that is green, ecological
and sustainable development under the background of
the new economic normal to present the world a city
of Huxiang Culture, and become the core driving force
of the “Southern Expansion” of Hengyang, thereby
forming a new pattern characterized by “Mount Heng in
the North and DreamEast in the South”.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R T E B[R AT
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DreamEast Jiashan

The DreamEast Jiashan is positioned itself as a children
dream world for the whole family and located in Jiashan
County, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province in Greater Shanghai,
China. In terms of comprehensive strength, Jiashan
County is one of the top 100 counties in China. Situated
at the intersection of Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang
Province and Shanghai, Jiashan is the core district
of the Yangtze River Delta city cluster and the first
connection between Zhejiang Province and Shanghai.
The DreamEast Jiashan is located in the tourist
resort of Dayun Town, Jiashan with a planned area
of approximately 733,000 square meters and will be
developed in three phases. Phase 1 covers DreamEast
Jiashan Experience Zone, Deer EIf Discovery Park,
Dream Theatre, Dream Space, Hyatt Place Hotel,
etc.; Phase 2 and Phase 3 comprise of a water village
incorporating the millennia-old Wuyue culture with the
functions of cultural experience, homestay tour, themed
business, boutique inn and tourist residence, which is
a children dream world that connects the whole family
with art, aesthetics and innovation.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E R W B D AT

The 101 Experience Centre, which integrates cultural
and artistic display and experience, was opened to
the public. Later, it will serve as a tourist reception
centre and image display window of the DreamEast
Jiashan and even the Sweet Town, and be used to
display various art forms such as painting, photography,
sculpture, Jiangnan folk culture and Jiashan non-
heritage culture, so that the whole family can be
baptized with art and culture in happiness.

Phase 2 of the DreamEast Jiashan was included in
the plans including “Zhejiang Province’s ‘4 + 1’ Major
Project Construction Plan”, “Zhejiang Province's 'Five
100 Billion" Investment Project”, “Major Projects
Intensively Commenced in Zhejiang Province” and
“Major Project Plan of the Service Industry in Zhejiang
Province"”. After the project is completed and put
into operation, it will bring considerable benefits. It
will further increase the development level of the
culture and tourism industry in Jiashan, strengthen the
integration and upgrade of cultural and tourism projects
in the region, accelerate the construction of Jiashan
Chocolate Sweet Town, promote the transformation and
upgrading of service industries in the region, to achieve
a win-win situation for enterprises and local fiscal
revenue.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R T E B[R AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Xiake Island Ecological City

Xiake Island Ecological City is located in Xu Xiake Town,
Jiangyin City in Jiangsu Province within the greater
Shanghai region. With the Yangtze River on its north
and Taihu Lake a little way on its south, Jiangyin has
been an important transportation hub and a key military
site since ancient times. It has a long history and rich
cultural heritage, and was the home of the famous
explorer Xu Xiake, and has been called “the Ancient
County of Yanling” and “a loyal and righteous state”.
Having the most listed companies in the county, it is
also called the “Number One County-level City with the
Most Capital in China”. By leveraging on its nearly 3.33
million square meters of natural wetland resources,
Xiake lIsland Ecological City will turn itself into a
highland to present and promote the Xu Xiake culture,
and a tourist destination for "its original wetland life
forms and an exceptional experience of the Xu Xiake
culture”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E R W B D AT

With a unique shape of “Paradise + Town”, Xiake
Island Ecological City is a cultural town of Xu Xiake
that integrates Xiake Academy, Mufu Clubhouse and
theater space, combining with Xu Xiake Adventure Park
that integrates motor-driven game, specialty catering
and themed Concept Guesthouse representing a
rare cultural travel model in China. It is believes that
by leveraging on the cultural IP of “Xu Xiake", Xiake
Island Ecological City will achieve the integration and
connection of multiple commercial activities to emerge
as a new Chinese cultural and tourism complex for all
ages. In the future, Xiake Island Ecological City will not
only become a destination of learning and recreation
for families in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta, but also will
attract tourists from all over the world to have fun here!

On 22 January 2019, the Group made a successful bid
for the land use rights of three pieces of lands situated
at Xu Xiake Town, Jiangyin City in Jiangsu Province
for commercial use at the total price of RMB474
million (approximately HK$551 million). Meanwhile, the
Group entered into the cooperation agreement with
eXEHERPEER(XRZE)BERZAGF (Jinmao Suwan
Corporate Investment (Tianjin) Company Limited)
("Jinmao Investment”) on 30 January 2019, in relation
to the establishment of a joint venture company for
codevelopment of Xiake Island Ecological City. Jinmao
Investment was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Jinmao Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code: 817.
HK). Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the joint
venture company will be owned as to 51% by the Group
and 49% by Jinmao Investment. The joint venture
company will be accounted for as a jointly controlled
entity of the Group and the Group will recognise its
interest in the joint venture company using the equity
method in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles. The revenue, assets and liabilities of the joint
venture company will hence not be consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Xiake Island Ecological City was launched for the first
time on 20 June 2020, with 600 small high-rise units
all sold out within two hours, breaking the local record
for the first sale of units in 2020. On 8 October, the
project was launched for the second time and all the
367 units launched were sold out within one hour. On
5 December, Xiake Island Ecological City was launched
for the third time, and a total of 391 units were sold on
that day, achieving a single-day turnover of RMB550
million. The phenomenal hot sales performance
achieved by the project of being launched three times
and sold out at each time was recorded in the history of
Wuxi property market.

DreamEast Future World Aerospace Theme Park

DreamEast Future World is the first aerospace theme
park in China and the second in the world, and a
national AAAA-level tourist attraction. Located in
Yanjiao National High-tech Development Zone in
the east of Beijing, the scenic spot enjoys a unique
geographical location. It is only a 30-minute drive from
Tiananmen Square in Beijing, just across the river from
Beijing’s sub-center, and adjacent to transportation
hubs such as Beijing Capital International Airport
and Yanjiao Railway Station. It has been honored
as a social classroom resource unit for primary and
secondary school students in Beijing, one of the top
ten cultural industry projects in Hebei Province, the
scientific quality education base for all citizens in Hebei
Province and the municipal best research and learning
scenic spot. In March 2020, in view of the high-quality
aerospace science resources and huge social influence
of DreamkEast Future World, it has been identified
as the first batch of Hebei science popularization
demonstration base by the Department of Science and
Technology of Hebei Province, which greatly meets the
needs of aerospace culture popularization in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region.
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DreamEast Future World covers a total area of 16,000
square metres and contains more than 30 high-tech
experience projects. It is a comprehensive aerospace
science and technology museum that integrates
aerospace technology exhibitions, extracurricular
science popularization education, and high-tech
interactive experiences. The scenic spot adheres to the
mission of “Popularizing Aerospace Knowledge and
Spreading Aerospace Spirit” and has accumulatively
received more than one million primary and middle
school students and members of research and study
groups at home and abroad. Through entertaining
science popularization, it stimulates children’s love for
the aerospace undertaking, plants the seeds of science
for children, and enlightens their aerospace dream. It
is the second classroom for primary and middle school
students to learn and grow and has developed into an
influential aerospace technology research and study
destination in China.
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In 2020, DreamEast Future World scenic spot faced
huge challenges brought about by the new coronavirus
epidemic; however, the excellent operating team of the
scenic spot had overcame the ever-changing market
changes and finally ushered in a full recovery of the
tourism market. In March, the scenic spot responded
to the call of building a powerful country in science and
technology, actively carried out the R&D of aerospace
science popularization courses and established a R&D
team for the “space science popularization exhibitions
and research curriculum development” project,
which integrated aerospace science and technology,
astronomy, history and other resources and made
full usage of our own advantages to highlight the
concept of “science popularization in entertaining” in a
comprehensive manner. It had successively launched
a series of research courses such as the Aerospace
History Exhibition, the Little Ambassador of Aerospace
Popularization, and Scientific Experiments, which were
selected into the Hebei Province Innovation Capability
Enhancement Programme. The scenic spot aimed to
build a model aerospace popularization base project.

On 21 August 2020, during the 20th anniversary of the
National Science and Technology Week, the “Hebei
Province Popularization of Science in Youth Mass
Activity”, hosted by Hebei Department of Science
and Technology, Propaganda Department of Hebei
Provincial Communist, Hebei Education Department
and Hebei Association for Science and Technology
and undertaken by Langfang Science and Technology
Bureau and Yanjiao High-tech Industrial Development
Zone Management Committee, entered Langfang
and officially launched at DreamEast Future World
Aerospace Science Base, which also marked the
kickoff of the 2020 Yanjiao High-tech Zone Science
and Technology Activity Week. The abundant activities
and diversified forms received general attention from
the society and attracted more than 5,000 technology
enthusiasts to visit and study. It has been reported
by more than 200 authoritative media such as Hebei
Satellite TV, China Daily, China News, China Financial
Information Network and Global Finance. On 29
November, the Culture Entering Scenic Spots Activity
was organized by Hebei Provincial Department of
Culture and Tourism and undertaken by children sector
of Hebei Provincial Theatre in the Future World. The
children’s drama “The Fox and the Gun” sold out for
every performance and received widely and highly
praise by tourists.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND LEASING BUSINESS

Beijing Fangshan “COMB+" Project (the “Fangshan
Project”)

The Beijing Fangshan “COMB+" Project is located
between the Southwest 5th and 6th Ring Roads in
Beijing, China and only 2 minutes’ walk from Suzhuang
Station on Fangshan Line of the Beijing Subway. In
July 2014, the Group acquired 3 land parcels for the
North, Central and South Zones of the project at a
total consideration of approximately HK$3.3 billion.
The project occupies a total site area of approximately
147,000 square metres, with a gross floor area of
approximately 434,000 square metres and a planned
gross floor area of approximately 322,000 square
metres.

The project is the first large-scaled integrated
community in the district, which is not only the then
key investment solicitation project on Fangshan District,
but also the key project of constructing knowledge
economy international demonstration zone. However,
in the second half of 2017, the Beijing government
implemented various adjustment measures to cool
down the property market, coupled with adjustments
to the polices of bank loan granting, resulting in the
substantial stagnation of sales of Fangshan "COMB+"
Project with slow development progress and difficult
operation. Up to now, the sold gross floor area of
Fangshan Project is 66,000 square meters, and the
overall remaining salable sold gross floor area is
approximately 259,000 square meters.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 11 March 2021, 21 April 2021 and 28 May 2021
published on the website of the Stock Exchange for the
latest update on the development of Fangshan Project.

;}j}g\ﬂ\bﬂl ! l(!
s i f
E g} d “mﬂ_ﬂ i |

DreamEast Group Limited 2R T E B[R AT

WwERBRREERK
EtRELERBRERE(ELERD

TRERLBRBREBEEMNAFEIEREMA
AAER - ANBRZME - At TiE 5 L&
Huh T2 ERE - HA 2R FE -
ME=-HRLTHARNEBER2014F7ANER
BHIEBTESFE - BHEL LT HEELN14.7
BTk BEEMBHLIBABETFT K B
SlmEmMm B2 28F K -

ZEBABBAERAAGALER 2
FRUBEHAMSIEEE  b2TEA
BEEBRBE NS RMERIER - B1E2017
FTH¥F bR TRTELZERAZEBR
FREEM s FEHMEMSREGMER - M
FRTERBERAE BEFLBRESE
HEHEEAERS HHEFEERL  HBE
ERIHR - HEBA BILBEEEEE
MERCOET T K BRFHKUSEED
2598 FH K o

BREILEREEMNGEHER F2ED
Al 120216 3A118 ~ 2021548218 %2021
FHAAMNMIMWUEMORE -

S
il l :
Egjﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ Wil
Qg@g i i Eﬁgggm‘




PROSPECTS

The integration of culture and tourism is undoubtedly
an important issue in the development of tourism in
recent years. In particular, the official establishment
of the Ministry of Culture and Tourism marked the
beginning of a new era of culture and tourism in China,
and the cultural tourism industry is also recognized as
a new blue ocean for the development of the tourism
industry. The establishment of the Ministry of Culture
and Tourism is a reflection of the government's
emphasis on the culture and tourism market in recent
years, indicating that “Culture + Tourism” will become
an important driving force for domestic economic
development, and will promote cultural tourism
enterprises to increase the intensity of excavation in the
cultural industry, inject more cultural connotation while
creating tourism hardware projects, and create super
tourism IPs to reconstruct the entire tourism industry
system, so as to boost the overall upgrade of the
cultural tourism industry and lead the development of
the tourism economy into a virtuous circle. At the same
time, the “Cultural Tourism +"”, a new type of business,
also brings greater opportunities to the regional tourism
industry.

Adhering to the original designs and craftsmanship,
DreamEast has ploughed deep in the cultural industry
for 17 years. It put forward the "all-IPs” concept and
“new entertainment” principle firstly and has been
adhering to creating unique and excellent works to
“Share the Beauty of China with the World”. DreamEast
has its own understanding and strategy on the
development of theme parks. The strategy has been
changed from “emphasizing the excavation and creation
of cultural theme"” to “focusing on the seven aspects of
the successful operation of theme parks”, and further
changed to “creating theme cultural tourism projects
featuring ‘all-IPs’ with ‘new entertainment’ concept”.
Although the cultural tourism industry keeps moving
forward half speed due to the pandemic, DreamEast
will continue to renew its commitment to the original
aspirations and concentrate on creating excellent
products with craftsmanship and perseverance.
In addition to continuing to strengthen its core
competitiveness, it will actively seek changes to seize
the opportunities arising from crisis and turn the crisis
into opportunities.
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In the long run, DreamEast will develop into a cultural
and entertainment conglomerate, so as to create
stable and sustainable returns for shareholders. With
the progress of project development, the Group's
cultural entertainment business will enter a positive
development stage consisting of leasing, operation,
ticket income and self-developed IPs, and will establish
an ecosystem that centres on the cultural entertainment
industry. In the future, DreamEast will inherit and
innovate Chinese culture with its masterpieces, boost
the profile of Chinese culture and connect the world
with the culture.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a financial
position with net assets value of HK$950.7 million
(31 December 2019: HK$2,654.1 million). Net
current liabilities amounted to HK$2,248.8 million
(31 December 2019: net current assets amounted to
HK$1,150.0 million) with current ratio decreasing from
1.24 times at 31 December 2019 to approximately
0.68 times at 31 December 2020. The Group’s total
current assets as at 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$4,862.5 million (31 December
2019: HK$5,993.4 million), which comprised properties
under development for sale, completed properties
held for sale, inventories, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, amounts due
from related companies, other current assets, bank
balances and cash. The Group's total current liabilities
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$7,111.3 million (31 December 2019: HK$4,843.4
million), which comprised trade and other payables and
accruals, contract liabilities, amounts due to related
companies, lease liabilities, tax payable, bank and other
borrowings — within one year, amount due to a joint
venture and convertible bonds and bonds payables. The
Group's gearing ratio was approximately 8.5 times (31
December 2019: 2.9 times) based on total liabilities of
approximately HK$8,098.8 million (31 December 2019:
HK$7,704.5 million) and total equity of approximately
HK$950.7 million (31 December 2019: HK$2,654.1
million).

DreamEast Group Limited 2R T E B[R AT

EHME BRAIMEL-BEREANHXE
RBEGAERX BRERRERBERTEN
O - BEZRBRMBEMHELE  NEEZ R
LEBRKEAHE EL2RMARRANRE
HREAIPERMERER BEUAXCR
LEFXRROLNERERR - KX - 2R7
#3848 B 55 B0 1F mn & M B FT R B XX
BB EAE  XAXERLER -

MR2020F12A31H AEEMNEEFEA
950.78 & # £ (2019412 A31H : 2,654.18
BATL) RBARBFEAR22488BEE L
(2019412 A318 : & 8 & & /F {8 £1,150.0
BEBIIT) mELL EH2019F12A318 2
1.244% T [ £2020F12 A31H 2 #10.68f5 -
AN B R2020F12A3MB 2 R EERE
#) B4,862.58H B B JL(2019412A318 :
5,993 4B BB L) BREERPEFEMWE -
ERIFEVE GFE BHEKRZE H
thERRE e RBEMKE - EIRE
NAEIFIE HRsEE - BITEBLKRS -
NEBMR2020F12A3MBZ B EERRELY
B7111.38 8B (2019F12A31H : 4,843.4
BEBT) EEESMHEMEMNREBERTE
RRE - ANAEE BE EBEAIEBIAXK
H HEAFE EBHVE - —FHRTEHE
HiEE - EHEECERBRATBRRKES
kEH AEEMEEAGBL XY ASLE
(2019%F12A318:2.91%5) - IR BB BEY
8,098.8@ & & ;L (2019512 A31H :7,704.5
BEEIL) L BRERZL950.78 85 (2019
F12A318: 2,654 1B & B L)t HE -



On 24 December 2015, the Company issued a five-year
term RMB zero coupon convertible bonds due 2020 in
an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500 million to
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company (“SkyOcean CB"). As
at 31 December 2020, the outstanding principal amount
of the SkyOcean CB amounted to RMB450 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$520.6 million). On 28
October 2020, the Company and SkyOcean Investment
entered into the deed of amendment, pursuant to which
it is agreed that, (i) the maturity date of the outstanding
SkyOcean CB shall be extended from 23 December
2020 to 23 December 2025; (ii) the existing conversion
price of HK$6.80 per Share will be adjusted to the
revised conversion price of HK$2.00 per Share; and (iii)
the SkyOcean CB shall bear interest from, and including
the effective date at the rate of 5% per annum of the
outstanding principal amount of the SkyOcean CB,
which is payable semi-annually.

On 12 November 2015 and on 28 June 2016, the
Company entered into subscription agreements with
Chance Talent Management Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited (the “CCBI Bond Holder"”), pursuant to which
the CCBI Bond Holder subscribed for bonds (“CCBI
Bonds") in aggregate of HK$740 million and convertible
bonds (“CCBI CB") of RMB29.5 million (equivalent
to HK$36.0 million), respectively. As at 31 December
2020, the outstanding principle amount of the CCBI
Bonds was HK$524 million, of which HK$100 million
was matured on 31 December 2020 and the remaining
balance will be matured on 30 June 2021. The
outstanding principal amount of the CCBI CB as at 31
December 2020 was RMB19.7 million (equivalent to
HK$24.0 million), which will be matured on 30 June
2021. The Company was in the process of negotiation
with the CCBI Bond Holder on repayment schedule at
the end of the reporting period.
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GOING CONCERN AND MITIGATION
MEASURES

In order to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the next twelve months and improve
the Group's current ratio, the directors of the Company
have been undertaking a number of measures to
improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, and
to remediate certain delayed repayments to financial
institutions, which include:

i The Group has been actively negotiating with
certain financial institutions and identifying
various options for financing the Group’s working
capital, repayments of the overdue borrowings
as well as the commitments in the foreseeable
future;

ii. The Group will seek to accelerate the pre-sales
and sales of its properties under development
and completed properties. Overall, the Group
expects to gradually launch pre-sales of
properties for Hengyang DreamEast Resort
and DreamEast Jiashan projects starting from
the third quarter and fourth quarter of 2021
respectively;

iii. The Group has been actively negotiating with a
number of financial institutions for renewal and
extension of bank borrowings and credit facilities;
and

iv. The Group will continue to take active measures
to control administrative costs through various
channels including human resources optimisation
and management remuneration adjustments and
containment of capital expenditures.

CURRENCY AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

With the majority of the Group's businesses transacted
in RMB and HKS$, the aforesaid currencies are defined
as the functional currency of the Company and some
subsidiaries respectively. Apart from certain bank
balances and cash and bonds denominated in foreign
currencies, the Group is not subject to any significant
risk from fluctuations in exchange rates. No currency
hedging arrangement had been made by the Group
during the reporting period. The Group will closely
monitor and manage its exposure to fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, properties under
development for sale with carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,530.1 million (31 December
2019: HK$4,083.9 million), investment properties
with carrying amount of approximately HK$2,609.7
million (31 December 2019: HK$2,567.9 million),
completed property held for sale with carrying amount
of approximately HK$301.0 million (31 December 2019:
HK$283.8 million), property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of approximately HK$92.5 million (31
December 2019: HK$54.5 million), and right-of-use
assets with carrying amount of approximately HK$33.8
million (31 December 2019: HK$48.4 million) were
pledged to certain banks, a financial institution and a
related party to secure borrowings obtained from the
aforesaid parties.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During the year, the Group held approximately 42%
effective equity interests of SkyOcean Real Estate
(Tangshan) Co., Ltd. and 51% equity interests of
TianMao Cultural Development (Jiangyin) Co., Ltd.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the year, there were no material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries and associates by the
Group except for the disposal of COMB+ Technology
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries on 3 November
2020 through deregistration and £ 3 77 (##85) XL & &
B R A7) (DreamEast (WuXi) Cultural Investment Co.,
Limited*) on 19 March 2020.

MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

At 31 December 2020, the total number of employees
(including both full time and part time) was
approximately 148 (31 December 2019: 338). Total staff
costs amounted to approximately HK$40.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$59.7
million). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages, together with discretionary bonuses to
its staff, based on industry practices, and individual
and Group performances. The Group also offers
training courses and continuous education sessions
as part of the Group’s emphasis on staff training and
development.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group guaranteed
mortgage loans to purchasers of its properties in the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of HK$258.0
million (31 December 2019: HK$270.0 million).
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LEGAL DISPUTES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group is subjected
to several legal claims in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$4,143.9 million, involving (i)
disputes under construction contracts in the amount
of approximately HK$501.5 million in respect of its
various property development projects; (ii) defaults
of repayment of several bank and other borrowings in
the amount of approximately HK$3,590.6 million; and
(iii) other miscellaneous legal claims in the amount of
approximately HK$51.8 million which arose during the
normal course of business. In these legal proceedings,
the Group has received court orders to restrict the
disposition of certain investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use asset, properties
under development for sale and properties held
for sale in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$5,580.9 million and the withdrawal of bank deposits
of approximately HK$13.0 million as at 31 December
2020. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the claims made by the construction contractors are
mainly related to construction works that did not meet
the required standards and pursuant to the terms of
the construction contracts, the Group has the right
not to certify those construction work claimed by the
contractors. In addition, the Group has already made
or is in the process of making counter claims for
compensation from the construction contractors for
causing delay in delivering of the properties to the end
customers of the Group.

The management has sought advice from the
independent legal advisors or internal legal counsel on
these matters. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
provided construction cost liabilities due to litigation
amounting to HK$117.8 million (31 December 2019:
Nil) in relation to the above mentioned construction
contracts under dispute.

For the legal claims other than the disputes under
construction contracts above, provision for litigation on
other claims amounted to HK$61.1 million (31 December
2019: Nil) has been made in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of these claims. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has
reasonable ground to defense those legal claims and
consider that those legal claims would not result in any
material adverse effects on the financial position of the
Group.
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The details of defaults of repayment of several bank and
other borrowings in the amount of HK$3,590.6 millions
are as follows:

1)

On 10 January 2017, t R K FEE R EFR A A
(Beijing SkyOcean Foundation Investments Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Beijing SkyOcean”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
a loan agreement with 18 2R TR D AR A A
it = % 17 (Hengfeng Bank Securities Co., Ltd.
Beijing Branch*) (“Hengfeng Bank"), pursuant
to which Hengfeng Bank granted a term loan in
the amount of RMB2,800.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,327.0 million) to the Beijing
SkyOcean for a term of 5 years for the purpose
of financing the development and construction
cost of a parcel of land in Fangshan District,
Beijing, the PRC (the "Fangshan Land"). The
Fangshan Land was charged to Hengfeng Bank
as one of the securities for the repayment of the
loan. On 28 February 2020, Beijing SkyOcean
was informed that all rights under the loan and
the relevant securities were transferred from
Hengfeng Bank to LR ESRIEEERERHA
[R 2 7] (Shandong Financial Assets Management
Securities Co., Ltd.*) (“Shandong Assets”).

On 31 December 2020, Beijing SkyOcean
was in default of an outstanding principal of
approximately RMB2,510 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,982.3 million) and the
accrued interest of approximately RMB213.7
million (equivalent to approximately HK$254.0
million).

On 13 August 2020, ;t R EZFHARZEE
(Second Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing*)
(the “Beijing Court”) issued an enforcement
judgment, pursuant to which it made an order
that, amongst other things, Shandong Assets
has the right to enforce the security of the loan
by auctioning or selling the Fangshan Land and
enjoy priority to the proceeds of the auction or
the sale (as the case may be) (“Enforcement
Judgement”). K ¥ 12 Ik &£ B B BR 2 & (SkyOcean
Holding Group Co., Ltd.*), being one of the
guarantors of the loan (the “Guarantor”) and a
related company of the Company, applied to the
Beijing Court for an order that the Enforcement
Judgment not to be enforced, which was rejected
by the Beijing Court on 13 November 2020.
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In December 2020, Beijing SkyOcean was
informed by Shandong Assets that (i) it intended
to enforce the security over the Fangshan Land
by putting it on an public auction (the “Auction”)
in satisfaction of the loan (the "Enforcement
Action”); and (ii) an application has been made to
the Beijing Court for a valuation of the Fangshan
Land, which shall be relied upon by Shandong
Assets as the base price of the Auction. Based
on the valuation report dated 2 December 2020
prepared by an independent valuer, the valuation
of the Fangshan Land as at 23 October 2020 was
approximately RMB2,798.7 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,325.3 million) (the
“Valuation").

On 13 January 2021, the Guarantor filed an
application to the Beijing Court to object to the
Valuation (the “Application”), and as informed by
the Beijing Court in early March 2021, the Beijing
Court has appointed it 55 Hh 2 (% (B A0 F1 1 i
HEMBETHEELRE AR E (Beijing Real
Estate Valuer and Land Valuer and Immovable
Asset Registration Agency Association*) to
provide a professional technical assessment (%
¥ R T2 T 1E) (the “Assessment”) on the
merits of the Application.

Subsequent to the release of the result of the
Assessment which stated that the Valuation of
the Fangshan Land as at 23 October 2020 of
RMB2,798.7 million is reasonable, on 20 April
2021, the Company received a notice from the
Beijing Court dated 15 April 2021, pursuant
to which the Beijing Court ordered that the
Fangshan Land shall be put on a public auction
on MEEBEREMREMLE F A (Alibaba Judicial
Auction Network Platform*) (the “Platform”) of
the Beijing Court from 27 May 2021 to 28 May
2021. Based on the information disclosed on the
Platform after the close of the public auction
on 28 May 2021, no bid was received for the
Fangshan Land and the public auction of the
Fangshan Land was unsuccessful.

The Company is in the process of obtaining a new
loan from an independent financial institution for
the repayment of the above loan and is of the
view that the abovementioned incident is unlikely
to have any material adverse impact on the
performance and financial condition of the Group.
The Company will take appropriate measures to
resolve the above situation.
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On 15 May 2018, B ER A XILBERARA
Al (Hunan DreamEast Cultural Development Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Hunan DreamEast”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
a loan agreement with 1t REE TR B B R A A
£ % % 77 (Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd. Changsha
Branch*), (“Bank of Beijing”) pursuant to which
Bank of Beijing granted a term loan in the amount
of RMB320.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK364.8 million) to the Hunan DreamEast for a
term of 5 years for the purpose of financing the
development and construction cost of a parcel
of land in Hengyang, the PRC (the “Hengyang
Land").

Hunan DreamEast was in default of an
outstanding principal of approximately RMB263.1
million (equivalent to approximately HK$312.6
million). Without notice to Hunan DreamEast,
Bank of Beijing filed a civil claim claiming the
amount of RMB263.1 million against Hunan
DreamEast with the MEE R P WH A AR E
Pt (Intermediate People's Court of Changsha,
Hunan Province*) on 17 November 2020. Hunan
DreamEast was in the process of negotiation
with Bank of Beijing on repayment schedule at
the end of the reporting period.

The Company is of the view that the
abovementioned incident is unlikely to have any
material adverse impact on the performance and
financial condition of the Group. The Company
will take appropriate measures to resolve the
above situation.
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ESERERTHRAE-E

DIRECTORS
ZHOU JIN

Ms. Zhou, aged 48, was re-appointed as an executive
director and chief executive officer of the Company
on 5 March 2021. She was an executive director of
the Company from 6 January 2014 to 9 January 2015
and from 2 January 2020 to 12 October 2020. Ms.
Zhou is currently the vice president of SkyOcean
Holdings Group Co., Ltd. She has over 25 years of
working experience in the property development and
commercial retail industries of the People’'s Republic of
China. Ms. Zhou has not held any other directorships in
public companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the
past three years.

YANG LEI

Mr. Yang, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since June 2017. Mr. Yang
also serves as a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. He has more than 20 years of experience in
property development in relation to culture and tourism.
He had been the deputy general manager of Tourist
Administration of Qinhuangdao City, Hebei Province,
PRC. Mr. Yang is currently the chairman of DreamEast
Pictures — US Branch which majority equity interest is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. Mr. Yang holds
a bachelor degree in education from Beijing Normal
University and a master degree in education from
Beijing Sport University.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

CHEN GUANGLEI

Dr. Chen, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 20 December
2019. Dr. Chen received his doctorate degree in
accounting from Central University of Finance and
Economics (AR % 81 4% K £) in June 2008 and conducted
his postdoctoral research in applied economics at the
Research Institute of Fiscal Science affiliated to Ministry
of Finance (Bf X &0 Bt 2 %X FT) (currently known as
Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences) (4 B Bt B R} £
W 7 BT) from June 2012 to September 2014. Dr. Chen
received a certificate of “National Leading Accountant”
(2HE:H%8F AT EZE) issued by Ministry of Finance
in November 2015. He has over 27 years' experience in
accounting, auditing, taxation and financial management.

From 1992 to 2018, Dr. Chen worked in various financial
institutions and now also serves as an INED of BabyTree
Group (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1761) and Hainan Jingliang Holdings Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code 000505,200505), and has been appointed
as an external director of Beijing Enterprises Group
Company Limited (db 7 1 f% & B A& R A 7)) delegated
by Stated-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of Beijing since 2018.
Dr. Chen is currently an off-campus graduate advisor
at Central University of Finance and Economics (FF 3
B 46 K 8) Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences (FF
B BF B L E A 98B ), Capital University of Economics
and Business (& # & & X&), Beijing Technology and
Business University (b R T# K 2), China University
of Mining and Technology, Beijing (FREI#E % K& - 1t
), Shanghai National Accounting Institute (£ /&
R 25 2BT) and Beijing National Accounting Institute
(At RBER2:2F) . He is also an invited member of
the financial committee of Western Returned Scholars
Association (Bl R 2 &) , a deputy secretary of Green
Manufacturing Association of China (FF & 4% 8 &) i Bt
B3), a member of the Professional Steering Committee
of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a managing director of the Chinese Medical Accounting
Association (PRI EE ST 2 g) .
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MENG XIAOSU

Dr. Meng, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since March
2014. Dr. Meng holds a Ph.D. degree in economics
from Peking University and was employed as a visiting
professor at various colleges and universities, including
Peking University, Renmin University of China and
China University of Political Science and Law. Dr.
Meng received a special subsidy in recognition of
his academic achievement in business administration
aspect as “An QOutstanding Expert” by the State Council
of China in 2005.

Dr. Meng is currently a consultant of China National
Real Estate Development Group Corporation (“CRED")
(FR B = Hb = % % B 2 7F), a company established
in the PRC, the chairman of Huili Investment Fund
l\/lanagement Company Limited ([E Wi EE S EEEFR

7~ |]), an investment fund management firm established
in the PRC, and the chairman of the supervisory board of
Shanghai Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (E & AZRB KA
FR 2 &]), an insurance company established in the PRC.
Dr. Meng worked in CRED from 1992 to 2006, where he
has served as general manager, chairman, and etc.

YANG BUTING

Mr. Yang, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since June 2014.
He graduated from Changchun College of Geology (& &
0 E EBT) (now known as College of Earth Science of
Jilin University (M A2 IKE 22 Ft)) in 1969, and
has been engaged in the film industry since 1972. He is
currently a member of the China Film Association and
the National Board of Film Censorship (BIREx EE X
8 ). He is a visiting professor of Beijing Film Academy,
University of International Business and Economics, and
the Communication University of China. Mr. Yang was a
manager of Hebei Film Company CHit&EF QR 7A),
a vice general manager of China Film Company (A El &
% /2a)), a director of China Research Institute of Film
Science and Technology, the deputy head of the Bureau
of Film under the State Administration of Radio, Film and
Television of the PRC, and chairman of China Film Group
Corporation. He has been awarded the State Science and
Technology Awards and Huabiao Awards and is entitled
to government allowance by the State Council of the
PRC. He has extensive experience in film investment,
production, promotion and distribution, establishment of
cinema network and application of digital film technology.
With over 30 years of experience in the film industry, Mr.
Yang has led a number of influential film projects, such
as the development of the national e-ticket administration
system and IMAX movie camera, application and
research of digital film technology, and the establishment
of a national digital film production base (namely, the
State Production Base of China Film Group (Huairou)),
making substantial contribution to film development in
China.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ZHAO DAXIN

Mr. Zhao, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since
December 2014. He graduated from the Chinese Faculty
of Northwest University in 1977. After graduation, he
served as the secretary of Youth League committee and
the deputy Party secretary in the Direct Subordinate
Organization of Shaanxi Provincial Government. In
1989, he became the deputy chief of Yanta District,
Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province. Mr. Zhao then served as
the general manager and chief editor of China Record
Corporation from May 2001 to February 2008, and the
Party secretary and vice chairman of China Record
Corporation from February 2008 to October 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN TAK KWONG

Mr. Chan, aged 51, he has over 20 years of experience
in financial management, financial audit, group
reorganisation, and merger & acquisition. He served
as an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company from January 2014 to May 2018 and
from March 2016 to May 2018, respectively. He also
served as the company secretary of the Company
from January 2014 to January 2016. He has joined
SkyOcean Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (K ¥k £ E A
[R 2 &]) since July 2013 as a financial controller. Prior
to that, Mr. Chan mainly worked in Ernst & Young and
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1994 to 2013. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy from the
City University of Hong Kong and is a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.
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Investor Relations Report
T EEBERRE

The Company attached great importance to
communications with investors, financial institutions,
the media and other stakeholders in order to establish
a more efficient communication channel between
the Company and the capital market. The investor
relations department has maintained effective mutual
communication and close relationships with investors,
financial institutions and media through various channels
such as the publication of annual report and interim
report, press release, and announcement, as well as
the website of the Company. We believe that effective
investor relations will help reduce financial costs and
improve the liquidity of the shares of the Company,
leading to a more solid shareholder base. The Company
therefore undertakes to maintain high transparency and
to release the financial and operation conditions and
the latest news to the market promptly and accurately
in compliance with the principle of "accurate, timely,
and transparent” information disclosure. The Company
strives to make the market have a deep understanding
of the Company and maintain high corporate
transparency in order to create maximum value for
shareholders and other stakeholders.

SHARE PERFORMANCE
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The Company'’s share price per share (HK$) ANRARFEEECGE T) 9.20 1.00

SHARE PERFORMANCE IN 2020 (2 JANUARY 2020 TO
31 DECEMBER 2020)

As at 30 December 2020, the Company had a total
of 285,490,845 Shares and the market price per
Share was HK$1.26. Based on the closing price as at
30 December 2020, the market capitalisation of the
Company amounted to HK$360 million.

The investor relations department will continue to
enhance the quality of communication with investors
and maintain corporate transparency. To ensure easy
access to the Company’s updated information, all of our
published information including announcements, interim
and annual reports and press releases, are posted
on the Company’s website www.dreameast.com
in a timely manner. Interested parties can also
make enquiries by contacting the investor relations
department (email: investor.inquiry@dreameast.com).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the "ESG Report”) summarises the environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) initiatives, plans and
performances of DreamEast Group Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”
or “we"), and demonstrates our commitment to
sustainable development.

The Group is adhering to develop sustainably in
accordance with the ESG management principles, and
is committed to effectively and responsibly handling
the Group's ESG issues as a core part of our business
strategy since we believe this is the key to our
continued success in the future.

THE ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has established an ESG Taskforce (the
“"Taskforce”). The Taskforce comprises of core
members from different departments of the Group and
is responsible for collecting relevant ESG information
for the preparation of the ESG Report. The Taskforce
reports to the board of directors (the “Board”) assists
in identifying and assessing the Group's ESG risks
and evaluates the effectiveness of the Group’'s ESG
and internal control mechanisms. The Taskforce also
examines and assesses our performance on the
environment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and other aspects. The Board
sets the direction of the Group’s ESG strategy and
ensures the effectiveness of ESG risk management and
its internal control mechanism.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report mainly covers the Group’s property
sales segment, head office in Hong Kong and three
tourist resorts in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"), including Dreameast Jiashan, Hengyang
Dreameast Resort, and the aviation themed Dreameast
Future World (the “Reporting Scope”). We will continue
to expand the scope of disclosure in the future when
the Group’s data collection system becomes more
mature and the sustainability work is enhanced.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in
the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX").

Information relating to the Group's corporate
governance practices has been set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on P.84 to P.105 of this annual
report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities,
challenges and measures taken by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the "Reporting
Period").

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback on our
business and ESG issues, and is committed towards
integrating sustainability into different aspects of
operations. To fully understand, respond and address
the core concerns of different stakeholders, we
have maintained close communication with major
stakeholders, including but not limited to shareholders
and investors, customers, suppliers, employees,
government and regulatory bodies, communities,
non-governmental organisations (“NGOs"”) and media.

Through diversified stakeholders’ engagement and
communication channels, we bring the stakeholders’
expectations into our operation and ESG strategies. The
Group's communication channels with stakeholders and
their corresponding expectations are summarised as
follows:
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Stakeholders
HRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Communication channels
BEEE

R HERERRE

Expectations

M

Shareholders and Investors

REERBR

Customers
®F

Suppliers
e

e Annual general meeting and
other shareholders meetings
BRAFAEREMBRE
#

e Financial reports
BF 7% &

e Announcements and circulars
N E R K

e Customer satisfaction survey
EPmEERASE

e (Customer service center
B PR H O

e Customer service manager
BER&E

e Complaint review meetings
KFmgs

e Hotline
BEAR

e Social Media Platform
HREETE

e Emails and website
ESELY &=

e Supplier management
meetings and events
HEIEERED

e Supplier on-site audit and
management system

HEFRS B EEHE

Complying with relevant laws
and regulations
BRMHEBERER
Disclosing latest information
of the corporate in due course
REAMEERHEA
Financial results

IS 4B

Corporate sustainability

CEAREER

Product and service
responsibility
BTERERBRBEE
Customer information
protection
EFEHRE
Compliant operation
GHKE

Fair competition
AFHF

Business ethics and
reputation
BMEBEREGE
Cooperation with mutual
benefits

BEL R
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BRI -HERER/ARE

Stakeholders

Communication channels

Expectations

HHE BREEE e
Employees e Employee opinion survey e Health and safety
BT BIZRRAE ERER S
e Channels for employees’ e Equal opportunities
feedback (forms, suggestion FTEKe

Government and Regulating
Bodies

BRREE#E

Communities, NGOs and Media
B SEBUAT R N 1K B

The Group is committed to working with our
stakeholders to improve the Group’'s ESG performance,
and to continue creating greater value for the wider

society.
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boxes, etc.)
BITREEAMNEE
BERME

e Performance reviews
TEXRBFIZ

e |nternal media platforms

A RETE

(R#

e Regular performance reports
E B fE &R

e \\ritten response to public
consultation
EMOERARE A

e Field inspections

B ER

e  Public and community
activities

e Remuneration and Benefits
BN B 18 A
e (Career development

BEER

e Tax payment in accordance to
laws
LR

e Business ethics
EESCRE

e Complying with relevant laws
and regulations

ETHEBEARER

e QGiving back to society

Ol gEtt &

ANBRRHEED e Environmental protection
e Community investment IRIBRE
programs e Compliant operations
HEREEE aHKE
e ESG Reports
RN HERERA®RE
REBHNREEFOHESEURELRE

B £ IRE - =
BZMHERFESEE ANEE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In assessing the materiality issue, apart from
referencing our own business development strategies
and benchmarking for industry standard practices,
the Group has compiled a questionnaire based on
the results from last year's materiality assessment to
identify major ESG issues. By issuing questionnaires,
the Group’s key stakeholders and management and
staff in major functions are able to assist the Group in
reviewing its operations and identifying the relevant
ESG issues, and assess the importance of relevant
issues to the Group's business and its stakeholders. The
Group has analysed the survey results and presented
them in a materiality matrix. The following matrix is a
summary of the Group’s material ESG issues during the
Reporting Period:

RE -HERERRSE

EEEEFNMA
AEERSEZEEBERREBRITEEDN
I MR EBEASBEAFEZEHETHER
FHAAEEEKNRE WiA&E/Dua%/ﬁ
BWHRBEEAECHE SRENBERE -
AEEBEBEABRIEARSTERENEREE
FEIRHASEE R EEEBERIRE
RIMBRAIRIE - e REREE LT HAEH
EEHASEEBUALERENENEE T -
AEEEHAEERIMEZINAEE R
e NREHE ASEMNEZERE - &
ehERBAEBLNT:

Materiality Matrix

EEMHEMEE
Corporate Social Occupational
g Responsibility Health and Safety
B EHEERE BEEEEZS . .
S Antl-corg.lptlon
% Emission Control Park Safety "\~ < RIEfERE
c b gsa e
2 Aty HEz2 Labour and
é Waste Employment
g Water Mana Management BTSN
» 04 gement o =
ad — *— 3
3 ke Lt Sl g
< W
» & Labour Standards
2 ;Tl; Deve!ﬁzm;annt and T oeg|
2 09 °
2« BRI Supplier Energy Management
‘g % Management LoRETE
G° HERERE
8
s Greenery Customer Service
IS EE&1L B F R
: &
% Noise Control
- =g

Level of Significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts

ET JRFE

A BRI ENREEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that it
has established appropriate and effective management
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and
confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

ReEHE FAEEEIERRE -HEak
EREERVABERERNERBBELE
I%/be Iﬁgwuﬁﬁ—& W@?ﬁﬁiﬁf“?‘i
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RIE-HERER

e

CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions. You are welcome to provide valuable
feedback on the ESG Report or our sustainability
performance by email at investor.inquiry@dreameast.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

EMISSIONS

The Group values the importance of
good environmental management, and
is committed to fulfilling the Group's
commitment on social responsibility.
The Group has formulated related
environmental management systems
and procedures for daily operations
which regulate the emissions and waste
generated during operations in order
to protect the environment and reduce
carbon footprint so as to fulfil its long term
sustainable development targets.

The responsible personnel of the Group's
environmental affairs will supervise
the implementation of environmental
management measures and related
environmental policies. Under strict
supervision and guidance, all departments
will do their best to implement the Group's
environmental protection policies, and
ensure all business processes comply
with legal requirements. The responsible
personnel of environmental affairs at all
levels will continue to review the Group's
policies and implementation procedures,
and report to the management when
appropriate, recommended measures will
also be suggested when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with environmental
related laws and regulations in relation to
exhaust gas and greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions, water and land discharge,
and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste that would have a
significant impact on the Group. Such laws
and regulations include but are not limited
to the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC, Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes of the PRC, and the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

2 3R 1P B 4%

BfECDR M ERHERNES - BTN ARAR
HEEFIER ii*é’*)?eﬁﬁm%f;@ﬁmﬁ%‘?ﬁ%

A & 6 Z investorinquiry@dreameast.com ©

A. RIR

Al BERY
FEBESRUTFMNREER
LXF??ZFE@JE%V’E’N g5
T -AEBREBELEFNET

ARREEHEMBEE B

% HEEZHERMEREY

At BERIBIRE B DIk
ﬂﬁf’ﬁnﬂﬁﬁﬁ ERRERAUE

EERERMBIE

i Fﬂ 4H§ UUE Jﬁf

%%ﬁ%mAMIR %%W
EEREHERKEET
Free T A S B A IRIR KK
ﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁwﬁﬁé&&%
Ko ZMBRREFEEAED

JIEL/\

BEERAEENHRRET
B YEBEERERTEE
B -wnBEFENTSRLESRE
i o

RBEME AEBIWEER

FHHEHAEEEEARATEZH K
EL&%E@ EREBRERE (R
EREDEHRY KK LT H
WESUREEREZEED
EEMEBEERERNERXR
EH-MEZERZEZRBEE
THRACPEARAMEIRR
REE) (REARFLMEK
FRBRE) (REARHKEM
BlEREEMSAEREN L)
% SCEY R B IRH1)RE B COK
5 E R B


mailto:investor.inquiry%40dreameast.com?subject=
mailto:investor.inquiry%40dreameast.com?subject=

A.

Al

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL — continued A. RIE—&

EMISSIONS — continued Al BERY — &

Emissions Control BE R E Hl

Exhaust Gas Emissions ER B

The Group's emissions generated from its AEBETEERBEROERE

operations are mainly derived from petrol BMEERRRBERMEED

and diesel consumed by transportation. In VUM R EEH o ST EABERUR -

response to the above sources, we actively PR R BRER R 1) BE A

take the following emission reduction

measures:

. Maintain vehicles on a monthly . HABEWMETIZAR
basis so to effectively reduce fuel 1& + LAH B i B K R R
consumption, thereby reducing B R e ok 2 Bk BE R
carbon emissions and exhaust air M BE RBERR
emissions;

. Purchase regular petrol for vehicles, . BEEWRBIERTH -
and conduct annual inspections WEFETRE  BR
to ensure vehicles are meeting B 9 3 B FE RS HE BUZ 2
relevant emission standards; and &

. Actively adopt measures to reduce o & 1% 5 B A BE R OHE AR
emissions, and the relevant T BB RS TR
measures will be described in the EEANEZE RS 5K
section “GHG Emissions” under this —EBi R AR o
aspect.

The Group’'s exhaust gas emissions 7N 5 B A R R OBE PR IR BE Al o

performance was as follows: NS

Category of exhaust gas Unit 2020 2019

BEREE By

Nitrogen oxides kg 6.70 85.88

&AL (NOX) NI

Sulphur oxides kg 0.24 0.44

&1t ¥(SOx) NI

Particular matter kg 0.61 8.21

84 (PM) NI
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued A. RE—E&
A1. EMISSIONS — continued Al HERW — &
Emissions Control — continued BERmES — &
GHG Emissions BEREHK
The Group’'s GHG emissions mainly AEBMEERE R BK
derived from direct GHG emissions BRRBERMEBERENTH R
generated from petrol and diesel LM E 2R E R R (E
consumed by the Group's vehicle (Scope —) M HNEE E i KR BE R
1), and energy indirect GHG emissions MERERBYER(EE)-
from purchased electricity (Scope 2). To AZETEREREHK K
best manage GHG emissions, the Group SEEGEIREEREREEE
actively adopts electricity conservation WD BZERBHEM - HEE
and energy saving measures to reduce S RA2EEA8EREE
GHG emissions. Relevant measures will — BN BRE A
be described in the section “Energy BETHRIBERBERNE
Management” under aspect A2. Through HENURS -
the implementation of related measures,
employees’ awareness of GHG emissions
reduction has been raised.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's RBEHR  AEENEER
total GHG emissions has decreased by BEHEMAEL2019F TR T4
approximately 33%. This is due to the 33% - EEBERFMEBRRES
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, RIGRE  BYEHETHHD °
which reduced business activities. The AEBENEEREERRER
Group’s GHG emissions performance was man R
as follows:
Indicator’ Unit 2020 2019
1B By
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 42.73 78.97
ERRERBHER(EE ) B_ftiREE
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 1,879.09 2,798.61
gEREEAEREBHEN(EE D) B_ftiREE
Total GHG emissions tCO,e
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) 1,921.82 2,87758

BEREINLEE(EE— - ) B_StiREE
Total GHG emissions intensity? 3 tCO,e/employee 20.89 13.64
BRERBHENBETE B_ftREE &R

tCO,e/thousand m? 0.61 0.92

WSt EE

F RS
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RE -HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL — continued A. RIE—&
A1. EMISSIONS — continued Al BERD — &
Emissions Control — continued B s — &
GHG Emissions — continued BEREHH —
Notes: et
1. GHG emission data is presented in 1. BERBHEMNEE DR

terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and
are based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “"How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the HKEX, the latest
released emission factors of China's
regional power grid basis, the Global
Warning Potential Values from the IPCC
"Fifth Assessment Report 2014 (ARb)”
and the “2020 Sustainability Report”
published by Hong Kong Electricity
Investment.

2. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had a total of 92 full-time employees
in respect of the Reporting Scope (As
at 31 December 2019: 211 full-time
employees). The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

3. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's
total floor area in respect of the
Reporting Scope was 3,139 thousand
m?2 (As at 31 December 2019: 3,139
thousand m?). The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

Domestic Sewage

The Group’s business activities does not
consume significant volume of water,
therefore the Group did not generate
material portion of sewage during our
daily operation. As the sewage discharged
by the Group will be discharged into the
municipal sewage pipe network to the
regional water purification plant, therefore
the water consumed by the Group is
considered as sewage discharged.
The data on water consumption will
be described in the section “Water
Management” in aspect A2.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

Al

EMISSIONS — continued
Waste Management
Hazardous Wastes

Even though the Group did not generate
hazardous wastes during the Reporting
Period, the Group nevertheless has
established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous
wastes. In case of any generation of
hazardous wastes, the Group must engage
a qualified chemical waste collector
to handle such wastes, and comply
with relevant environmental rules and
regulations.

Non-hazardous Wastes

The Group adheres to the principles of
waste management, upholds its high
standards in waste reduction and is
committed to handling and disposing
all wastes generated by our business
activities through abiding by the principle
of sustainability and the methodology of
“Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace”.
The Group also ensures that all of its
waste management practices comply
with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. In effort to raise employees’
awareness on sustainability, the Group
educates its employees of the importance
of sustainable development and provides
relevant supports in order to hone their
skills and knowledge in sustainability.

The non-hazardous wastes generated by
the Group’s business activities are mainly
paper, general wastes and food wastes.
After collection and sorting, such wastes
will eventually be collected and processed
by general waste service providers.
Recyclables (such as paper) will be
recycled and reused. In creating a green
office environment, the Group’s offices
have also provided suitable facilities, and
encouraged employees to sort waste
at source and recycle, so as to achieve
the goals of waste reduction, reuse and
recycle during operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

Al

EMISSIONS — continued
Waste Management — continued
Non-hazardous Wastes — continued

Besides, the Group is committed to
establishing a paperless operation
environment, we regularly monitor the
consumption of paper, and conduct various
measures to minimise the use of different
resources by employees. In addition to
promoting the use of electronic tickets
in our tourist resorts so as to reduce
paper consumption, we also post “Green
Messages” reminders on office equipment
to remind employees the importance
of environmental protection in order
to increase employees’ environmental
awareness. We have implemented the
following measures so as to encourage
employees in taking the responsibility for
waste management and minimising waste
production:

° Utilise the online system in offices,
conduct general transaction
notification and data transmission
through the network system to
establish an electronic workflow;

° Avoid printing and copying
documents;

° Use double-sided printing and
photocopying;

° Reuse old envelopes and recycle
paper, cartons, envelopes and
folders; and

° Minimise the use of disposable

paper products, such as paper cups
and paper towels.

A.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

Al

EMISSIONS — continued
Waste Management — continued
Non-hazardous Wastes — continued

Since both Dreameast Future World and
Hengyang Dreameast Resort provide
catering and staff meal service, we will
produce a significant amount of food
waste during our course of operation. To
manage food wastes in an appropriate and
effective manner, the Group has developed
related-management measures and
procedures. The Group has appointed a
qualified wastes collector in collecting and
processing the food wastes generated.
A number of designated garbage bins
were placed in different areas in kitchens
for staff to centralise food wastes. The
qualified wastes collector will collect these
garbage bins on a daily basis to ensure
the hygiene of kitchens. In addition, we
have encouraged to reduce food waste at
source by promoting various measures,
such as regularly measure foodwaste,
anticipate customer flow to estimate
amount of food needed and make good
use of ingredients in order to support
environmental protection and wastes
reduction.
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R HERERRE

A. BB —&

EMISSIONS — continued Al BERY — &
Waste Management — continued BEYERE — &
Non-hazardous Wastes — continued BEEEY — &
During the Reporting Period, the Group's RMEE AEBESRE
total non-hazardous wastes generated has EYHRAS2019F TR&T
reduced by approximately 90% compared #90% B - BIHMMEEE
to 2019, with a significant reduction in RNIETFRE - E@2EARFTEBMR
food wastes. This is due to the decrease HWERBMNEE BHFER
in business activities and the demand HEZHREHRL - AEEMHE
for catering activities resulting from EREEMHERKRBELSMET
the outbreak of COVID-19. The Group’s
performance of non-hazardous wastes was
as follows:
Category of waste Unit 2020 2019
BEEYE R By
Paper tonnes 0.39 1.21
i oR g
General wastes tonnes 272.00 430.00
A E B3R i
Food wastes tonnes 18.65 2,518.00
[ £ A
Non-hazardous wastes tonnes 291.04 2,949.21
BEEBEVHREE A
Non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee 3.16 13.98
BEBEVHREE W/ E&

tonnes/thousand m? 0.09 0.94

W F K
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RIE -HEREBRS

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group actively promotes the effective
use of resources, monitors the potential
impacts that our business operations
brought to the environment, and instil the
awareness of resource conservation and
environmental protection into the work
and life of each employee. We promote
green office and operating environmentally
through the four basic principles of waste
reduction “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle
and Replace” so as to minimise the
environmental impact by the operation
of the Group. As stated in aspect AT,
the Group has formulated relevant
environmental management policies and
procedures to manage the use of water,
electricity, diesel and petrol. We also focus
on the management of the major energy
consuming equipment, standardise the
operational flow and process to consume
energy fully and effectively.

Energy Management

During the daily operations, the Group's
major energy consumption is electricity
consumed in offices and tourism resorts,
and petrol and diesel consumed by
vehicles. The Group has formulated
rules and regulations to achieve the
goals of electricity saving and efficient
consumption, the relevant measures are as
follows:

° Install LED lamp systems in offices
and tourism resorts;

o Select energy-saving equipment
and electronic appliances in offices
and tourism resorts, and gradually
replace energy-inefficient electrical
appliances with new certified
energy-saving facilities;

o Strengthen the maintenance and
repair of equipment, maintain
the electronic equipment at
optimal state so to use electricity
effectively; and
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIZE-HERERWRSE

o Switch off lights, air conditioners,
computers and other office
equipment in office areas when not
in use so to avoid wastage.

Besides, the Group periodically conducts
sustainability education and training
and promotes practical suggestions
on environmentally-friendly lifestyles,
while posting power-saving slogans to
heighten the energy-saving awareness of
employees. During the Reporting Period,
the Group's total energy consumption
has decreased by approximately 32%

A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued A. RIE—&
A2. USE OF RESOURCES — continued A2. ERFEH—&
Energy Management — continued HREE — &

. MAENE TR F
BMERARKRBETES
MER BRI
BPIRE

Eh - AEBERNFEHETH
BEHEBEIRELEBEBHRR
EEFANEREZ  TARA
KM EERERSE REeREEY
AR E R - RREERE
AEBEMERBEAERLE L2019
FERBETHNG  E2HRH
AERESRBENEE B
FEETHRD  AEEHBEIR

compared to 2019, which is mainly due to HAERIRG M AT
the disruption of business activities from
the outbreak of COVID-19. The Group’s
performance of energy consumption was
as follows:
Types of energy Unit 2020 2019
BERES B
Total energy consumption MWh 2,239.33 3,271.72
RREHRES KL s
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/employees 24.34 15.51
ERERERE KRE/EE

MWh/thousand m? 0.71 1.04

KEE,/FFEHK
Direct energy consumption
HERRHERE
Petrol MWh 155.67 23750
b JK L B
Diesel MWh - 53.52
L K B
Natural gas MWh 0.04 -
AARA K E B
Indirect energy consumption
BiERRE R
Purchased electricity MWh 2,083.62 2,980.70
SNEE N JK B B§
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

A2.

USE OF RESOURCES — continued
Water Management

The Group’s water use is mainly domestic
water in office areas and tourist resorts.
The water supply managed by the Group
includes toilet water and water for
washing and cleaning. We encourage all
employees and customers to develop
the habit of saving water consciously,
and has developed the following water
conservation measures:

Inspect the condition of water
supply facilities, if leakage is
found or failure of various control
devices, measures should be taken
in a timely manner or report to the
supervisor in order to formulate a
plan in time to prevent long-terms
loss of domestic water;

Use water supply facilities with
good water-saving capacity
whenever possible;

Establish the concept of water
conservation, turn off faucet when
people are absent to prevent water
leakage;

Inspect water supply channels
regularly to prevent the wastage of
water resources; and

Strengthen water-saving promotion
efforts by posting water saving
slogans to guide employees on
appropriate use of water resources.
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

A2.

USE OF RESOURCES — continued
Water Management — continued

Due to the geographical location of the
Group's offices and tourism resorts,
the Group does not encounter any
issues in water sourcing. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s total water
consumption decreased by approximately

RE -HERERRE

RE—#&

A2.

EREH—&
AKER — &
ERAEBRLAERREER
ERMIBMNE  ANEELRA
T SREE KR ERMRE -
PR EEIRE AL B M AR K
R E H2019F T & 7 #450% -
HEMNFTZALHAFTEE

50% compared to 2019, which is mainly MASEENESE  SWEE
due to the decrease in business activities EBR D o AR K E KRS
resulted from the COVID-19 pandemic. R
The Group’'s performance of water
consumption was as follows:
2020 2019

Water 3,740.00 7543.00
FEKE 3K
Water intensity m3/employee 40.65 35.75
BKEE NAKX/RE

m3/thousand m? 1.19 2.40

MK FERK

Use of Packing Materials MR FE A

As the Group has outsourced the product
production process to third-party factories,
such that its daily operations does not
consume significant amount of packaging
materials. During the Reporting Period, the
Group’s has consumed approximately 25
kg of packing materials, with approximately
15 kg being paper boxes and approximately
10 kg being plastic bags due to the
relocation of Hong Kong office.

HRAEEEREREENH
FE=ZFIH EHEZEBRB
%ﬂ’:EF'I;F@{fﬁHﬁE@ EM B o
AMERE AEERKRES
%iﬂ?liﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?@%ﬂﬁﬂ@
BEME - HaRl AHI5AT
MAENRDIORTRE -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

A3.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group focuses on the impact of the
Group's business on the environment and
natural resources, and pursues the best
practices for environmental protection. In
addition to complying with environmental
regulations and international standards
to protect the natural environment,
the Group also integrates the concept
of environmental and natural resource
protection into the internal management
and operation activities so as to achieve
the goal of sustainable development.

Noise Control

The Group realises that noise will be
created during its operations, with the
major source of noise coming from
facilities and vehicles in the tourism
resorts. Therefore, we closely follow
the latest national and regional laws and
regulations of noise management, and
adopt various measures on noise reduction
so as to comply with related local laws and
regulations and implement environmental
policies. To create a comfortable
environment and lower the impacts of
noise generated, the design of our tourism
resorts and offices have incorporated the
noise reduction function. The Group also
regularly monitors the condition of park
facilities, broadcasting equipment, and
vehicle operations. If there is any noise
pollution identified or complaints received
from tourists, responsible personnel will
be penalised in accordance to the Group's
administrative regulations.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL — continued

A3.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES — continued

Greenery

The Group is committed to continuously
enhancing the greenery of tourism
resorts, and aims to provide a clean green
environment and beautiful scenery for our
employees and tourists. The Group will
conduct greenery assessments before the
construction of facilities in the tourism
resorts to reduce the impacts generated to
the natural environment. At the same time,
the Group has formulated related policies
on existing greenery in the tourist resorts,
and regularly provides related notices to
remind employees in complying with the
tourism resorts’ greenery management
measures. Apart from that, the Group
designates personnel to carry out
inspections to the park environment, and
manage and conserve plants and green
belts, immediate actions will be carried out
when problems are identified. The Group
also consistently seeks for opportunities to
develop a greener environment and raise
the employees’ awareness of greenery.
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SOCIAL

B1.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group firmly believes that human
resource is the Group’'s most valuable
asset and its core competitive advantage,
and serves as the basis for sustainable
development of the Group. Therefore,
the Group is committed to refine
its employment policies to attract,
develop and retain employees. At the
same time, the Group adheres to the
people-oriented principle, respects
and protects the legitimate rights and
interests of each employee and regulates
labour employment management to
safeguard employees’ occupational health
and safety. The Group has also further
strengthened democratic management,
safeguards the interests of employees,
and fully respects and values employees’
enthusiasm, initiative and creativity so as
to build a harmonious labour relationship.
The Group has formulated a Recruitment
Management Policy, an Employee
Performance Management Policy, and the
Salary Adjustment Management Policy and
other related human resource management
related regulations to provide a healthy,
energetic and positive working atmosphere
and environment, while guiding employees
to actively integrate personal pursuits into
the long-term development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with employment related
laws and regulations that would have a
significant impact on the Group. Such laws
and regulations include but limited to the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Labour Law of the PRC, and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC.
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SOCIAL — continued
B1. EMPLOYMENT — continued

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a
total of 92 full-time employees in respect
of the Reporting Scope, with the employee

breakdown as follows:

Employee Distribution by Employment Category

RERRBEINETHAY

8%

17%
75%
m Senior Middle Junior
=R R EIE

Employee Distribution by Age
RERARNBINETHAR
8%

V/o

76%

= Below 30 30-50 Above 50
30E AT 308505  50mEMA L

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE -HERERRSE

HE — &
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 E_E_ZEF+-_A=+—
H AEEREGEENEES
ANEBAB2%E BB AEE S H
BHEATE:

Employee Distribution by Gender

REBIBSNETEH
= Male Female
5 z

Employee Distribution by Region
BESISHNE TR
4%
']

96%

® Hong Kong PRC
&8 FE]
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B1.

EMPLOYMENT — continued
Labour and Employment Practices
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group actively implements the
strategy of strengthening talents and
continuously establishes and improves
the talent recruitment system. The
Group has formulated the comprehensive
Recruitment Management Policy, which
lists out the details of recruitment
application, recruitment process,
prohibited items and responsibilities.
The Group plans the human resources
and recruitment plan for the following
year according to the Company’s
overall strategic planning and business
development goals at the end of the
year. The Human Resource Department
will recruit talents through external and
internal channels based on the planned
procedure. External channels include
online recruitment, job fairs, referrals,
campus recruitment, etc.; while internal
channels include internal competition,
internal referrals, etc. The Human
Resource Department will first interview
the shortlisted candidates, candidates
will be arranged to conduct interviews
with department managers or responsible
personnel. Qualified candidates can
only be employed upon the approval
from relevant personnel and the general
manager.

The Group has clearly documented the
rationales and procedures of employees’
promotion, transfer and demotion in the
Salary Adjustment Management Policy,
and regulated the adjustment management
of employees’ salary and position.
The Group has implemented a fair and
open performance assessment system
and supervision mechanism to assess
employees’ performance at each level
quarterly in accordance to the Employee
Performance Management Policy,
evaluation results of work performance
and technical ability levels in providing
promotions and development opportunities
for employees so as to discover their work
potential.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

?j: é I llg
Bl. ERE—&
T MR 18 B

HE - EIREE
AEEBEGRE AT RDEE
THZEIMTEAT BEERK
HE AEEEHETENCGE
SEEGE)  FHASIARER
FoHREBRERF - ZIUEEEMB
B AKREREEFFRREXR
NABEEEAIEERER
BRHET—FENANER
HRE - ANEBERBERRRE
BB AR REE TR
SNHREBBEBEBEHEE BB
T HENR REREZ:
AEREMNEBFEABHE R
MEBEF - ANEBERBLEH Y
TEEAEMNEEELETES
EREN G KL P EA PR E
HEAREANETEA BAAR
BREMBEEARBKELE
‘ISR -

il

AEBEMFBRADEERSE)
TEAMINABTE - HEM
fERREEMKERAR TR
BETHFMEBUNEZSHER -
AEEERERET—EQFER
P RBFZHEME S
BEERB(EIENEREHE)
AZERABTIRE YRR
BT THERAREBRMAKE
MAZRER REIRHEE
REROKE  NEREETIHE

N N
/8 BE °



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B. SOCIAL — continued

B1.

EMPLOYMENT — continued

Labour and Employment Practices —
continued

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal
— continued

Besides, the Group does not tolerate
the dismissal of employees under any
unreasonable basis. We have established
a comprehensive Dismissal Policy to
regulate the management of employees’
dismissal and handover in order to ensure
such processes are conducted smoothly
with minimal impact towards overall
productivity. The dismissal process will
only be carried out on a reasonable basis,
and issues will be fully communicated
before formal dismissal to avoid any
conflicts. In addition, when employees
resign voluntarily, the direct supervisor,
department manager and the Human
Resource Department will conduct a
resignation interview with the employee to
understand the reason of resignation, the
opinions and improvement suggestions
for the Group and related departments,
and record the interview in the Employee
Dismissal Application Form.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a set of
fair, just, reasonable and competitive
remuneration system, where the Salary
Promotion Management System clearly
stipulates and regulates employee
remuneration, calculates salary for
employees and pays remuneration on
time to ensure employees get what they
deserve. The Group has also referred to
the Employee Performance Management
System to issue salary and provide
opportunities for salary adjustments based
on the results of performance appraisal.

In order to retain talents and strengthen
the sense of belonging of employees, the
Group has established comprehensive
systems including the Employee Welfare
System and Social Security Provident Fund
System.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B1.

EMPLOYMENT — continued

Labour and Employment Practices —
continued

Remuneration and Benefits —
continued

Apart from basic salary, the Group also
offers employees with comprehensive
benefits, including the provision of free
lunches or lunch allowance of RMB15,
different holidays including breastfeeding
leave, paternity leave and maternity leave,
various cash rewards including festival
cash reward, wedding cash reward, birth
cash reward and birthday cash reward.
The Group also regularly organises festival
celebrations, internal ticket purchases
campaigns, and the provision of priority
tickets for stage performances, etc.
to enhance employees’ morale and
belongingness. Besides, the Group pays
“five social insurance and one housing
fund” for employees in accordance with
the Social Insurance Law of the PRC,
namely, endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund to
ensure employees are covered by social
insurance. The Group also pays Mandatory
Provident Fund for employees in Hong
Kong in accordance to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong.

The Group also protects the legitimate
rights and regulates management of
attendance and rest periods to maintain
work order in accordance to the Contract
Law of the PRC and other national and
local laws and regulations in order to
safeguard employees’ working time and
rights to enjoy different rest periods
and holidays. We have implemented the
paid annual leave system for employees
according to the Attendance and Holiday
Management Policy, and pay for overtime
work that exceeds the legal working hour.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B1.

EMPLOYMENT — continued

Labour and Employment Practices —
continued

Equal opportunity, Diversity and
Anti-discrimination

The Group strictly complies with all
national and local governmental laws and
regulations by adopting a fair, equitable
and open recruitment process, and
developing relevant policies to prevent
discrimination in the recruitment process
to ensure no discrimination regardless of
race, social status, religion, nationality,
disability, age, marital status, gender,
pregnancy, sexual orientation, trade union
membership or political association,
allowing them to enjoy fair treatment
in every aspect including recruitment,
remuneration, training and promotion,
dismissal, retirement or other aspects
in relation to employment such that the
Group could attract professionals with
diverse backgrounds. Should any employee
be intimidated, humiliated, bullied or
harassed (including sexual harassment),
they could report to the employee's
representative, or file complaints directly
to the general manager. The Group will
take serious approach to resolve these
issues upon receiving the said complaints.
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SOCIAL — continued

B2.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group highly values employees’ health
and safety, and is always committed to
providing employees with a healthy, safe
and comfortable working environment.
The Group strives to eliminate potential
workplace health and safety hazards, and
implements safety management in all
aspects to ensure employees’ health and
safety during work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not record any work-related accidents that
resulted in death or serious physical injury,
and no claims or compensation were paid
to our employees due to such events; the
Group had also not lost any working days
due to work injury. The Group was also not
aware of any material non-compliance with
employment related laws and regulations
that would have a significant impact on
the Group. Such laws and regulations
include but not limited to the Occupational
Safety and the Health Ordinance of Hong
Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC and the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases Law of the PRC.

Occupational Health and Safety

In order to maintain a safe and healthy
working environment, the Group
has formulated the Safe Working
Responsibility Policy to regulate the
management of safety responsibility. The
Group strictly regulates the dangerous
sources, and identifies, assesses, controls
and improves the potential health and
safety deficiencies that could possibly
lead to accidents to improve the working
environment.
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SOCIAL — continued

B2.

HEALTH AND SAFETY — continued

Occupational Health and Safety —
continued

Since the Group's business operation is
mainly the operation of tourism resorts,
the guard security is of high importance.
To ensure the safety of employees and
customers, the Group verifies and records
each personnel upon entry and exit of
the premises, and conducts inspection
and catalogs any tools, equipment and
products that are brought in and out
of the premises. The Group will detain
and examine items if they are found to
be suspicious. Besides, the Group will
also arrange employees for physical
examinations, and regularly provides
information relating to health and safety in
order to raise the awareness of occupation
health and safety.

COVID-19 Response Measures

In response to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group strictly
abides by and implements the guidelines
and announcements of the China Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention on
epidemic prevention, reminding employees
of the importance of maintaining personal
hygiene in order to protect employees’
health and minimise operating risks. In
order to protect the health and safety of
employees, and to ensure the smooth
operation of the Group’'s business
operations, the Group also formulated
contingency measures and adopted a
series of office anti-pandemic measures
during the pandemic. These measures
include requiring all personnel to conduct
temperature checks before entering the
offices and tourist resorts, requiring
employees to wear masks, increasing the
frequency of cleaning and disinfection
in the offices and tourist resorts, and
minimising the frequency of physical
meetings and the number of participants
present.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B2.

B3.

HEALTH AND SAFETY — continued

COVID-19 Response Measures —
continued

In order to further avoid the spread of the
virus in the tourism resorts, the Group
has also cooperated with government
guidelines to control the pandemic
carefully, adopts quarantine measures,
implement visitor population control, and
strengthens cleaning and disinfection to
protect the health of staff and visitors in
the tourism resorts.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognises the importance
of the establishment of its internal
management training and development
system. With its diversified training modes
such as induction trainings and on-the-job
trainings, the Group endeavors to satisfy
the different requirement of employees,
improve employees’ technical skills, and
to improve employees’ personal growth
and development so as to aid the Group's
sustainable development.

Development and Training

In order to strengthen training
management, enhance business capability
and understanding of corporate culture,
improve talent performance, and
strengthen core competitive advantage,
the Group has formulated the Training
Management Policy, and provides diverse
training courses for employees.

The Group's training courses are
categorised into new employee induction
training, corporate culture training and
business skill set training. Induction
training are organised and carried out by
the Human Resource Department and the
Administration Department, its content
includes the introduction of the Group's
systems and business functions, etc, with
the purpose of aiding new employees to
adapt to the new working environment
quickly and integrate into the corporate
culture so as to smoothly delve into the
working mode.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B. SOCIAL — continued

B3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING —
continued

Development and Training — continued

The Human Resource Department and
the Administration Department are also
responsible to organise and carry out
the corporate culture trainings, to assist
employees in understanding the Group's
core vision, business mission, working
style and social responsibility to enhance
the sense of belonging and responsibility.
For business skill set training, they are
organised and implemented by each
department, where the training content
could include position workflow and skills
improvement, which aims to improve the
working ability of specific positions.

The Group will draft the training plan
for the following year according to
business requirement at the end of each
year. The Group will also evaluate the
effectiveness of training courses based
on training requirements and trainings’
target audience. Evaluation results will
be considered as part of the employee
performance assessment results. The
Group will constantly improve the quality
of trainings through the employees’
evaluation on trainers, effectives and
structure.

Employees Trained by Gender
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING —
continued

Development and Training — continued

During the Reporting Period, the Group
has provided a total of approximately 1,813
hours of training, with the average training
hour being approximately 19.71 hours
per employee. The breakdown of the
average training hours completed by each
employee by gender and employment
category are as follows:
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SOCIAL — continued

B4.

LABOUR STANDARDS

Prevention against Child Labour and
Forced Labour

The Group prohibits the employment
of any child and forced labour by its
operations, and clearly stipulates that
only employees over the age of 16 will
be recruited. Prior to the employment
of employees, the Group will review
their identity documents to prevent the
employment of child labour. In addition,
the labour contracts of every employees
clearly specify the work time, place,
tasks, and their main responsibilities to
ensure that employees are not required to
execute work that is not within their terms
of reference. If employees need to work
overtime, overtime work is consensual
and compensated by overtime pay or
time-off in lieu according to relevant laws
and regulations to prevent forced overtime
working. The Group also prohibits any
punishments, management methods and
behaviors involving verbal abuse, physical
punishment, physical abuse, oppression,
sexual harassment (including inappropriate
languages, postures and physical contact),
etc. against employees for any reason.

During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with child and forced
labour-related laws and regulations that
would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include
but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law
of the PRC, and the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the
PRC.

RE -HERERRE

?:tﬁ I ng
B4. HT AR
BFLELETRBHET

AEBR THEKERBEIHENE
T RoasIS T WAHAEHRTER
R6mIA EWMET - £ ET
AR AEEBEEZETHN
FMEREE ABIEEEET -
o BN EIMNEH AR L
ﬂ%”ﬂ%ﬁlﬁ%ﬁ 2 -
NAMETERE REEIR
WEHRITTEEBREHEENRN
RTIE - MEIFZEETE:
M TEELHE — 3 ik
FE B A O R AR DA hn BT & =k 4 R
YERE - LABFLE R &I N 3T o 7R
EENRZ AT AERHET

ETEE BT FH B
Ba EBRBEBTRER
FEORAEMERNEBE) FE
FEw  BETEMITR -

RBERHE AEEALEER
TAHAKREEEAFEAR
ERRAMEIRARGNS TN
HEEREERNEKREER
HEAZRMZRBEEIRR
BECEBED) (PEARHK
MBS B R R(PEAR KM
HETERAEIRE)E -

Annual Report 2020 £,

65



66

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HEREBRS

SOCIAL — continued

B5.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group expects to have long-term
cooperation relationship with suppliers
so as to develop sustainably together and
take initiatives of innovation. The Group
has always been conducting procurement
with the principles of openness, fairness
and equitability. The Group has established
rigorous and standardised procurement
system and a systematic supplier selection
process, while imposed with the relevant
environmental and social risk control
requirements on suppliers. During the
Reporting Period, we have cooperated
with 65 suppliers, for which 25 suppliers
are from the PRC, while 40 suppliers are
from Hong Kong.

Supplier Management

To strengthen procurement management,
the Group has formulated the Procurement
Management Procedure that specifies
the procurement procedures and
responsibilities relating to engineering
construction, material, equipment,
engineering consulting, etc. A special
working group will be set up for each
bidding activity, who are responsible for
selecting suppliers from the qualified
supplier database or evaluating suppliers
who are not within the qualified supplier
database.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

?iﬁ I llg
B5. @E@EER

AEEHERHERERAGE
HKAKEZR BTFRLUAH
ME—%  NEB—HURHF -
RF-RE -BFEEERINE
THERE ASEEZYTE
BMABORBRA R RGN
MERRBRERE  LHHERE
MR TESREREEER
MER - RREHMB - LMK
Heb R EEHAF - EH25%
RTBEHER 402 R/FEH

HEHER

RNBRERBEE  AKH
HETCRERBEZERZE)
BRERYETIRET MK RE -
TREZARSFENRE AR
THREBREMER - 8BBAABRE
AERK S —EEETEE
THEEEBEREBES IR
HEBmAHHEREENOHE
BETRE -
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SOCIAL — continued

B5.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT —
continued

Supplier Management — continued

The Group has also developed a Minor
Procurement Management Policy. Minor
procurement includes procurement
of special engineering projects with a
single procurement amount of less than
RMB200,000, administrative procurement
and other minor procurement work.
Suppliers for minor procurement in relation
to engineering projects are required to
be selected from suppliers in the Group's
suppliers list, supplier database, or
purchased from the specified supplier
website, while administration procurement
and other minor procurement will have
to be procured on the HuiCai platform.
The Group will regularly update its major
supplier list and evaluate suppliers’
performance in fulfilling their agreements,
with the results being used as the basis
for selecting suppliers and enhancing the
management of suppliers.

Apart from environmental factors, the
Group has also adopted measures
to monitor supplier's or contractor’s
compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, and evaluate whether they
have met the other standards in relation to
health and safety, forced labour and child
labour by conducting site visits and on-site
inspections so as to ensure that the
suppliers can meet the above-mentioned
standards, and use this as a consideration
for evaluating suppliers.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B5.

B6.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT —
continued

Open and Fair Procurement

The Group also considers anti-corruption
as a vital issue throughout the
procurement process. The Group conducts
procurement in an open, fair and equitable
manner without any discrimination or
special treatment against any suppliers.
Employees and related personnel with
interest in the suppliers are prohibited
to participate in relevant procurement
activities. The Group stresses heavily on
the integrity of its suppliers, and will only
select suppliers who have a good track
record in the past and have no serious
violations of business ethics. The Group
has zero tolerance for acts of bribery and
corruption, and strictly prohibits suppliers
from acquiring procurement contract or
partnerships through any forms of benefit
transmission or gift.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Customers’ satisfaction is the Group's
foundation to sustainable development.
The Group believes customers’ satisfaction
reflects the Group’s success, thereby
the Group constantly emphasises the
customer centric business philosophy at
all levels of the Group’'s operation. The
Group strives to continuously optimise
and improve the service quality based on
customers’ requirements, so that it could
response to the ever-changing competitive
environment in the industry.

During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any laws and
regulations in relation to the quality of
products and service provided that would
have a significant impact to the Group.
Such laws and regulations include but
not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests of the
PRC, and the Advertising Law of the PRC.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — continued
Customer Services

The Group highly values the importance
of customer services, and believes that
customers’ satisfaction is one of the key
factors for the sustainable development
of the Group’s business. The Group
has established different complaint and
feedback channels, such as customer
opinion cards, hotlines, social media
platforms, email and website in collecting
customers’ opinions and suggestions.
The Group has also set up a complaints
related function for handling complaints,
for which it is responsible to explain the
complaint procedures to complainants,
conduct detailed analysis of root causes,
carry out in-depth fact investigations,
actively monitor and manage complaint
procedures, coordinate and communicate
with all parties involved, accurately record
all relevant results in a confidential manner,
and properly reply to complainants.

The Group requires each complaint
to be dealt and reported properly by
relevant department, and prohibits
employees to reach private settlement
with complainants in order to ensure
that the Group can accurately receive
feedbacks from customers or tourists,
for which they serve as an important
basis for improving the quality of
business operations. The Group considers
customer complaint management as an
important element to continuous quality
improvement. The Group is committed
to understanding the facts and root
causes of each customers’ or tourists’
complaints, identifying responsible parties
and areas for improvement, and making
recommendations to ensure corresponding
department has made necessary
improvements in order to enhance the
quality of the Group’'s services. This
ensures customers’ or tourists’ loyalty
to the Group’s services and enable us
to retain a customer base for fostering
the Group's future development. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has not
received any major customer complaints.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — continued
Tourism Resort Safety

Tourism resort safety is the essence to
all development. The Group highly values
the operational safety of tourism resorts,
and we have safeguarded tourists’ safety
through the implementation of a series of
operational safety management systems,
standardising management, regulating
investigations on potential threats, and
proceduralised emergency responses
proceedings.

The Group regularly provides employees
with information relating to operational
safety management, reminding employees
to follow the operational safety
management measures. Such measures
include strengthening the cooling and
pest control management measures,
and establishing eye-catching safety tips
and warning signs. Besides, to ensure
the personal safety of tourists within
the tourism resorts, the Group conducts
emergency drills regularly, and identifies
the hidden issues in the emergency plans,
while continuously refines the feasibility
and practicability of such emergency
plans. To effectively respond to emergency
situations such as extreme weather
events, sudden injury events, and fires,
we will also carry out various kinds of
emergency drills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL — continued

B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — continued
Tourism Resort Safety — continued

Protection of Intellectual Property
Rights

The Group values trademark management,
and has formulated the Trademark
Management Policy in accordance to
the Trademark Law of the PRC, the
Regulations on the Implementation
of Trademarks of the PRC, and other
related laws and regulations in protecting
trademark ownership rights and
rights to use. We have clearly divided
the responsibilities for trademark
management, and specifically set up
the brand center to ensure the design,
registration, use, change and archive
management of trademark. Besides, the
Group requires all business groups and
subsidiary companies to jointly safeguard
the legitimate rights and interests of
trademark, and also requires employees to
keep trademark related issues confidential,
and timely report behaviors of trademark
infringements.

Protection of Privacy

The Group attaches great importance
to protecting the rights and privacy
of customers and is committed to
safeguarding and protecting their personal
data, and has implemented high security
and confidential standards to protect
personal data privacy to ensure strict
compliance with the regulatory provisions
on data privacy.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — continued
Tourism Resort Safety — continued
Protection of Privacy — continued

The Group has established the Personnel
File Management Policy to safeguard
the integrity and confidentiality of
personal information. The Group requires
relevant personnel to keep confidential
on information that involves the Group’s
or departments’ confidential matters,
and must not disclose such information
to third parties. The Group also requires
former employees to handover information
and documents such as customer’s
information, projects, contents and
progress of various tasks, and pending
tasks to responsible department. In
addition, the Group will not disclose
personal data to anyone for promotional
purposes.

Advertisements and Labelling

The Group emphasises the importance of
appropriate advertising and compliance
with requirements relating to media
advertisements. The Group advertises its
resorts on online platforms, where labels
are attached to all products and souvenirs.
To avoid risk related to advertising and
labeling, the Group has formulated relevant
policies and procedures to ensure that the
information on advertisements and labels
do not contain false product information,
misleading or incomplete information,
false marks and false statements, and are
in compliance with laws and regulations
related to advertising and labelling, in
order to protect the interest of consumers
from being deteriorated by advertisement
and label descriptions.
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SOCIAL — continued

B7.

ANTI-CORRUPTION
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to building a clean
and healthy corporate system, vigorously
combating corruption and other improper
business practices. The Group strictly
implements laws and regulations such as
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of the PRC,
the Company Law of the PRC, and the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC,
and specifically stipulates that employees
must discharge their duties with loyalty
and integrity, and shall not abuse their
positions to seek any improper interests.
In order to build an ethical, open and
transparent corporate culture, the Group
has formulated a series of anti-fraud and
anti-bribery policies, to actively maintain
good corporate governance and risk
management, and safeguard the interests
of its stakeholders.

The Group has adopted a clear avoidance
system, prohibiting direct subordinate
relationship among employees who
have spouse relationship, immediate
family relationship and other close family
relationships. Besides, the Group clearly
stipulates that employees should be
honest and loyal to their duties, and shall
not abuse their official powers to seek
any improper benefits. The Group requires
employees, in particular the management
to discharge their duties with loyalty and
integrity, and prohibits from tolerating
any behavior in relation to malpractices,
corruption, bribery, opportunism, and
concealment, stringent penalised
measures will be taken immediately once
such acts are violated.
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B. SOCIAL — continued

B7.

B8.

ANTI-CORRUPTION — continued
Anti-corruption — continued

During the Reporting Period, there were
no concluded legal cases regarding any
forms of fraud raised by the Group or its
employees. The Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Such laws
and regulations include but not limited to
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of the PRC,
and the Company Law of the PRC.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Corporate Social Responsibility

In pursuit of business development, the
Group spares no effort in contributing
to the community to demonstrate its
corporate citizenship. Therefore, we are
committed to contributing to the society
through continuous participation in
community services in order to fulfill the
Group’s corporate social responsibility. The
Group hopes to foster employees’ sense
of social responsibility, thus encouraging
them to participate in charitable activities
during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community.

During the Reporting Period, we have
implemented a ticket-free policy for
medical staff, police personnel and media
reporters across the country in DreamEast
Future World Aerospace Theme Park and
Hengyang DreamEast Resort in order
to thank their dedication to fight against
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group believes that by personally
participating in the activities of giving
back to the society, the civic awareness of
employees can be improved and correct
values can be established. The Group will
continuously contribute to the community
and seek opportunities to further support
it so as to facilitate social harmony.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

RE -HERERRE

ERBEXZMERATESCHEE
SRR REIFR

EH —BEER Description Section/Declaration
BRENES i ut 8B

Aspect Al: Emissions

BEA: BE

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

— R E (a) the policies; and BER

KPI A1.1
B 8248 R 12 A

KPI A1.2
B8 42 48 AR 1E A2

KPI A1.3
BB AR B IR AL
KPI A1.4
BB R M IR AL
KPI A1.5

Bl B MIEIRA1LD

KPI A1.6
BB A M IEIRALG

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ERERNMEBEER

BHM - mKR s -

FENBERRERMNELSTH:

a) &K &

b) ETHETABEARE

SRR

The types of emissions and respective emissions

data.

BEmR ) TE SR R AE R BE R BUIR -

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity.

) REE -

BERBATRE CAMEGTE

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and

intensity.

MELBEEREMEE AMGTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

and intensity.

MELAEREEEVREAMAEIREE -

Description of reduction initiatives and results

achieved.

AR ESRRENERRAFER -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and

results achieved.

AR EREREZTEEYMNT L

ENEBERMEKRR -

B 48 B8 0E 2 B AR B

Emissions — Emissions

Control
BER Y — BERUE® - BE
Z2YER

Emissions — Emissions
Control

BEW) — BE R

Emissions — Waste
Management

(Not applicable —
Explained)

TEBA—CmE

L) MEE o

Emissions — Waste

Management
V) — RBEEME IR

Emissions — Emissions
Control, Waste
Management

PER YD — HERIE® - BE
EMRE

Emissions — Waste
Management

P —BEEMER
CRRE A&
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LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

EH - —REER Description Section/Declaration
BRENEE i =50 1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2: BERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

Use of Resources

— R E including energy, water and other raw materials. & J& &
ERFERER(BIEER KEEMEMR)HIK
% o

KPI A2.1
BB AR R IR 1R A2

KPI A2.2
RIS AR IS 1R A2.2

KPI A2.3
A8 AR IR 1R A2.3

KPI A2.4

B A IR 1R A2.4

KPI A2.5
BA B AR IR A25

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

in total and intensity.
R85

PEVER K S

MIESREE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKERBE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives

and results achieved.

R gE IR E MM st B RFTBR ©

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

et Sk BUE BKIR LRI B EE

A K2 £2 7+ 8

KB amat B RTBAR -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and with reference to per

unit produced.

HRmAAEEMHONEE(AMGTE

BAIHE -
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D RBEE

Use of Resources —
Energy Management

BRER —gRERE

Use of Resources —
Water Management

BRER — AKER

Use of Resources —
Energy Management

BRER —kRERE

Use of Resources —
Water Management
BRER —BAKER

Use of Resources — Use
of Packaging Materials
(Not applicable —
Explained)
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ZFEREKASXZMERATIESGHREIE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG SINB &SIk — &
LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

EH —BEER Description Section/Declaration
BRENEE ot 8 B

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEAI:RERRXKAEZIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant The Environment and
— M E impact on the environment and natural Natural Resources
resources. RERRXAER
ﬂﬁ%"ﬁ}\ﬁi&f“&%%éﬁ P E KX ER
B R
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities The Environment and
B8 8 45 I 12 A3 on the environment and natural resources and Natural Resources —
the actions taken to manage them. Noise Control, Greenery
HMEBIHEUBRERARERNEAZER RERRARER —BE
EXNERBEUTENTY - ) B & AR
Aspect B1: Employment
BBl :EE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
— M E (a) the policies; and EE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
% @H&ﬁﬂ% BEREHA  ITERE - REH -
FTEHe Tl RESUREMESBRE
A E
(a) B2k &
b) BTFTHETABERTZTENMEAEZEZRAEN
H & K o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Employment
("Recommended group and geographical region EE
Disclosure”) ZHR - EEEDS  FERANEMESZSHE
B4R B B EBA BHEE-
(TZZERED
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ZTRBASXFZFERATIESGHREIE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG SINBR &S|k — &
LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BEH —REER Description Section/Declaration
BRENEE i =50 1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
HB2:f2EEL R

General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety
— R E (a) the policies; and fRREZ2

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

FRRHZE2TIEREIREREE2BMEN

EE:
(a) % &
b) BTFHBETAEEARATENEEEZEZREL
B &K o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety
("Recommended ATEBEMILTHABRKELEE - fepiz
Disclosure”)
52 AE IR 1R B2,
(TEHEED
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
("Recommended ATIEEAIEAR- fe oz
Disclosure”)
52 B I8 1EB2.2
(TEHRED
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety
("Recommended measures adopted, and how they are fe iz
Disclosure”) implemented and monitored.
782 B 5 1EB2.3 MR ANBERREALT 2B - A REBER
(TEHEED TRERFTE-
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ZFBEEAXZMEREATIESGHRETE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG SRR &S|k — &
LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BEH - —REER Description Section/Declaration
BRENEE g 8 BH

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EHEB3 : B EMEFI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and Training
— M E skills for discharging duties at work. Description 2% & £ 55 3

of training activities.
EEARAERERITILEBREN MM R EEMEUE -
M IFINEE o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Development and Training
(“"Recommended gender and employee category (e.g. senior R )
Disclosure”) management, middle management).

48 4R 3 B3 ZHpkEERN(NESRERERE - +RAEEE)
(TeZEED EomXINEEESL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Development and Training
("Recommended employee by gender and employee category. R
Disclosure”) ZUERREEEMNE D  BREEBTKRIINTF

4R B 5 1EB3.2 o= g
(TgemEED
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ZTRBASXFZFERATIESGHREIE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG SINBR &S|k — &
LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BEH —REER Description Section/Declaration
BRENEE i =50 1

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETHB4 : 4 TR

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
— R E (a) the policies; and A% T S H

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

ERMLETH®RHSTH:

(a) % &
b) BTFTHBEEITAEEARTENEEEZEZREM
&R -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Labour Standards
("Recommended practices to avoid child and forced labour. % T X8|
Disclosure”) i REEMNNEREARRET REH ST -

752 4B I 1E B4
(TEZEEED

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Labour Standards
(“Recommended practices when discovered. & T AE B
Disclosure”) HREZRRERAFAREREBABELMERIRD

B8R A I EB4.2 T -

(TEHRED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BH  —REER

Description

R HERERRE

ERBEXZMERATESCHEE
SRR RSIR — &

Section/Declaration

BRENERS # 8 B

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[E HB5 : it f& 42 & 18

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain

— M E risks of the supply chain. Management

EREHEERENRERESREREEK - HEEEIR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
("Recommended EHEE S EEEA - Management
Disclosure”) HEEEIE

8 82 45 I8 12 B5.1
(TezEED

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain
("Recommended suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management
Disclosure”) practices are being implemented, and how they f f& §# & 12

B 32 48 W15 15 B5.2
(TZHmWmED

are implemented and monitored.

MM EHERARERNED mERTEBEEN
WEEREE  UREEEBANRTRERR
A o
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RE -HERERRSE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX E%WA"EFEEFE’“TESGﬁ”:?E
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG SR B &SR —
LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

EE N _g&ﬁ%&
BARERIER

Description Section/Declaration
i 101

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BHEB6: ERET

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B6.2
("Recommended
Disclosure”)

8 41t 45 I8 1£B6.2
(lEZHE]

KPI B6.3
(“Recommended
Disclosure”)

M52 A B 15 B6.3
(TEHEED

KPI B6.5
("Recommended
Disclosure”)

78248 NI 12 B6.5
(EZHED

Information on: Product Responsibility
(a) the policies; and EmET
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.
ERMRHERNRENEREZSE ES &

%&M&a%ﬂb&&ﬁﬂlﬁ/ﬂﬁ :

a) B &

b) BFHBETABEAXENHBEERRN

B E K o

Number of products and service-related Product Responsibility
complaints received and how they are dealt EmEE
with.

EEERERERENRFHEREAREHFE -

Description of practices relating to observing and Product Responsibility
protecting intellectual property rights. EmEE
M EERERRENBEREEBANED -

Description of consumer data protection and Product Responsibility
privacy policies, and how they are implemented E @ & 1T
and monitored.

HMEBEERRERLEBBEE - U RAEBRT
RERTE -
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ZFEREKASXZMERATIESGHREIE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG SINB &SIk — &
LIMITED — continued

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

EH —BEER Description Section/Declaration
BRENEE ot 8 B

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
HB7:RE)S

General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
— M E (a) the policies; and k&5

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
ﬁf‘a@ DriEoEig B&E MR AEREN:
a) BUK &
b) BSFHBITABEAXZENHBERRBRD
o & o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-corruption
("Recommended corrupt practices brought against the issueror K &5
Disclosure”) its employees during the reporting period and
B 4248 KI5 12 B7.1 the outcomes of the cases.
(EZEHED RERHAAHETASIAEEEREYEEENE

SRR BARFRER -

Aspect B8: Community Investment
HB8: #tEKE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand Community Investment
— = the needs of the communities where the issuer &% &

operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

B R2ERERLEMTHREZMER
HEXBIZHGZEMEN A BUR o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance within a sensible
framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The
board of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed the
corporate governance practices of the Company with
the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which
are detailed in this report. The Company has applied
the principles of, and complied with, the applicable

code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended
31 December 2020, except for certain deviations as
specified with considered reasons for such deviations
as explained below. The Board will review the current
practices at least annually, and make appropriate
changes if considered necessary.

$e==s blib=-'“?

Corporate Governance Report
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D EERRE

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 6 directors (“Directors”)
in total, with 2 Executive Directors (“EDs"”) and 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs"”). The
composition of the Board during the year and up to the
date of this report is set out as follows:
EDs: Zhou Jin (Chairman)
(Re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Zhou Zheng
(Resigned on 12 October 2020)

Cao Rucang (Chairman)
(Resigned on 5 March 2021)

Zhou Zhitao (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 5 February 2021)

Yang Lei
INEDs: Chen Guanglei
Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting
Zhao Daxin

The Directors have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other,
except those as set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 30 to 33 of this
report.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors
to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

BOARD PROCESS

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their active participation
in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process, taking
into account the interests of all shareholders of the
Company.
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Throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
the Company has had 4 INEDs representing not less
than one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs
have the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
received from each INED an annual confirmation of his
independence and considers that all of the INEDs met
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all the INEDs are independent in
accordance with terms of the guidelines.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results and other ad
hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During the
year, Board meetings were held and the individual
attendance records of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and general meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

REFARBEARABEER/IL  XAAHE
BAZBIUFNATESET HEFEAHTD
R=pZ— 2L —2BIUHATEFTAEE
EHRAUFBINGEAREZBEETXEER
EHAHBAVBEREEXNI -EFSC
BEESBRBYNNTESTABEBYI ML
FERRE ARRMAEBIUFATES
BfEE EmRBIEIIKTE 2 B L1155
RIBABESI 2GR BEBIFATE
EHRBIANTL -

BEEeTHRTER IRAEE2ER
REULREERMBRERR  TEHRIE
AEBZ2FRTPREEUREMTER
BEEEE RNERN BEECLRTEFS
CF MBSEZIREZ=2020F1283181EF
ERINEES  FHEET  TFHRZEG -
REZECGZEHZABRERSHNER HFE
HEERHE ST

Number of meetings attended/held

bR/ BTEEIRE
Independent Annual Special
Remuneration Audit ~ Nomination Board General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
BlEZ BE 5l
Name of Directors Exfy Exe  HMWZEe  ENZEEE  RAzZ8e ZE% RExe RExe
EDs: #rEs:
Zhou Zheng (Resigned on 12 B} (120205108128
October 2020) #ff) 6/10 - - 11 N =
Zhou Jin (Appointed on 2 January € (R2020F1A28%
2020, resigned on 12 October £+ 2020810812
2020 and reappointed on 5 BB R0NES
March 2021) ASHBREZM) 6/10 = S 5 1N =
Cao Rucang (Appointed on 12 B (112020510812
October 2020 and resigned BRI B R202
on 5 March 2021) FIRLHET) 4110 - - 12 - 7N
Zhou Zhitao (Appointed on 12 B8 % (12020510812
October 2020 and resigned BRI B 1202
on 5 February 2021) F)R5RE) 410 - 5 = e N
Yang Lei CH 10/10 - - - N N
INEDs : BUFUNES:
Chen Guanglei REe 10/10 33 202 22 " "n mn
Meng Xiaosu LEER 10/10 33 202 22 " "n mn
Yang Buting Bre 10/10 33 12 202 i 01 n
Zhao Daxin BAK 10/10 33 202 22 " "n "n
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TEERBE

Code provision A.6.7 of CG Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors should attend
general meetings. Due to other business engagement,
Mr. Yang Buting, an independent non-executive director,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 16 June 2020. The Company
Secretary had reminded all Directors to attend general
meetings of the Company in future.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy,
annual operating budget, annual and interim results,
approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the
Nomination Committee), material contracts and
transactions, corporate governance as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive
management. The respective functions of the Board
and management of the Company have been formalised
and set out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time to ensure that they are consistent
with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in
advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors.
At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally
given to all Directors who are given an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent
to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable
for such other Board or Board committee meeting).
Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
all Directors for their comment before being tabled at
the following Board meeting for approval. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any Director.

According to current Board practice, if a substantial
Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws")
also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided
therein, a Director shall abstain from voting on any
board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement
in which such Director or any of his associates has a
material interest.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board
papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the Company's senior
management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices. In addition, a written procedure was
established in June 2005 to enable the Directors,
in discharge of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND
INDEMNITY

The Company has purchased appropriate and sufficient
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors and senior
officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and senior officers.

DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the Company's
operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
and the Company’'s business and governance policies.
The Company also provides Directors with updates
on latest development and changes in the statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements and the Company's business
and governance policies from time to time. The
Directors are also provided with regular updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.
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Participation in Continuous Professional Development Activities

SHEESXRREY
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
seminars/
conferences
relevant to
Directors’ duties
HEREERE
Reading BRMEI,
Regulatory Lk =4
Updates BEHeg
Name of Directors EEnR HEEREH =
EDs: HTES:
Zhou Jin A<
(Re-Appointed on 5 March 2021)  (#A2021F3A5HEHET) v v
Zhou Zheng B B
(Resigned on 12 October 2020) (FA20204%108128 B 1) v/ v
Cao Rucang Bng
(Resigned on 5 March 2021) (FA20214F3A5H B T) v/ v/
Zhou Zhitao JEEpe
(Resigned on 5 February 2021) (FR2021%2 A58 & ) v/ v
Yang Lei & v/ v
INEDs: BYFHITES:
Chen Guanglei PR E &2 v/ v/
Meng Xiaosu & B AR 4 v
Yang Buting BE= v/ v
Zhao Daxin =N i} v v

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of CG Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. There has been a deviation from this code
provision from 27 January 2014 to 2 January 2020
because Mr. Zhou Zheng was appointed as both
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board considers this
arrangement to be appropriate for the Company in
view of Mr. Zhou Zheng's extensive experience in the
property development industry in the PRC and his
in-depth knowledge of the Group's tourist resorts and
property development operation and business. The
Board believes that a balance of power and authority is
adequately ensured by the operation of the Board which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals
including 4 INEDs.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a
written nomination procedure (“Nomination Procedure”)
specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship
of the Company. The Chairman of the Board shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination
Procedure (such as appropriate experience, personal
skills and time commitment, etc.), identify and
recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for
approval of an appointment. The existing Nomination
Procedure has been included in the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee with effect from the
establishment of the Nomination Committee on 20
March 2012.

All INEDs of the Company were appointed for a
specific term of three years, but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but shall be eligible for re-election.

According to the Bye-Laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following AGM and in both cases,
those Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at
the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate
governance duties and has adopted the written terms of
reference on its corporate governance functions in April
2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate
governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

In 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Board
has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees,
including an Audit Committee, a Nomination Committee
and a Remuneration Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes
of all meetings and resolutions of the committees,
which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated
to all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
in the section headed "“The Board” of this report,
have been adopted for committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 20
March 2012 and is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board and comprises a majority of INEDs. During the
year and as at the date of publication of this report, the
Nomination Committee was made up of 5 members,
namely:

Ms. Zhou Jin (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
(Appointed on 2 March 2021)

Mr. Cao Rucang (Resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Zhou Zheng (Resigned on 12 October 2020)

Mr. Chen Guanglei (Appointed on 20 December 2019)

Dr. Meng Xiaosu

Mr. Yang Buting

Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the
Company's policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and select
or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the
Company.
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The Nomination Committee will meet as and when
necessary in accordance with its terms of reference
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation.
In 2020, two Nomination Committee meetings were
held. In 2019 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for Board approval
the proposed resolutions for re-election of the
retiring Directors at 2019 AGM; and

(ii) reviewed and recommended for Board approval
the renewed terms of appointment of INEDs with
reference to the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the independence of each INED.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in
relation to the nomination and appointment of new
Directors, which provides that the selection of Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and specific needs, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and
professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and
adopted when the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board. After assessing the suitability
of the Directors’ skills and experience to the Company’s
business, the Nomination Committee confirmed that
the existing Board was appropriately structured and no
change was required.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been established
since September 1997.

During the year and as at the date of publication of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprised of:

Mr. Chen Guanglei
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu
Mr. Yang Buting
Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to
the Company's policy if considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and packages of the
Directors and, where appropriate, to consult the
Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive
Officer about the Remuneration Committee's
proposals relating to the remuneration of other
EDs;

to review and recommend EDs’ remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives;

to review and recommend the compensation
payable to EDs relating to any loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

to review and recommend compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company are in compliance with the code
provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation
from the code provision that the Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the EDs only and not
senior management (as opposed to EDs and senior
management under the code provision). The reason for
the above deviations are summarised as below:

(i)

(ii)

the Board believes that the Remuneration
Committee is not properly in a position to
evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more
effectively carried out by the EDs;

a majority of Remuneration Committee members
are INEDs who may not be industry skilled and
come from differing professions and backgrounds
and they are not involved in the daily operation
of the Company. They may have little direct
knowledge of industry practice and standard
compensation packages. The Remuneration
Committee is thus not in a position to properly
determine the remuneration of the EDs;
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(iii) the EDs must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be
able to control their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for EDs to pay senior
management more than industry standards and
thus Shareholders will benefit by reducing costs
in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year in accordance with its terms of reference. One
Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2020
and the attendance of each member is set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting,
the Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters
by way of circulation during 2020. In 2020 and up to
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors;

(ii) reviewed the performance of the EDs; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's
approval the service fees of the Directors.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’s fee which
is to be proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at
the AGM each year. Further remuneration payable to
Directors (including any service fees of the INEDs)
for their additional responsibilities and services will
depend on their respective contractual terms under
their employment contracts or service contracts as
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has been established since
September 1997. To retain independence and
objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by an
INED with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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During the year and as at the date of publication of this
report, the Audit Committee was made up of 4 INEDs,
namely:

Mr. Chen Guanglei
(Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu
Mr. Yang Buting
Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the
Company's policies if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee

are:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

to consider and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal,

to consider and discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of each year’s audit;

to act as the key representative body for
overseeing the Company’'s relations with the
external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor's
independence and objectivity;

to review the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements before submission to the
Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising
from the interim review and final audit, and any
matters the external auditor may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditor's management
letters and management'’s response;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

to review the internal audit plan, ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and ensure whether the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group; and
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(x) to consider major investigations findings on risk
management and internal control matters and
management’s response.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
revised from time to time to comply with the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with deviations
from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditors to supply non-audit services;
and

(ii) ensure the management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall
recommend (as opposed to implement) the policy
on the engagement of the external auditor to supply
non-audit services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and
its committees to develop policy and make
appropriate recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism
for implementation of such policy and
recommendations is through the Executive
Director and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to
implement policy and follow up the same on a
day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee
only possesses the effective ability to scrutinise
(as opposed to ensure) whether management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control
system. Where an internal audit function exists, the
Audit Committee is not equipped to ensure that the
same is in place as this would involve day-to-day
supervision and the employment of permanent experts.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a
year in accordance with its terms of reference. Two
Audit Committee meetings were held in 2020 and the
attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board"” of this report.
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In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the
Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2020. In 2020 and up to the date of
this report, the Audit Committee performed the works
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditor;

(ii) reviewed the reports from the external auditor in
relation to the final audit for the year ended 31
December 2019 (“2019 Final Audit”), the interim
results review for the six months ended 30 June
2020 (“2020 Interim Review"”) and the final audit
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“2020
Final Audit”) of the Group;

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s
approval the financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2019, for the six months ended 30
June 2020 and for the year ended 31 December
2020;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system and risk management, including reviewed
the internal control review reports from the
independent internal control reviewer;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board's
approval the report on substantiation of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and
budget; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s
annual review the Related Party Transaction
Policies and Procedures, the Connected
Transaction Policy and the Whistle Blower Policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2020, in compliance
with Rule 3.28 of Listing Rules, the Company’s existing
Company Secretary (the "Company Secretary”) is a
full-time employee of the Company and familiar with
the ordinary affairs of the Company. The Company
Secretary is responsible for giving advice to the Board
on corporate governance matters in order to assist the
Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment
and to suit different commercial needs. Details of the
Company Secretary are set out in the section headed
"Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
Secretary had complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

MODEL CODES FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
("Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as
the Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees to regulate dealings in the securities of
the Company by certain employees of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries who are considered to be
likely in possession of inside information in relation
to the Company or its securities. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant
Employees was noted by the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’'s performance, position and
prospects in the consolidated financial statements
of the annual and interim reports in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.1 of the
CG Code, the management provided such explanation
and information to the Board to enable the Board to
make an informal assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and have made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control
systems in order to safeguard the interest of the
Group and the Shareholders, review and monitor
the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems comprise, among others, the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management procedures, a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines
of responsibility and authority. Each department is
accountable for its daily operations and is required to
implement the business strategies and policies adopted
by the Board from time to time.

The Company has the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. In practice, employees of the Group who
become aware of any events and/or matters which he/
she consider potentially inside information, will report
to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to
the Board for the purpose of considering and deciding
whether or not such information constitutes inside
information and disclosure of which shall be made
immediately.

The internal audit department of the Company
supported the Board and the Audit Committee in
reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems and performed its functions
during the year following an annual audit plan and
submitting their reports of their findings to the
Board and the Audit Committee at the meetings.
The Audit Committee provides independent review
on effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and gives their
recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible
for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management.

The Board conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems and procedures during
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 by way
of discussions with the management of the Group,
members of the Audit Committee and the external
independent auditor.
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The Board believes that the existing risk management
and internal control systems are adequate and effective.
The Board also reviewed the resources, qualification
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function and their training schemes
and budget and was satisfied with their adequacy.

The Board also assessed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal audit function and external audit
process, and satisfied itself, through the work of its
Audit Committee, that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and is effective at providing
assurance to the Board on the relevant risks faced by
the Company, and that the external audit process is
effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely
manner.

The management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company's financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company's
performance, positions and prospects.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external
auditor on the financial statements of the Group are
set out in the "Independent Auditor's Report” in this
report.

GOING CONCERN AND MITIGATION
MEASURES

Details of the going concern and mitigation measures
of the Group are set out in section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 8 to 29 and note 2 to
the financial statements.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group's external auditors was HK$1,467,000.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good
communication with the Shareholders. Information
in relation to the Group is disseminated to the
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate
information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company at www.dreameast.com and
the website of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) at www.hkexnews.hk.

The Company’'s AGM is a valuable forum for the
Board to communicate directly with the Shareholders.
The Chairman actively participates at the AGM and
personally chairs the meeting to answer any question
from the Shareholders. The chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or in their absence, another member
of the respective committees or failing that their
respective duly appointed delegate, are also available
to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman of any
independent board committee formed as necessary or
pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board
committee) will also be available to answer questions
at any general meeting of the Shareholders to approve
a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to independent Shareholders’ approval.

The 2020 AGM was held on 16 June 2020. The
attendance records of the Directors at the general
meeting are set out in the section headed “The Board”
of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general
meetings for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent, in the case
of AGM, at least 20 clear business days before the
AGM and to be sent at least 10 clear business days in
the case of all other general meetings. An explanation
of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is
provided to the Shareholders at the commencement
of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions from
Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll
results are published in the manner prescribed under
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company can request the
convening of a special general meeting according to
Bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws and Section 74(1) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”) by written
requisition, with the stated business proposed to be
transacted, which must be validly served at the head
office and principal place of business of the Company
registered in Hong Kong (“Head Office"). Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at
the Head Office in the form of a proposed resolution,
which shall be clearly and concisely set out the proposal
for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s
business scope.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication
policy. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board
at our Head Office for the attention of the Board in
written form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry
and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for
any questions about their shareholdings.

Furthermore, to foster two-way communication
amongst the Company, its Shareholders and potential
investors, and to update them abreast of the latest
industry updates, corporate communications and the
Group’s announcements and business development
in a timely manner, the Company has appointed two
investor relation professionals as a formal channel to
respond to enquiries from Shareholders and the public.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor
relations is to clearly introduce the Group, including the
business positioning, existing operations and future
development of the Group, to the media, Shareholders,
investors, analysts and investment banks through
different communication channels. In future, the Group
shall further enhance communication with the media,
Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment
banks on various aspects such as development
strategies, operation and management, financial
prospects and business operation through meetings,
senior management'’s participation in investor forums,
conferences and roadshows. The Group is confident
in establishing and maintaining a good relationship
with the international capital institutions through the
continued enhancement of information transparency.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company's
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a
matter of applying and complying with the CG Code
of the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We
will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve
our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and
improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 May 2021
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”)
presents its annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “"Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's principal
activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 8 to 29 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 124 to 125 and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2019: Nil) or a special dividend (2019: Nil) for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Details are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE COMPANY (“2020 AGM")

The 2021 AGM is scheduled to be held on 30 June
2021, Wednesday. For determining the entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 25 June
2021, Friday to 30 June 2021, Wednesday (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order for a
Shareholder to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021
AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom Share
Registrars (HK) Limited of Room 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 June 2021, Thursday.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities
(including both continuing and discontinued operations)
of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited consolidated
financial statements and reclassified/restated as
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT TET FTET FTEL FTEL
(Restated)
(BE7)
RESULTS E¥
REVENUE /9N 18,953 119,998 159,837 1,278,298 83,754
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE R Fr /8 %t Al
INCOME TAX (B#E)/ %A (2,158,952) (162,545) 329,330 222,735 179,411
INCOME TAX CREDIT FEHER
(EXPENSE) (AX) 356,812 (38,626) (170,881) (95,804) (129,859)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE ZAAT#EEA
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE EhER
TO OWNERS OF THE (B#7)/ %7
COMPANY (1,765,132) (199,812) 159,932 115,575 39,741
ASSETS AND BEEREE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 9,049,453 10,358,567 10,695,955 11,217,361 10,205,737
Total liabilities BEf 8,098,766 7704,462 7,842,982 8,162,285 7396,411
Total equity e 950,687 2,654,105 2,852,973 3,055,076 2,809,326
Total liabilities and total BEER
equity B B 9,049,453 10,358,567 10,695,955 11,217.361 10,205,737

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in

note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE

Det ails of movements in the properties under
development for sale of the Group during the year
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and related transactions
undertaken in the ordinary course of business by the
Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. Saved as disclosed
therein, none of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or a continuing
connected transaction of the Group as defined in and
required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Group confirms that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As detailed in note 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, on 28 October 2020, the Company
and SkyOcean Investment entered into the deed of
amendment, pursuant to which it is agreed that, (i) the
maturity date of the outstanding SkyOcean CB shall
be extended from 23 December 2020 to 23 December
2025; (ii) the existing conversion price of HK$6.80 per
Share will be adjusted to the revised conversion price
of HK$2.00 per Share; and (iii) the SkyOcean CB shall
bear interest from, and including the effective date at
the rate of 5% per annum of the outstanding principal
amount of the SkyOcean CB, which is payable semi-
annually.

The aforesaid connected transaction was approved by

the independent shareholders at the special general
meeting conducted on 8 December 2020.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company was engaged to report on
the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Based on the results of the work
performed, the auditor has issued a letter containing
an unmodified conclusion in respect of the continuing
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
and the report of the auditor, and have confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into by the Company
in the ordinary course of its business, on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favorable than
terms available to or from independent third parties,
and in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The auditors have confirmed that nothing has come
to their attention that caused them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions: (1) have not been
approved by the Board; (2) were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and (3) have
exceeded the annual caps.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Bye-laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
128 to 130 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended from
time to time), amounted to approximately HK$1,185.4
million (2019: HK$1,602.1 million).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Zhou Jin (Re-Appointed on 5 March 2021)
Cao Rucang (Resigned on 5 March 2021)
Zhou Zhitao (Resigned on 5 February 2021)
Zhou Zheng (Resigned on 12 October 2020)
Yang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Chen Guanglei

Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting

Zhao Daxin

In accordance with the Company’'s Bye-law 86(2), Ms.
Zhou Jin shall hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and
(2), Dr. Meng Xiaosu shall retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company has an
unexpired service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or
other officers of the Company acting in relation to any
of the affairs of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his duties in his office. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year under review.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors were
appointed for a specific term of three years but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company or any other applicable laws whereby the
Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executives in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows or as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below:
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Yang Lei Beneficial owner (Note 2) 205,790 0.07%

BE XmEA A E2)

Meng Xiaosu Beneficial owner (Note 2) 61,737 0.02%

B B XamEA A E2)

Yang Buting Beneficial owner (Note 2) 61,737 0.02%

BE= XmEA A E2)

Zhao Daxin Beneficial owner (Note 2) 61,737 0.02%

i PN i XamEA A E2)

Notes: M 5

1. These interests in shares of the Company are held
pursuant to the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.

1. RARBBOOZERZDEREBR
REFEROHBRERSA -

2. FrELdERETR -
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PURPOSE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is (i) to
closely align the interests of the Directors and senior
executives of the Company with the Company's
performance and strategic objectives, so as to lay a
foundation for the Company’'s future development
and maximize shareholder value, and (ii) to attract,
retain and motivate key personnel to achieve the
Company's strategic objectives by providing them with
compensation that is as a whole competitive in the
talent market.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The specific eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme ("Eligible Participant(s)”) shall be determined
by the Board at its sole discretion, and such
determination shall be interpreted by the Board. Subject
to the discretion of the Board, the eligible participants
shall belong to any of the following class(es):

(i) executive Directors, independent non-executive
directors and senior executives of the Company
who are responsible for the decision-making,
operation and management of the Company as
determined by the Board; and

(ii) any other groups or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the
development of the Group including but not
limited to the qualified persons.

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR SUBSCRIPTION UNDER THE SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

The Company may grant share options to Eligible
Participants entitling to subscribe for a total up to
26,321,173 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date on which the
resolution regarding the Share Option Scheme was
passed at the Special General Meeting on 29 November
2018, being 263,211,739 Shares. The Company may
seek approval of its Shareholders at general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme, however the total number of shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under all the schemes of the Company
under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval for the
limit. Share Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the Share Option Scheme)
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will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed limit. Further, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Share Options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANT

The maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to each
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of the share options shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

EXERCISE TIME AND EXPIRY DATE OF THE
SHARE OPTIONS

The granted share options are exercisable in 4 tranches
of 26% each on the date after the first, second, third
and fourth anniversaries of the date of grant. The
exercisable period will expire on 29 November 2028.

EXERCISE PRICE UNDER THE SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The exercise price of share options shall be determined
by the Board and notified to the Eligible Participants.
The exercise price shall be the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the grant
date;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five consecutive trading days prior to the
grant date; and

(il)  the par value of the Shares.

In 2018, 4,928,676 share options with exercise price of
HK$8.18 per share are granted to certain directors and
employees on 11 December 2018. These Share options
are with vesting periods from 11 December 2018 to 10
December 2022 and were exercisable in 4 tranches of
25% each, from 11 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022
to 29 November 2028.
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During the current year, the changes in share options
granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

A [+ A2 R 95 8 AR A A IR 0 B
BAESBMT -

Exercise 1 January 31 December
Date of grant price 2020 Adjustment 2020
2020% 2020%
REBH TEE 1818 RE 12A318
HK$
BT
Directors
Bz
Mr. Yang Lei 11 December 2018 8.18 205,790 - 205,790
SERE 2018512 A11H
Mr. Meng Xiaosu 11 December 2018 8.18 61,737 - 61,737
ABEHEL 2018512 A11H
Mr. Yang Buting 11 December 2018 8.18 61,737 - 61,737
BEERE 2018512 A11H
Mr. Zhao Daxin 11 December 2018 8.18 61,737 - 61,737
HAHELE 2018512 A11H
391,001 - 391,001
Other Eligible Participants 11 December 2018 8.18 3,220,617 648,239 2,572,378
HiaERBEA 2018%12A 118
3,611,618 648,239 2,963,379

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any
business that competes or competed or is or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020 and as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2020, the following Shareholders had
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report

EEERE

BEROHEZ 2L

BRI A8 —&

PR & N &

AF - EBRAR RACEKBARXR
R B 2 7 A 4 PO A 2 BT R

EEFERENLER

AR S HE M AE AR A

BIBENIEZMESH = -

FERRRHEMALTRR G R IEE
H“ﬁZ*EE&u&F

M2020512 8318 -
B RTEMGFE 2 EMATE

REZZEHAEERIE
BmAEARR

AR EAEROES 2 BRI T

Number of Approximate %
shares and of the relevant

underlying issued share
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held capital Note
tEH
BFEROR EBRRITREAZ
B R & B EatE HE RO #E CEER i
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited  Interest of controlled
corporation 465,487480 163.05% 1
MBYAFRAA REHEE R
Sheng Bang Holdings Limited Interest of controlled
(“Sheng Bang”) corporation 465,487,480 163.05% 1
HERERAR (B XEtEE RS
Zhou Zheng Interest of controlled
corporation 465,487480 163.05% 1
J& K XEAEE RS
Notes: B -
1, This includes interest in (i) 205,182,287 shares of the 1. ZRREBERFIRE(BRANBVAER
Company, and (i) convertible bonds (upon exercise if DRAIZEZEWE AR ?—ir B2 ) KR A
N\ s
X

the conversion rights attached to which, 260,305,193
shares will be allotted and issued by the Company)
of the Company held by SkyOcean Investment,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Knowledge Silicon
Valley Limited. Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited was
owned as to 80% by Sheng Bang, which in turns
was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. By virtue of
the SFO, each of Mr. Zhou Zheng, Sheng Bang and
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited was deemed to be
interested in the shares and underlying shares owned
by SkyOcean Investment.

2. All interests states above represent long positions.

205,182,287/ B 15+ &
& %(ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁfﬂih PAN/NET
fit 2% % 3% 17260,305,193 X f% 15) - M w
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Group entered into subscription agreements
containing covenants relating to specific performance
of the controlling shareholders of the Company which
were subject to announcement disclosure under
Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements of
disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the details of which are set out below:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | and Il, which details are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, at
all times throughout the terms of the Convertible Bonds
| and the Bonds | and I, (a) the controlling shareholders,
namely SkyOcean Investment and Mr. Zhou Zheng,
shall maintain an aggregate beneficial ownership
(directly or indirectly) of not less than 51% in the issued
share capital of the Company on a Fully-Diluted Basis;
(b) SkyOcean Investment shall not (i) exercise any of
its rights to convert all or any portion of the Charged
Existing CB into Shares; and (ii) amend any terms
or conditions of the Existing CB Sale and Purchase
Agreement, the Existing CB Terms and Conditions,
the Uncharged Existing CB Terms and Conditions and
the Charged Existing CB Terms and Conditions; and
(c) Mr. Zhou Zheng shall remain as a Director and the
Chairman of the Company. A breach of such covenants
constitutes an Event of Default.

As at the date of this annual report, (a) SkyOcean
Investment and Mr. Zhou Zheng beneficially owns
approximately 71.87% of the issued share capital
of the Company; and (b) SkyOcean Investment has
not (i) exercised any of its rights to convert all or any
portion of the Charged Existing CB into Shares; and (ii)
amended any terms or conditions of the Existing CB
Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Existing CB Terms
and Conditions, the Uncharged Existing CB Terms
and Conditions and the Charged Existing CB Terms
and Conditions. There has been a breach of covenant
since Mr. Zhou Zheng resigned as a Director and the
Chairman of the Company on 12 October 2020. The
Company was in the process of negotiation with the
holder of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds |
and Il in respective of this covenant at the end of the
reporting period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has endeavored to comply with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental measures to ensure
that the conducting of the Group’s business meets the
applicable construction standards and ethics in respect
of environmental protection.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability
from office throughout the property portfolio.
As a responsible developer, the Group strives to
ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully
managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition,
we engaged construction contractors with sound
environmental protection and safety track records
and have closely monitored the project at every stage
to ensure the construction process is in compliance
with environmental protection and safety laws and
regulations, and would require construction contractors
to immediately resolve any defect or noncompliance,
where necessary. For further details, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations
in particular, those have significant impact on the
Group. The Audit Committee is delegated by the
Board to monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics.
With an aim to enhancing the quality of the Board's
performance by diversity, the board diversity policy
was adopted. Details of such board diversity policy are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report — Board Diversity Policy”. Further, the Group
has employee handbooks outlining terms and conditions
of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct
and behaviour, employees’ rights and benefits. The
Group establishes and implements policies that promote
a harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group provides on-the-job training and
development opportunities to enhance its employees’
career progression. Through different trainings, staff’s
professional knowledge in corporate operations,
occupational and management skills are enhanced.
The Group also organised charitable and staff-friendly
activities for employees, such as annual dinner, to
promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial
working environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings
and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group provided
health and safety communications for employees to
present the relevant information and raise awareness of
occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff.

In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains good relationships with existing
and potential customers as understanding of the
market trends would enable the Group to monitor and
review the credit quality of the customers and timely
adjust its operating strategies, which are crucial to the
development and success of the Group. The Group
places effort to build up and maintain good relationships
with various commercial banks and financial institutions
as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain
continuous growth.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was
no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its financial institutions and/or customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ and senior management
emoluments and of the five highest paid individuals
in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend
on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or ser vice contracts as
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual's performance
and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable
to the Group’'s five largest customers accounted for
84.19% of the Group’s total revenue for the year and
the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
included therein amounted to 39.24%. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 47.35% of the Group's total
construction cost incurred for the year. The purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier amounted to
15.23% of the Group’s total construction cost.

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.
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EEEWRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31
December 2020.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations during the
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 84 to 105.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the issued capital of the Company has been
maintained as at the date of this report and at all times
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company has appointed MAZARS CPA Limited
("MAZARS") as auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint MAZARS as the auditor
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 May 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

mazars

To the members of DreamEast Group Limited
ERFEBERAA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of DreamEast Group Limited (the
“Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 124 to page 312, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Because of the
significance of the matter described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2020, the Group had net
current liabilities of HK$2,248.8 million, and the Group
has incurred losses since 2019 and reported a loss of
HK$1,802.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. In addition, any further liabilities or obligations
arising from the legal disputes (see note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements), loans and bonds
may have significant negative impact on the liquidity
position of the Group. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB EEN R E

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
— continued

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN - continued

The validity of the going concern assumption is
dependent on the successful and favourable outcomes
of the measures being taken by the management
of the Company and the development of the events
as described in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. The management of the Company is of the
opinion that the Group would be able to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the use of going concern
assumption in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Should the going concern
assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may have to
be made to reflect the situation that assets may need
to be realised at the amounts other than those that
are currently recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2020. In addition,
the Group may have to recognise further liabilities that
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditor's report. However, because
of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

This report is made solely to you, as a body in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 May 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang

Practising Certificate number: P04793

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EFEREREMESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5 TER FAET
Revenue PN 4
Sales of properties MEHE 1,470 84,338
Rental income R ON 11,969 17441
Tourism park operations and other mELREEER
services HA R 7% 5,514 18,219
18,953 119,998
Cost of sales and services HERRBRAK (10,852) (73,843)
Gross profit E7 8,101 46,155
Other gains and losses Hitlam Rk EHE 6 (213,291) (48,162)
Other income Hi A 16,888 26,492
Share of results of joint ventures 2EA ””’m‘%%iﬁ 17 (238,433) (7.653)
Fair value changes of investment properties & ¥ A EBE S 16 (194,149) 91,594
Selling expenses HERX (17,749) (24,592)
Administrative expenses THER (69,324) (108,539)
Impairment loss of property, plant and nE - -BERZEZ
equipment REER 14 (114,189) —
Impairment loss of properties under ERVBENEZ
development for sale REER (1,376,811) _
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREESERBEERL 15 (16,303) =
Impairment loss on trade receivable and ~ E 5B M KIE R E 0 E U A
other receivables ZHME (17,905) _
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBLRZER 35 (89) (7642)
Gain (Loss) on extinguishment of AEABREES 2R (B
convertible bonds %a) 26 183,241 (1,623)
Gain on modification of bonds and BIEHFRTARESFAKE
convertible bond 8,020 —
Finance costs B8R 7 (116,959) (128,575)
Loss before tax BRBATE R 8 (2,158,952) (162,545)
Income tax credit (expense) FEREL (AT 9 356,812 (38,626)
Loss for the year FERNER (1,802,140) (201,171)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EHEERAMEFERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2020 2019
2020%F 20196
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it 5 TER TEL
Other comprehensive gain (loss): Httima s (BE)
Item that may be reclassified to profit TE€EHFIEZEFE2ER:
or loss:
Exchange differences on translation BEELZBERES 54,420 (11,392)
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) A4 M EH MG A FE
of joint ventures 77,168 (31,010)
131,588 (42,402)
Item that will not be reclassified HEDeEH 2EZ
subsequently to profit or loss: B#zEE:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBEE L
foreign operations fE 5 =8 (35,643) 36,221
Other comprehensive income (loss) for FREMbEZE W F
the year (B8]) 95,945 (6,181)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRGSEELE (1,706,195) (207.352)
Loss for the year attributable to: BERTIZERAER:
Owners of the Company ARAERA (1,765,132) (199,812)
Non-controlling interests I 2 ) 4 2 (37,008) (1,359)
(1,802,140) (201,171)
Total comprehensive loss for the year HEBERTHEEZERGZEAE
attributable to: BaE:
Owners of the Company ARBHEA (1,676,931) (200,584
Non-controlling interests IE 75 1 4 2 (29,264) (6,768)
(1,706,195) (207,352
Loss per share BRER 13
— Basic X (HK$6.18287% 1)  (HK$0.6999% TT)
— Diluted ] (HK$6.182878 1) (HK$0.6999/8 1)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OF B % 5K 0 3R

At 31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5 FHE T FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BMEXRXE 14 210,091 286,920
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 40,472 52,441
Investment properties "EME 16 2,609,669 2,567,861
Investment in joint ventures ReghEZERE 17 1,208,886 1,313,830
Other non-current assets HinFEREEE 21 117,856 144,119
4,186,974 4,365,171
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BRPEEME
for sale 18 3,918,733 4,680,357
Completed properties held for sale B % TiFE % 18 300,991 283,761
Inventories rE 169 153
Trade receivables B 5 EMRIE 19 106 4,833
Other receivables, deposits and Hﬁﬂlfﬁ%%lﬁ ek
prepayments AT 20 9,611 93,312
Amounts due from related JiE L2 8 B “‘ NAEIIA
companies 39(E) (i) 351,698 634,833
Other current assets Hth i 8 & & 21 257,395 255,167
Restricted bank balance PR B #R 17 45 £ 22 13,005 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 22 10,771 40,980
4,862,479 5,993,396
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables and 85 K EMERFKIE R
accruals J& &t BB 23 1,078,803 716,945
Contract liabilities ERON=Ri 24 353,000 285,872
Amounts due to related companies J& 1< B8 B 2 &) 3% 8 39(E)(ii) 1,157,510 1,088,762
Lease liabilities i) fi\ﬁf,\ 15 5,939 4,143
Tax payable JE B FH 18 71,844 71,072
Bank and other borrowings HITREMEE
— within one year —iW“JHﬂ 25 3,770,692 1,635,613
Due to a joint venture FEREEPER 39(E)(ii) 106,469 -
Convertible bonds and bonds CIE:: Hxﬁ%‘&ﬁ%‘f 26 567,032 1,040,985
7,111,289 4,843,392
Net current (liabilities) assets HiE (A& EEFE (2,248,810) 1,150,004
Total assets less current BEERARBER
liabilities 1,938,164 St ey 11748
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB RO &

At 31 December 2020 722020412 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHB T FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEETBEAR 27 170,084 513,649
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE
— over one year — —F1&EE 25 461,103 2,347421
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 3,830 -
Convertible bonds and bonds ARREHFMES 26 352,460 -
987,477 2,861,070
Net assets EEFE 950,687 2,654,105
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 28 28,550 28,550
Reserves 5% 1 726,638 2,400,792
Equity attributable to owners of RAREEB NG
the Company 755,188 2,429,342
Non-controlling interests FE 155 ) M R 195,499 224,763
Total equity A 950,687 2,654,105

The consolidated financial statements on pages 124
to 312 were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 May 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

Zhou Jin
Director
A&
EFE

F1248 & F3128 2 & H U 7% | & 72021
FoAZNAKES I E M IRAET B

THEEFREREE:

Yang Lei
Director
EFF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EFERSEX

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FEREARGES

Equity

Convertible attributable

Statutory Share bonds  Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus Other option equity  translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

b330

i TERES HE BEEL

Ra  REEE  BBEE  RERE BRERE  BERR  REEE  RERA a3 EE B4R
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
TR TR TR TET Tén Tn Tin Tn Tén Tén TR

Note & Note b] Note c)
(Ha (K3t b) LED
At 1 January 2020 001518 28550 855,716 127880 629,463) 9314 398,868 (280,136) 1918613 2429342 224,163 2,654,105
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = = - (0765132 (1,765,132) (37008) (1,802,140
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operation - - - - - - 88,201 - 88,201 T4 95,945
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) - - - - - - (21,0m) 1.0m - - -
Total other comprehensive loss for theyear ~ ERERGAERLE - - - - - - 67124 21,0m 88,201 44 95,945
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - - 67124 (1,744,05)  (1,676,931) (29,264)  (1,706,195)
Transactions with owners:
Contributions and distributions
Extension of the Convertiole Bonds | ERTRRER (526)
[Note 26] - = = = = (217906) - 217906 - - -
Equity-settled share-hased payments EEREENRNAERY
(Note 29| f3t - - - - 21m - - - 2mm - am
Share option forfeited (Note 29) R BExH (W) - - - - (3,678) - - 3,678 - - -
Total transactions with owners BEEANRALE - - - - (901) (217906 - 58 21 - 2
As at 31 December 2020 H020512831A 28550 855,716 127880 629,463) 8413 180,962 (213,012) 396,142 755,188 195,499 950,687
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AptEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARGES

Equity

Convertible attrioutable

Statutory Share bonds  Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus Other option equity — translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserve profits Total interests equity

F2d

b33 TaRESF hE ERER

RE RWEE  BREE  AHEE BRERE  EEER  RERE  REEA th a  E£4E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR AT T T&n T&n T#n T&1L TEL TEL TR AL

Note o) [Note b) Note c)
(i) iy (Mo
At 1 January 2019 R019E1B1R 28,550 855,716 127880 629,463) 4% 398,353 (279364 2118425 2620593 232,380 2852973
Loss for the year FngE - - - - - - — (19812 (19981 (1359 0
Other comprehensive income: il aka
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~ ${J 4 REZHL 2B
operation 28 - - - - - - (1) = (172 (5,409 (6,181)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERGRERAE - - - - - - () 199812 (200584 6768 (207352)
Transactions with owners: BEEADRS
Contributions and diirbutions HARAF
Extension of the Convertile Bonds ERA4RER
| Nots 26) (Hio6) - - - - - 516 - - 515 = 515
Equity-settled share-based payments
[Note 29) = = - - 8818 - - - 8818 - 8818
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) = = = = = = = = = (849) (849)
Totaltransactions with owners BEEANRALE - - - - 8818 51 = = 9333 [649) 8484
As at 31 December 2019 R019E128318 28,550 855,716 127880 (629,463) 9314 398,868 (280136)  1,918613 2429342 24,763 2,654,105
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AGHRERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

Notes:

a. In accordance with the Articles of Association of
all subsidiaries of DreamEast Group Limited that
established in the People’'s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), those subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of those subsidiaries. Transfer to this
reserve must be made before distributing dividends to
equity holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be
used to make up for previous year's losses, expand the
existing operation or convert into additional capital of

the subsidiaries.

b. Share option reserve comprise the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to directors and employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting

policy adopted for share-based payments.

(o Convertible bonds equity reserves represent equity

portion of convertible bonds.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTH
Loss before tax B B R0 &S 18 (2,158,952) (162,545)
Adjustments for: R
Interest income B A (75) (158)
Interest expenses SN 116,959 128,575
Bad debt written off ZARF 3,384 S
Fair value change of investment WEMEAABEED
properties 194,149 (91,594)
Impairment loss of property, plant ME - BEREEZ
and equipment BB &5 1B 114,189 =
Impairment loss of properties under ZEHIFEWE 2 HEE B
development 1,376,811 —
Impairment loss of right-of-use FREEERMERXL
assets 16,303 —
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BELKETE
equipment 2,679 3,007
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,634 7466
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME BMERZREZ
and equipment &5 18 4 1,166
Loss on disposal of right-of-use LEFHAEEECCEE
assets 256 —
(Gain) Loss on extinguishment of I —Hﬁ‘ f% & %z ()
convertible bonds &5 £ (183,241) 1,623
Gain on modification of bonds and & %&—JL?’% BEHZ
convertible bond & 2 2= (8,020) =
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEELEESE 238,433 7,653
Loss on disposal of subsidiary EEMBARZEX 89 7,642
Allowance for doubtful debts =R B 17,905 —
Provision for litigation A 178,809 =
Provision for redundancy iz 1 U BR 935 =
Provision for compensation EEEESD 43,776 12,013
Equity-settled share-based NHEZEENRG N
payments 2,777 8,818
Exchange difference fE X Z%R (7,645) 26,992
Operating loss before changes in Rt BESEP2KLE
working capital T (43,841) (49,342)
Decrease in properties under ?é‘)?x%q:'%%ﬂ FEMERD
development and properties for sale 2,917 204,832
Increase in prepayment for land ERPGTEMEN L HE AR
use rights for properties under TET AIE N
development for sale — (7004)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FECgm R b (16) 470
(Increase)/Decrease in trade B 5 M W sk I8 (3 i) R
receivables (269) 5,642
Decrease/(Increase) in other current  HREEE - ﬁﬁﬂrﬂﬁlm
assets, other receivables, deposits we RAEMNKER D (1 jJD)
and prepayments 30,397 (10,849)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other B 5 & H fib Bt FIE A &
payables and accruals T8 32 F I 0 O ) 195,171 (78,468)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract GHBEE IR D)
liabilities 50,570 (4,103)
Cash generated from operations KEEE RS 234,929 61,178
Income tax refunded (paid) REMEH (2R 609 (1,608)
Net cash from operating activities K& EZEHFAESREFE 235,538 59,570
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FER FE T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETEH
Interest received = W F) B2 75 158
Investment in joint venture A é%ﬁ%Z&éﬁ 17 (56,321) (117,509)
Acquisition of investment WERE Y
properties (29,003) (159,362)
Repayment from related A HE N Al B
companies 307,392 255,753
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE R A 35 2,089 141,721
Decrease in pledged bank deposits & & 17 2 9 W R17 — 930
Prepayment for land use rights 1 AR 7B 7 5K T
for investment properties under
development (358) (4,028)
Restricted bank balance PR & IR 1T 45 &4 (13,005) o
Purchase of property, plant and BEEYWE BELZH
equipment (30,596) (59,226)
Net cash from investing REZHMEBREFE
activities 180,273 58,437
FINANCING ACTIVITIES g R
Interest paid EENPIPS (445,574) (363,801)
Transaction costs on extension of L%T?ﬁ I & %H K EH
convertible bonds and bonds 2R BK ZIX 26 (8.670) (8,910)
(Repayment)/Advances from BN
related companies (2,773) 29,374
Advance from a joint venture BEDERR 100,722 -
New bank and other borrowings %%%ﬁ iR TT&ﬁJ’M =R
raised 29,704 552,206
Redemption of bonds i [0 & 26 (36,000) (110,000)
Repayment of bank and other BERITREMEE
borrowings (78,833) (360,648)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE (3,307) (6,544)
Net cash used in financing METEAZRES
activities H 38 (444,731) (268,323)
Net decrease in cash andcash RERBESEEYR D
equivalents F (28,920) (150,316)
Cash and cash equivalents at RBPEHOIZ2EHERE
beginning of the reporting 2EEY
period 40,980 185,545
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERS B> &
changes (1,289) 5,751
Cash and cash equivalents at RBEHRZEERR
end of the reporting period, SEBEYHARRBRITE
represented by bank balances f#REE
and cash 10,771 40,980
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OF B 75 AR MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DreamEast Group Limited (the “"Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The address of its principal
place of business is Suite 2901, Tower Two,
Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries (together with the Company,
hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were provision of property development
and leasing as well as tourism park operations
and other services. Particulars of the principal
subsidiaries are detailed in note 40.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of
the Company is SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited (“SkyOcean Investment”), which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng, a director and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company.

The functional currency of the Company is
Renminbi ("RMB"), and for the purpose of more
convenience to the readers of these consolidated
financial statements, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS$").

ARIER
2ERAFEEERARTARARDA—
MRBERESMRINER QA
5 ffft #1F = B i 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda ° "R R E B L 2 4 2 2 b
WHAEBRBENWEFIRERE
H2BE2901E « ARAZRMDREE
BAXSHMAR AR (TH M) TR
e

ARABZEBEBRBREER - B
REAIGERARE - ATHBRINE
BMzETEXBARHUHDEZER A
ENRIRESEESEREMRE - £
EWE AR MBI 405

AR ZEERERRREBRAR SRR
BRZHES(EBRXEE]EMMX
VIZRFAREEBERAB(RFR
B EBAARRAIZEZR&KER
BRREABELEEREHB0%HEE o

ARAZHEEBBARBIAR
B RENTEAHBBERRZESE
BB UESHVBHREUBT(E
T2 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a basis consistent with
the accounting policies adopted in the 2019
consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective from
the current year. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the

following new/revised HKFRSs:

Amendments to HKASs 1 Definition of Material
and 8

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRSs 7 and 9

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 1

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30
June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 16

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
— continued

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material
and align the definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform (the market-wide
reform of an interest rate benchmark, including
the replacement of an interest rate benchmark
with an alternative benchmark). In addition,
the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a
Business

The amendments, among others, revise the
definition of a business and include new guidance
to evaluate whether an acquired process is
substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
— continued

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to
consider individual lease contracts to determine
whether rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic are lease
modifications and allow lessees to account for
such rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent
concessions that reduce lease payments due on
or before 30 June 2022. The amendments do not
affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020 with
earlier application permitted. The Group has
elected to early adopt the amendments in the
current year.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any impact on the consolidated financial
statements as the Group did not receive any rent
concession during the year.

GOING CONCERN

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with the principles
applicable to a going concern basis. The
applicability of these principles is dependent
upon continued availability of adequate finance or
attaining profitable operations in future and the
success of the below plans and measures in view
of the excess of current liabilities over current
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
GOING CONCERN - continued

The Group reported a net loss attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$1,765.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$2,248.8 million. As at the same
date, the Group's had bank and other borrowings
and convertible bonds and bonds payables
amounted to approximately HK$5,151.3 million,
of which current borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$4,337.7 million, while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$10.8 million only.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group is
subjected to several legal claims amounted to
approximately HK$4,143.9 million, mainly in
relation to disputes under construction contracts
in respect of its various property development
projects and defaults of repayment of several
bank and other borrowings, which arose during
the normal course of business. In these legal
proceedings, the Group has received court orders
to restrict the disposition of certain investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use asset, properties under development for
sale and properties held for sale in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$5,580.9 million and
the withdrawal of bank deposits of approximately
HK$13.0 million as at 31 December 2020.
Details of which were set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. Provision for
litigation and compensation of HK$189.1 million
and HK$59.0 million respectively, other than the
liabilities already recognised, has been made
based on best estimation on the outcomes of the
disputes by the management in consideration
of the development of negotiations with the
creditors and advice sought from the independent
legal advisors and internal legal counsel.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
GOING CONCERN - continued

As at 31 December 2020, loan from an asset
management company with principal of
HK$2,982.3 million and interest payable of
HK$254.0 million (the “Overdue Borrowings”)
were overdue. During the year, the Group
failed to repay the principal of HK$1,033.7
million according to the repayment schedule
which was considered as default and thus the
remaining principal of HK$1,948.6 million became
immediately due in accordance with terms of
loan agreement. Hence, the entire principal of
HK$2,982.3 million together with interest payable
of HK$254.0 million were classified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

As stipulated in the relevant loan and financing
agreements in respect of certain borrowings of
the Group other than those mentioned above,
the default of the guarantors may result in
default of the Group's borrowings. As a result
of the guarantor’s default during the year, the
principal amount of a borrowing of HK$312.6
million was considered to be default (“Cross-
default Borrowing”) with the entire amount of
this borrowing became immediately overdue and
has been classified as current liabilities as at 31
December 2020.

The Group is in active negotiations with the
lender in respect of the Overdue Borrowings for
a debt restructuring so as to settle the Overdue
Borrowings by using the proceeds from new
borrowing plans. The Group is also negotiating
with the Cross-default Borrowing lender to renew
the relevant borrowing. The Group is confident
that agreements will be reached in due course.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

GOING CONCERN - continued

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the claims made by the construction contractors
are mainly related to construction works that did
not meet the required standards and pursuant
to the terms of the construction contracts,
the Group has the right not to certify those
construction work claimed by the contractors.
In addition, the Group has already made or is
in the process of making counter claims for
compensation from the construction contractors
for causing delay in delivering of the properties
to the end customers of the Group.

Because of the aforementioned actions taken,
management is confident that the lender(s) of the
Overdue Borrowings and Cross-default Borrowing
will not enforce their rights of requesting for
immediate repayment.

All the above conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

FTESHBE-&

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
GOING CONCERN - continued

In view of such circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. Certain measures
have been taken by the Group to mitigate its
liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the
followings:

The Group has been actively negotiating
with certain financial institutions and
identifying various options for financing
the Group’s working capital, repayments
of the overdue borrowings as well as the
commitments in the foreseeable future;

The Group will seek to accelerate the pre-
sales and sales of its properties under
development and completed properties.
Overall, the Group expects to gradually
launch pre-sales of properties for two
major projects starting from the third and
fourth quarter of 2021 respectively;

The Group has been actively negotiating
with a number of financial institutions for
renewal and extension of bank borrowings
and credit facilities;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
GOING CONCERN - continued

iv. The Group will continue to take active
measures to control administrative costs
through various channels, including human
resources optimisation, management
remuneration adjustments and
containment of capital expenditures; and

V. The Group has sought advice from the
independent legal advisors or internal legal
counsel for the outstanding legal claims
that are subjected to legal proceedings
and/or appeal in relation to construction
contracts under dispute and appropriate
actions are timely executed.

The directors are of the opinion that, taking
into account the abovementioned plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within twelve months from 31 December
2020. Accordingly, the directors believe that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern
basis. Notwithstanding the above, significant
uncertainties exist as to whether management
of the Company will be able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the Group’'s ability to
generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows through the followings:

Successful obtaining new sources of
financing as and when needed;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
GOING CONCERN - continued

ii. Successful accelerating the pre-sales and
sales of properties under development
and completed properties and speeding
up the collection of outstanding sales
proceeds, and controlling costs and capital
expenditure so as to generate adequate
net cash inflows;

iii. Successful negotiations with the lenders
for renewal of or extension for repayments
beyond year 2021 for those borrowings
that (a) are scheduled for repayment (either
based on the original agreements or the
existing arrangements) in year 2021; and
(b) were overdue as at 31 December 2020
because of the Group’s failure to repay
the principal on or before the scheduled
repayment dates; and

iv. Successful persuading the Group's existing
lenders not to take action to demand for
immediate repayment of the defaulted
borrowings in year 2021.

Should the Group fail to achieve the
abovementioned plans and measures, it might
not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying values of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements is
historical cost, except for investment properties,
which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not they
control an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included/excluded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains/losses control of the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION — continued

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group's
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

2.

FTESHBE-&

BOEE &
BahkHEtEa ke 2 & AKER
BRARBIEBARIFEZEG EER -
MBARZGEAKEZREBRNART
BEAARFZES EEDE  BELES
SIBFENEREABAEER -

D
it

FAEEREAENBRARER 22T

MAEBERMBARAER 22 TE
EYARKEEREHZEHNBERR 212
B BIERERXHAR - A&KHE
ZHEBEEmB O MIFEBI RS 2R
HESTHAE UARBERZENE
RAZHERGEESY  BRENAKE
HEFEEH MR IABRBEAZEE R
FE 4% Il 1 4 23 A A R B B E R 8 B
TE A

HEFTHERSFLRECSRED
NFEBREZAABEZHEME
BOOEEREREaTEIALEBERA
REEBA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES - continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE - continued

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE - continued

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The Group classifies a property from properties
under development for sale and/or completed
properties held for sale to investment property
when there is evidence of a change in use of
the property by inception of the operating lease
agreements. Any difference between the fair
value of the property at the date of transfer and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including the
buildings held for use in the production and/
or supply of goods and/or services, or for
administrative purpose (other than construction
in progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is stated at cost,
which comprises the cost of construction and
borrowing costs, if applicable, less any identified
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

The cost of construction in progress will not be
depreciated until they are completed and ready
for intended use and are transferred to a specific
category of property, plant and equipment when
the construction is completed. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following
rate per annum:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 5%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 15% to 33';%

15% to 33';%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Computer equipment and
software

Motor vehicles

20% to 33%;%
20% to 33%;%

The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, lease receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amounts due
from related companies, bank balances and
pledged bank deposits). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12 months ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables. For all other
instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
— continued

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
— continued

Despite the foregoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default,
(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and (iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
— continued

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor
in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any
other party.

Interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

For a financial guarantee contract, the
loss allowances are recognised at the
higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount
of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, lease receivables,
other receivables and amounts due from
related parties where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial liabilities and equity - continued
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to
related companies, bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities and convertible bonds and bonds)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their
fair values. It is subsequently measured at the
higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and

o the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial liabilities and equity - continued
Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible
bonds issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated by measuring the fair
value of similar liability that does not have an
associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount of
the liability component from the fair value of
the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred from convertible bonds equity reserve
to share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bonds, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to retained profits. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial liabilities and equity - continued
Convertible bonds - continued

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction cost relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale which
are intended to be held for sale in the ordinary
course of business are carried at the lower of
cost or deemed cost if they are transferred from
investment properties and net realisable value
and are shown as current assets. Cost includes
the cost of land, construction cost and other
development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale, of which the selling
price is determined based on prevailing market
conditions.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to inventories when there is evidence
of a change in use to sell the property. The
property’'s deemed cost is being the property’s
fair value at the date of change in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE AND OTHER
INVENTORIES

Completed properties for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes the related land costs, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised.

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sales.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, net of bank overdrafts.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS WITHIN HKFRS 15

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS WITHIN HKFRS 15 — continued

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’'s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS WITHIN HKFRS 15 — continued

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources or operations which arise from
contracts with customers:

° Sales of properties
° Tourism park operations and other services

Timing of revenue recognition
Sales of properties

Taking into consideration of the relevant contract
terms, the legal environment and relevant legal
precedent, the Group concluded that the Group
does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of properties is
therefore recognised at a point in time when the
completed property is transferred to customers,
being at the point that the customer obtains the
control of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and collection of
the consideration is probable.

The Group receives 20-90% of the contract
value as deposits from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreement. Such advance
payment schemes result in contract liabilities
being recognised throughout the property
construction period for the full amount of the
contract price. The outstanding amount of the
contract will be received before the completed
property is transferred to customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS WITHIN HKFRS 15 — continued

Timing of revenue recognition — continued
Tourism park operations and other services

Revenue from tourism park operations including
entrance fee, food and beverage for which the
control of services or goods is transferred at a
point in time, revenue is recognised when the
related services or goods have been rendered to
customers.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between
payment and transfer of the associated goods
or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the transaction price for any significant financing
component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS WITHIN HKFRS 15 — continued

Existence of significant financing component
- continued

For advance payments received from customers
before the transfer of the associated goods
or services in which the Group adjusts for
the promised amount of consideration for a
significant financing component, the Group
applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.
The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received
and the transfer of the associated goods and
services are accounted for on the same basis as
other borrowing costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if
it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have
been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
investment in joint ventures to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS - continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties sur rounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
LEASES

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to
short-term leases and low-value asset leases.
Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group accounts for each lease component
within a lease contract as a lease separately.
The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give
rise to a separate component are considered to
be part of the total consideration that is allocated
to the separately identified components of the
contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of the
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued

As lessee - continued

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset
(i.,e. 1 to 2 years for land and buildings and 40
years for leasehold lands).

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date of the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued

As lessee - continued

The lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability comprise the following
payments for the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under
residual value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, or where it
is not readily determinable, the incremental
borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised
discount rate when there are changes to the
lease payments arising from a change in the
lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

2.

FTESHBE-&

HE-&

ERERBEA-&
AAHERBHENHENREBRET
AR HEYANERAEEEENER
EN NG SRR SN B

(@) RBECNR(BEEEEEEMNR)
BAEREREHERS

(o) HORR —HIEHH LR ZAE
HEMNK:

©0 MEMNBKEEERBEHENSZ

FRIE

d BEBENTEEWHAZEES
BEWETEZERN) R

(e) HRIEHEENITRMR(EEE
fif R B2 BR AN % [ 17 {8 4% LE#E DA
mRIEMEE

HENRERBRENR S M RRKRA -
A M R EER M EE 0 ORI A
ERAZBEEENE -

Bk  HEBEEBSBENEEHEMNR
REEREZME K HARKEENR
REMNWBEENTETFE -

ERBEREDMAEL RSN RED
KEH TG ALEREHA BT
BRI SRS AEE
SR EETEHAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued

As lessee - continued

The lease liability is remeasured by using the
original discount rate when there is a change in
the residual value guarantee, the in-substance
fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of
a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in floating interest rates, the Group
remeasures the lease liability using a revised
discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction
in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Group recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a
separate lease if

(a) the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
LEASES - continued
As lessee - continued

When a lease modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease, at the effective date of the
lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract on the basis of
relative stand-alone price as described
above.

the Group determines the lease term of
the modified contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability
by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate over the
revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the
scope of the lease, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease
liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease and
recognising any gain or loss relating to the
partial or full termination of the lease in
profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group
accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either
a finance lease or an operating lease at the
inception date of the lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component
within a lease contract as a lease separately
from non-lease components of the contract. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on a relative stand-
alone price basis.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised when the assets are let out, on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FOREIGN CURRENCIES — continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the group entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange
translation reserve. Exchange differences arising
from translation of a foreign operation to the
functional currency of the Company (i.e. RMB)
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of whilst
exchange differences relating to translation from
RMB to the presentation currency of the Group
are transferred directly to retained profits. On
disposal of a group entity that is not a foreign
operation, the exchange differences accumulated
in equity relating to the translation of assets and
liabilities of that group entity into presentation
currency of the Group are transferred directly to
retained profits.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from the profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and interest in a joint venture, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interest are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax
liabilities for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly to equity, in which case the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserves will be transferred to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserves will be transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes, including state-managed
retirement benefits schemes in the PRC and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are
recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or of the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

FTESHBE-&

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
RELATED PARTIES — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

RELATED PARTIES - continued

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group
has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRSs 4, 7 9 and 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended
Use ?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 2

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework ?

Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle 2
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current 3

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies 3

Definition of Accounting
Estimates 3

Insurance Contracts 3

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 4

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs — continued

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

o The effective date to be determined

The directors are in the process of assessing
the possible impact on the future adoption of
the new/revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a
position to reasonably estimate their impact on
the Company's consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting
policies, which are described in note 2, the
directors are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, that
management has made in the process of
applying the Group’'s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of assessing deferred tax
arising from investment properties measured
at fair value, the directors have reviewed
the Group’'s investment property portfolios
and concluded that such properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the properties over time through
generating rental income. Therefore, in assessing
the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors have determined the
presumption that the investment properties
recovered through sale is rebutted.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair value
with reference to valuation performed by an
independent external valuer. In assessing the
fair values, the independent external valuer
has applied valuation techniques including
certain assumptions and estimates of market
condition. The directors reviewed the valuation
performed by the independent external valuer
and use their estimation to determine whether
the valuation techniques applied are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Group. Changes
in assumptions could result in changes in fair
values of the Group's investment properties and
the corresponding gain or loss on fair values
recognised in profit or loss. Detailed inputs and
estimates applied for valuation disclosed in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of investment properties
as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$2,609,669,000 (2019: approximately
HK$2,567,861,000). More details are set out in
note 16.

Estimated net realisable value on properties
under development for sale and completed
properties held for sales

In assessing whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties under development
for sale and completed properties held for sales,
the Group takes into consideration the current
market environment and the net realisable value,
the estimated market value (i.e. the estimated
selling price less estimated selling expenses) less
estimated costs to completion of the properties
with reference to valuations performed by an
independent external valuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

Estimated net realisable value on properties
under development for sale and completed
properties held for sales - continued

In assessing the estimated recoverable
amounts, the independent external valuer has
applied valuation techniques including certain
assumptions and estimates of market condition.
Detailed inputs and estimates applied for
valuation disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements. The directors reviewed
the valuations performed by the independent
external valuer and use their estimation to
determine whether the valuation techniques
applied are appropriate to the circumstances of
the Group. Changes in assumptions could result
in changes in estimated recoverable amounts of
the Group's properties under development for
sale and completed properties held for sales.
An allowance is provided if the estimated net
realisable value is less than the carrying amount.

The carrying amounts of properties under
development for sale and completed
properties held for sales as at 31 December
2020 were approximately HK$3,918,733,000
(2019: approximately HK$4,680,357,000)
and HK$300,991,000 (2019: approximately
HK$283,761,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred
tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
from the PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 27 of approximately
HK$400,940,000 and HK$335,652,000
respectively (2019: HK$332,314,000 and
HK$335,652,000 respectively) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases there are changes in
facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profits estimation, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such recognition takes place.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
LAT in the PRC. However, the implementation of
the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions
in various cities of the PRC and certain projects
of the Group have not finalised their LAT
calculations with the local tax authorities in the
PRC.

Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related income tax provision. The Group
recognised the land appreciation tax based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences
will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the period
in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

REVENUE 4, Y =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£2020F12A31MB L& E
Property
development Tourism park
and leasing operations Total
kREE EE et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FHE T FE T FE T
Revenue from contracts REBMERS
with customers within B 1558 X
HKFRS 15 WREEFA&
Bz WA
Recognised at point in time 7 & [ 2 # 2
Sales of properties HEME 1,470 - 1,470
Entrance fee, food and AN E RE
beverage - 5,514 5,514
1,470 5,514 6,984
Revenue from other REHEHMRFEN
sources N
Gross rental income from WEYERRBH
investment properties & WA B EE 11,969 = 11,969
Total revenue U 13,439 5,514 18,953
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

190

4. REVENUE - continued 4. WH-—&
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31BLLEE
Property
development  Tourism park
and leasing operations Total
YR BR %7 %
Mg & iE 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FE T FET
Revenue from contracts REBUERSE
with customers within Z R FE155% R
HKFRS 15 WREEF&
#H iz A
Recognised at point in time 7 B i 24 7 3R
Sales of properties HEWME 84,338 — 84,338
Entrance fee, food and ANGBRER
beverage — 18,219 18,219
84,338 18,219 102,557
Revenue from other REHMRIEFEN
sources PN
Gross rental income from HEWMERSHA
investment properties WA R EE 17,441 - 17,441
Total revenue LRI N 101,779 18,219 119,998

The Group's revenue generated from its property
development and leasing, and tourism park
operations were all at fixed price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's executive
directors, being the chief operating decision
maker (the "CODM?"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focused on the types of goods
or services delivered or provided. The Group's
reportable segments for the CODM'’s purposes
are (i) property development and leasing and (ii)
tourism park operations.

The property development and leasing segment
is principally engaged in property sales and
leases to customers in property market.

The tourism park operations segment is engaged
in operation of theme parks and provision of food
and beverage services in the theme parks.

For the purpose of assessing the performance
of the operating segments and allocating
resources between segments, the CODM
assess segment results without allocation of
other gains and losses, other income, gain/loss
on disposal of subsidiaries, share of results of
joint ventures, gain/loss on extinguishment of
convertible bonds, gain on modification of bonds
and convertible bonds, finance costs and certain
administrative expenses. The basis of preparing
such information is consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reporting
segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies as described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segments is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

development

5. DEER-&
TERAREE
AEBRARSESBEE>HERAR
XBEAIWHINWDT -
B Z2020F12A31BILEE

Property
Tourism park

and leasing operations Consolidated
MERRE e 35 4
rEE ®E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET
Revenue from external REMBEFZ
customers and segment KBARDE
revenue A 13,439 5,514 18,953
Reportable segment THREDEES
results (1,758,258) (19,330) (1,777,588)
Unallocated income and Ko BEWA R
expenses: fl X :
Other gains and losses HEmlzmkE i (213,291)
Other income H Uk & 16,888
Loss on disposal of HEMBAFZ
subsidiaries &5 18 (89)
Share of results of joint DIEEETEN
ventures E (238,433)
Gain on extinguishment of & &4 A # IR (& %
convertible bonds & 183,241
Gain on modification of BEESH AR
bonds and convertible K EH =
bonds 8,020
Administrative expenses THER (20,741)
Finance costs M%ER (116,959)
Loss before tax B % A &S 18 (2,158,952)
Income tax credit FrigiE e 356,812
Loss for the year FAEIE (1,802,140)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS - continued

5. 2HEBER-&

PEUARXE-&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31MB L FEE
Property
development  Tourism park
and leasing operations Consolidated
LR T 9% %2 &
rEE s Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Revenue from external RENEEFZ
customers and segment NS
revenue WA 101,779 18,219 119,998
Reportable segment AR ESBEER
results 43,047 (1,465) 41,5682
Unallocated income and R BEEA R
expenses: X
Other gains and losses HEmlhz N Es 18 (48,162)
Other income H 4 Uy 2= 26,492
Loss on disposal of HEMRBARZ
subsidiaries &5 18 (7,642)
Share of results of joint DEEETEN
ventures E (7653)
Loss on extinguishment of  #F $4 A] # A% & %
convertible bonds Z BB (1,623)
Administrative expenses TEREB R (36,964)
Finance costs B 7% &R (128,575)
Loss before tax B %1 Al B3 1B (162,545)
Income tax expense FigBiR X (38,626)
Loss for the year FRNEIE (201,171)

No analysis of segment assets and segment
liabilities is presented as such information is not
regularly provided to the CODM for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance

assessment.

BMEZ2INDBEERDBEABIN -
FRARYEFTHAIELERRE
REARIPEEREFERRZAH

B o
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. SEER-&

OTHER INFORMATION HiEw
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Property
development Tourism park

H Z£2020F128318 LFE

and leasing operations Unallocated Consolidated
MERRE MR 4R
rHEE EE RO @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TERT TR TER
Capital expenditures BEART
— Property, plantand — %% - BER
equipment B 30,585 " - 30,596
Depreciation nE
— Property, plantand — ¥ - BER
equipment B 2,547 132 - 2,679
— Right-of-use assets — FAEEE 1,330 1,877 3,427 6,634
— Loss on disposal of — H&EWE -
property plant and B R
equipment B 4 = = 4
Loss on disposal of HEFREEE
right-of-use assets (g — - 256 256
Impairment loss of mE - BERR
property, plant and (=D REN SR
equipment 114,189 - - 114,189
Impairment loss of BEPGENME
properties under HEEE
development for sale 1,376,811 - - 1,376,811
Impairment loss of TRAEEERE
right-of-use assets [ 16,302 = = 16,302
Impairment credit loss B 5 & E ftb f& I8
on trade and other HERERE
receivables w18 4,529 13,376 - 17,905
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. 2HERN-&
OTHER INFORMATION - continued HinER - &
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31MB L FEE
Property
development  Tourism park
and leasing operations Unallocated  Consolidated
MEER i g
kiEE =& PN Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET TAET
Capital expenditures BEARTH
— Property, plantand — ¥ BEXK
equipment B 58,872 354 = 59,226
Depreciation meE
— Property, plantand — ¥ BEXK
equipment =1 2,882 95 30 3,007
— Right-of-use assets — {FAEEE 1,321 1,770 4,375 7466
Loss on disposal of HEWE BE
property, plant and REEER
equipment 1,166 — — 1,166
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i 15 & R

The Group is principally engaged in properties
development and leasing and tourism park

operations in the PRC.

Information about the Group's revenue from
external customers is presented based on the
location at which the goods or services are
delivered or provided. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets is presented based
on the geographical location of the assets or

place of establishment.

AEBEXTERTEREDERRIE
ERIRBELEZE -

BERAKEIIBEFPRAZEMTIR
BRXNIREHRERIRBE MBI
BERAKBEERDEEZERIRIE
BEEMBUESIRIMEZY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. SEER-&

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION - continued i E R - &
The following table sets out information about TEREINEBRASEE RBINBE B
the geographical location of the Group's revenue WARERBEEMBMENER -

from external customers and non-current assets.

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
RENBEFHBA FARBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTER TR
The PRC H 18,953 119,998 2,975,465 3,047331
Hong Kong 5 B - — 2,623 4,010
18,593 119,998 2,978,088 3,051,341
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFER
There are three (2019: one) external customers H Z2020F12A31B EF E B =
individually contributing property development % (20195« —R)INEBE P A B & B
and leasing revenue of HK$11,793,000 (2019: ) ¥ 3R & & W A11,793,0000% 7T
HK$69,657,000), which over 10% of the total (20194F : 69,657,000/ JT) * 1 AN &
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 B AW A10% A £ -
December 2020.
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Customer A ZPA 7,445 =
Customer B =ZFB 2,515 —
Customer C =FEC 1,833 —
Customer D =FD —* 69,657
11,793 69,657
e This customer individually contributed less than e ZEPMHEANK AGRBEA DR
10% of total revenue. 10% -
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES HuWlzEkEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FER FET
Foreign exchange gains e X e (B1E)F5E
(losses), net 15,172 (31,304)
Provision for compensation B {& # 5 23 (43,776) (12,013)
Provision for litigation A E 23 (178,809) =
Provision for redundancy EMEE (935) =
Others H At (4,943) (4,845)
(213,291) (48,162)
FINANCE COSTS Mi%ER
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Interest expenses on: FEEM:
— Bank and other borrowings — RIT R HAME 371,426 303,533
— Convertible bonds and bonds — AJ#2 I &5 & & 5
(Note 26) (Bt 5£26) 109,347 108,118
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 662 570
Total borrowing costs BEERAESE 481,435 412,221
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised i B HFEWE -
in properties under TEREMER
development for sale, ERIEERbZ
investment properties BE KA
under construction and
construction in progress (364,476) (283,646)
116,959 128,575

The capitalisation rate used to determine

the amount of borrowing
capitalisation is 11.53% (2019

costs eligible for
0 12.0%).

AREBEERAERERELNEBERAK

& B2 B AR X ABE11.53% (20194F :

12.0%) °
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&Pt I IS R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &
8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. BRELAIE B
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Loss for the year has been arrived @ R E 1B &K (GTA)
at after charging (crediting): T & I8 1% i B
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BEEEN:
emoluments (Note 11)): (M 5E11))
Salaries and other benefits ek HMEA 36,700 46,453

Equity-settled share-based

RESBEARNASERT

payments E 2,777 8,818
Retirement benefit costs (note a) i K & F ok A& (M 3£ a) 515 4,381
39,992 59,652
Auditor's remuneration % 8RBl & 1,467 1,650
Cost of properties sold (note b) P 2 8 & A (B 3k b) 1,104 59,884
Depreciation of property, plant ME - -BERKETE
and equipment 2,679 3,007
Depreciation of right-of-use EREBENE
assets 6,634 7466
Loss on disposal of property, plant &M% - BE LR HE 2
and equipment &5 18 4 1,166
Loss on disposal of right-of-use  HEFEBEE ZEIE
assets 256 —
Gross rental income from WEWMEREGEHI KA
investment properties FERS] (11,969) (17.441)
Less: Direct operating expense, st AEERTHE R
as included in selling rEE A
expenses 2,583 3,524
(9,386) (13,917)

Notes:

During the year, the government of the
PRC granted reductions or exemptions from
retirement benefit scheme contributions to
certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC due to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Included in cost of properties sold are interest
expenses of approximately HK$65,000 (2019:
approximately HK$3,542,000).

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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REAN - BB KMECOVID-19%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

The taxation charged to profit or loss represents:

9.

Frig i (B %)X
R 25 40 B A BRI ¢

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET THET
Current tax EHHE
PRC Enterprise Income tax A B 2 TS #
("EIT") ([EmEHD 163 11,426
Land appreciation tax T i IEE R
("LAT") ([ EER] — 4,301
163 15,727
Deferred tax, including EIT  IEERIE » BIEDS%E
and LAT 8 & i 8 ER/H 27 (356,975) 22,899
(356,812) 38,626

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax had been
made as the Group did not have any assessable
profit from Hong Kong for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The income tax provision in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is calculated at
the Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

The provision of PRC LAT is estimated according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. LAT has been provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable exemptions and
deductions.

R E E20204F K2019F12 318 It F
B BHRAEEYESRTAELETW
JERBMEN MUY ERBFTBNESH
IR

EBAEETBHKBRRMNAAERE
BIOREE®WRBERE  REIEN
A 220204 N2019F12 A318 I+ &
EHAEREEMNEREGERBSHRE
25%ET & °

PR IR ER G IR ERETE
MBERMEABRABZREM - £
WIRERCRBEBRIRERETH
B#EE AEETARRELMBIER -
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

9, INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 9. FrEHRER)BAX—&
— continued
RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSES R IER X ¥ BR
2020 2019
2020F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT F#& T
Loss before tax RR Bt Al 5 18 (2,158,952) (162,545)
Income tax at applicable tax rate 1% i A fi R25% st & 2
of 25% (2019: 25%) Fr 18 % (20194F : 25%) (539,738) (40,637)
Tax effect of different tax rates TRAMEZME & (2,163) 7371
Tax effect of non-deductible AOMBAEI IR E
expenses 114,668 19,272
Tax effect of non-taxable income HZEZRTH W A 2 Fi 15 5 & (59,105) (3,132)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax RERDBEB B BEZE
losses 69,918 50,612
Tax effect of share of results of DIEEBLEXEE BB
joint ventures A 59,608 1,914
LAT + Hb 3B E B — 4,301
Tax effect of LAT THEER R BEEE - (1,075)
Tax (credit) charge for the year FABIEGER) X H (356,812) 38,626
10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
The board of directors does not recommend the EFESNEEREE2020F K20194F
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 12A3MBEFERMAEMEE -

December 2020 and 2019.
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1. EERBETHAEME
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the B EMNEQIOFE: ER)ESE
nine (2019: seven) directors were as follows: FEZMemT:
2020
2020%
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme  Share-based
Fees other benefits  contributions payments Total
HeR BRER DY)
we At A HELE HBHER H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THERL THERL TERL TERL

Executive directors  HTEE

Mr. Zhou Zheng Al xE
(Note 1.and 3)* (MR * 94 - - - 94
Mr. Zhou Jin Aext
(Note 2 and 3) (H3E2R3) 94 582 36 - 712
Mr. Yang Lei* BERE® 120 - - 193 313
Mr. Cao Rucang (Note 1) EME %4
(M3t1) 26 - - - 26
Mr. Zhao Zhitao (Note 4) AEE %4
(M3E4) 26 - - - 26
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Chen Guanglei BESEE 145 - - - 145
Mr. Meng Xiaosu hBEHLE 120 - - 58 178
Mr. Yang Buting BEERA 120 - - 58 178
Mr. Zhao Daxin HEAMEE 120 - - 58 178
865 582 36 367 1,850
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SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

1.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S . EBRESTHRAEME &
EMOLUMENTS - continued
2019
2019F
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme Share-based
Fees  other benefits contributions payments Total
2R RRET ARR 3 B
we AR A HEEE ERHAR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL FEL TAL TAT
Executive directors ~ HTEES
Mr. Zhou Zheng A L&

(Note 1)* (M) 120 - - - 120
Mr. Yang Lei* BELE® 120 - - 371 491
Non-executive FHUTEE

director
Mr. Lam Yu Yee, MREEE

Benjamin (Note 5) GiE) 48 1,000 2 = 1,050
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Chen Guanglei BRESLE

[Note 6) GED) — — — — —
Mr. Li Chak Hung FEERE

(Note 6) (M &6) 141 - - - 141
Mr. Meng Xiaosu ARHLE 120 — — 11 231
Mr. Yang Buting BEEEE 120 - - 11 231
Mr. Zhao Daxin BAHEE 120 - - m 231

789 1,000 2 704 2,495
& Certain executive directors received RE Z2020%F X2019412 318 1+

emoluments from a related company of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, in respect of their services to a
larger group which including the Group. No
apportionment has been made as the qualifying
services provided by directors to the Group are
incidental to their responsibilities to the larger
group. The related company is wholly-owned
by the immediate family members of Mr. Zhou

Zheng.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

FE ETHOTEEHRRNEZYE
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS — continued

Notes:

(1)

Mr. Zhou Zheng resigned with effective from
12 October 2020 and Mr. Cao Rucang was
appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effective from 12 October 2020.
Mr Cao resigned his position with effective
from 5 March 2021.

Ms. Zhou Jin was appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effective from 2
January 2020. She resigned her position on 12
October 2020 and was re-appointed on 5 March
2021.

Mr. Zhou Zheng resigned with effective from 2
January 2020 and Ms. Zhou Jin was appointed
as chief executive officer of the Company on 2
January 2020. Ms. Zhou resigned her position
on 12 October 2020.

Mr. Zhao Zhitao was appointed as an executive
director and chief executive officer of the
Company with effective from 12 October 2020.
He resigned his position on 5 February 2021.

Mr. Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin was re-designated
as a non-executive director of the Company
with effective from 1 January 2019 and he
resigned his position on 24 May 2019.

Mr. Li Chak Hung resigned and Mr. Chen
Guanglei was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with
effective from 20 December 2019.

EERBETHRAEME -&

A 5t £ B2020F 1081268 #£ B &
£ & WA 5% EE2020F10A12
AREZTARARZHITES -
EMA A E202143A50 B E &
EZBEAL -

A&+ H2020F1A2B L EZ T
BARNRZHITES - H1KR2020F
10128 E B E B AL+ 30 702021
FIACREHERT -

B B % A B2020F1 A28 £ B B
£ mMA®ZTR2020F1 728 %
ZEBERABZITBES - B+
M2020F10A12AE B R B L -

&8 E % 4 B20204F10 8128 #E &
ZEEARRRZHATEZRITHA
£ oo MR20215E2 AR BB

i -

MR 55 A B2019F1A1B D A
EARRABFENITE F W R20194F5
A48 B EZ B AL -

FTERALEEBRIRRES L L
DERTAARNRBYIENITES -
H201912 820 £ &% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

1.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS - continued

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no emolument was paid by the Group to
any director as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any
emolument during both years.

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The directors are of the opinion that no
transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Company's
business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director or a connected entity of the
director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the reporting
period or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, except for the details
as disclosed in note 39, if appropriate.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

1.

EERBSITTHRAEME -&

R E 220205 K 2019128318 It F
B AEBEBMERTANESESINEMN
B & 15 & A0 A 2K & B o a0 A 7K £ B B
MBS IE AR EE - RRESE -
MEEEWETAME -

R E £2020%F 2019128318 1FF
B BMEITVIGEEUNEEATHA
ZAMER EEFSHMZS -

BEERAE ARRBET Y HADQT
E¥BEEN—RESTHAEE 2 HE
BEREESHENREFBEEEX
B BN BMEPARKEE2020F &
201912 A318 IF F F R T ] B i 17
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 12.

EMOLUMENTS

During the year, one (2019: one) director is
included in the five highest paid individuals of
the Group. Details of directors’ emoluments
are set out in note 11 above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2019: four) highest paid
individuals for the year were as follows:

REFAL

FA AEBREAESFHFAITHR—F
2019F : —R)BRESZ - EE2M e
HEHEHNLEXH T - EREATNE
019F - mMA)EeHFALTZH & W
T

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T#ET

Salaries and other benefits FekHEMEF 3,673 3,800
Retirement benefits scheme RARTE T ET &5

contributions 6 139

3,679 3,939

The emoluments of the above four (2019: four)
highest paid individual fell within the following
bands:

A FmAQ09F: MA) &R #H AL
ZBENFUATHE:

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
20205 20194
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7Tt &
1,500,000 7T 2 1
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the above four (2019: four)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

FA - AEBALER A EEMOAR
(2019%F : MB) ZEFA LML -
EBMAREBINMAREEKZ
R NBERME -
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

13. LOSS PER SHARE

13.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

FRER
ARAFEAEABESRERRBER
MR TH B E

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Loss |-
Loss for the year attributable to ~ FAIMNFTESRE AR #5
owners of the Company forthe BB Z AKQARHH AEMN
purpose of basic and diluted FRNEE
loss per share (1,765,132) (199,812)
2020 2019
20204 20194
‘000 ‘000
F B T 1%
Number of shares B EE
Weighted average number of RAHESRERAREFEE
shares for the purpose of basic B2 RG5O MmEFHE
and diluted loss per share 285,491 285,491
2020 2019
20204 20194
Loss per share: BRESR:
— Basic — &K (HK$6.1828)  (HK$0.6999)
(6.1828% jt) (0.6999/%5 7r)
— Diluted — B (HK$6.1828)  (HK$0.6999)
(6.1828% jt) (0.6999/% Jr)
Note: B 5 -

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 did not assume
the conversion of the Company's Convertible Bonds
| and Il since its assumed exercise would result in

decrease in loss per share.

It also did not assume the exercise of share options
under the Company’s share option scheme since its
assumed exercise would have anti dilutive effect for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT . W% BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold and office equipment Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements equipment  and software vehicles in progress Total
B 2ER ERZSG
B HENELE  BAERE k&t RE HRIR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR AR TEn TAn AL AR TARL
COST 72
At 1 January 2019 #2019F1818 26,609 125 4,071 1,883 2,292 207465 242,445
Additions RE 8,080 - 653 19 636 49,238 59,226
Disposals it & = = (236) (406) (1,284) = (1,926)
Exchange realignment EREE (753) - 84) (40) (54) (2,348) (3.279)
At31 December 2019 and 52019124318 &

1 January 2020 202051518 34,436 125 4,404 1,556 1,590 254,355 296,466
Additions RE - - 25 4 - 30,567 30,596
Disposals ik - - (14) (20) - - (34)
Exchange realignment EiAZ 2,221 - 241 102 134 13,968 16,672
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 36,663 125 4,656 1,642 1,724 298,890 343,700
ACCUMULATED ZHAER

DEPRECIATION AND HEEE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January 2019 #2019%1A1R 2,275 125 3,036 662 1,026 - 1124
Depreciation ik 1721 - 406 352 528 - 3,007
Eliminated on disposals ~ (HEEH & - - (13) (123) (259) - (395)
Exchange realignment EHEE (83) = 62) 20 (25) = (190)
At31 December 2019and ~ #2019512A318 &

1 January 2020 2020F1818 3913 125 3,367 8N 1,210 - 9,546
Depreciation i3 1,705 - 352 273 349 = 2,679
Impairment loss HEER - - - - - 114,189 114,189
Eliminated on disposals LERHH - - (10) (20) - - (30)
Exchange realignment ERHE 355 = 192 172 91 6,515 7225
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 5973 125 3,901 1,196 1,710 120,704 133,609
NET CARRYING AMOUNT B % &

At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318 30,690 - 755 446 14 178,186 210,091
At 31 December 2019 20198128318 30,523 - 1,037 685 320 254,355 286,920
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— continued
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

In view of recording a loss in property
development and leasing segment, delay of
construction works due to disputes under
construction contracts and borrowings, and
unfavourable market environment due to the
pandemic of COVID-19, the directors are of the
view that there is an indication of impairment
and have performed impairment assessment on
the recoverable amounts of the buildings and
construction in progress as at 31 December
2020 based on the valuation performed by CHFT
Advisory and Appraisal Ltd., an independent
professional qualified valuer (“CHFT"). The
recoverable amounts of the buildings and
construction in progress had been determined
using the multiple valuation techniques, including
residual approach and comparison approach.

The estimation of recoverable amount of
buildings by comparison approach is arrived
by comparison based on prices realised or
current asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties with similar size,
character and location are selected and analysed.
Unit market values of the comparable properties
are considered as the unobservable key inputs
of the valuation. The fair value hierarchy was
categorised as Level 3.

The estimation of recoverable amount of
construction in progress is derived using the
multiple valuation techniques, including residual
approach and comparison approach. Under the
residual approach, the independent professional
qualified valuer made reference to strata units
comparable as available in the market to arrive
the capital value of the property as if the
proposed development were completed and
also took into consideration the development
cost already spent and to be spent to reflect the
quality of the completed development.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— continued
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT - continued

Residual approach also involved an estimation
of the capital value of a proposed development
with reference to its development potential by
deducting costs and developer’s profit from
its estimated completed development cost.
Comparison approach consisted of comparisons
based on prices realised or current asking prices
of comparable properties.

As a result of the impairment assessment,
impairment loss amounting to approximately
HK$Nil (2019: Nil) and HK$114,189,000 (2019:
Nil) on the buildings and construction in progress
were recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2020 respectively.
Estimation of development costs not yet incurred
or contracted based on existing plans and
developer profit margin are considered as the
unobservable key inputs of the valuation. The fair
value hierarchy was categorised as Level 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
disposition of certain buildings of the Group, with
net carrying amounts amounting to approximately
HK$30,690,000 as at 31 December 2020, were
restricted according to the court orders due to
the defaults of repayment of several bank and
other borrowings. Details of the relevant legal
proceedings were set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged
certain of its property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately HK$92,477,000
(2019: approximately HK$54,539,000) to a
bank to secure borrowings obtained, details of
which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

14.

MK - BMERRE-&

AR R — &

RS BEENSI NS ERERRNE
NABFEREBE HTARKRMBFE
T3 f 7S AR A R B S e BB R
Mo BZHMERCERERAALL
BYMEMNRTELEOLBKAK -

BARES - B =2020F12A31H
tEE BFRERIREZRERIE
#9Z % (20194 : £) 114,189,000
BT (20194F « £8) DRI B R HER -
BERAHERAEIFBEERMGE R
REESBFTHNEERARE BE
ENETETAERGAHRE - 2AE
BEELWHA3ME -

H ZE2020F12A3BItFEE - A& B
ZETEFEHEXE TRITHERK
HtfExmI ARG SRHIEE - M
M2020F12A318 ' ZEEF2HEM|E
F{E 49 530,690,000 7T © HHEI AR

RARAZABEARAHY B HRERME
34 -

M2020F12A831H KN &£ E @\ — &
RITIHHE £ 584 A92,477,000%8 T
(20194 : 4954,539,000 )2 & T
M BELRFZHE BREDNEEEE
B BHEFBIARAHTERERMN
5F25 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&Pt I IS R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE 15. EAEEE HEAE
LIABILITIES

B E2020%F %2019F 128318 IFEE
EBUBHRELELFEI6HRAFERES
EMMEAENESHHEIMT:

The movements of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities within HKFRS 16 during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out
below:

Right-of-use assets

210

ERHEEE
Leasehold Land and Lease
lands buildings Total liabilities
HE+H IHREETF @ HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THEL FAET FAET
At the beginning of the RBEBNRHEE
reporting period upon I mE LA
adoption of HKFRS 16 £16% 14 50,913 10,167 61,080 (10,167)
Depreciation of right-of-use FRESENE
assets (1,321) (6,145) (7466) —
Interest expenses on lease MEEBBEMAEER
liabilities — = — (570)
Lease payments MERK — — — 6,544
Exchange realignment B X R (1,161) (12) (1,173) 50
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12 4318 &k
at 1 January 2020 202051818 48,431 4,010 52,441 (4,143)
Additions NE 850 8,536 9,386 (8,536)
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FAEEENE
assets (1,330) (5,304) (6,634) —
Impairment loss of right-of-use # A# & & &) (&
assets B (16,303) - (16,303) —
Disposal of right-of-use assets (HEFAEEE — (911) (911) 655
Interest expenses on lease HEERNFSER
liabilities — — — (662)
Lease payments HEMRK = = = 3,307
Exchange realignment BHAE 2,233 260 2,493 (390)
At 31 December 2020 20205125318 33,881 6,591 40,472 (9,769)
At 31 December 2019 ©®2019F12 4318
Current portion ok ) (4,143)
Non-current portion ERBID =
(4,143)
At 31 December 2020 20205128318
Current portion mEan (5,939)
Non-current portion eI (3,830)
(9,769)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE
LIABILITIES - continued
THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The leasehold lands of approximately
HK$33,881,000 are situated in the PRC, which
are amortised over the lease period of 40 years.
At the end of the reporting period, the remaining
lease term of the lands were 36 years (2019: 37
years).

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

These leasehold lands were still under
development with relevant construction costs
and other direct costs capitalised as construction
in progress in property, plant and equipment. The
directors have performed impairment assessment
on the recoverable amount of the leasehold lands
together with the construction in progress as
at 31 December 2020 based on the valuation
performed by CHFT.

The estimation of recoverable amount of the
leasehold lands was arrived by comparison
approach which was with reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar lands
in the similar locations, conditions and usage.
Unit land prices per area are considered as the
unobservable key inputs of the valuation. The fair
value hierarchy was categorised as Level 3.

As a result, impairment loss amounting to
approximately HK$16,303,000 (2019: Nil) on the
leasehold lands was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group leases various office premises and
a theme park in the PRC for its daily operations
with fixed lease payment terms which were
classified as land and buildings. Lease terms
range from one to three years (2019: one to three
years).

15.

ERAEEE HEREBE-&

AEBEREAEA
#733,881,000/8 T 2 H & £ L 1 R
CHERA0FHEI B o N3RS
Kotz FeriHHI A36F (20194 -
37%F) °

BB

ZEREIHDAERES  BEREE
AR EMEERRNEER(CBYE -
MELRBREZERERIR BE=ZCRE
= 1T 2 (5 E ¥ 2020128318
E’ﬁﬂ T RAEZRTREZAAKE S E
HEITRERME -

HELHOATKREESEHISLEME
RERBEEUNBEU LI 2T ER
SEFBBALB A G - BELER
WERRSHEENTABEEIEH A
g  ARBEEEADEREZE -

Atk - # =2020F12 8318 It FE -
2 E 1 iR E & 18 916,303,000 7T
(2019¢ . ﬁ)ﬁé%ﬁg\ﬁnﬁgwu °

AEBERTHEEEZEAFEAEEE
NHREROBWAEDEUA R —EETE
ﬁ“lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘%@ HoBEAR L
BT - BN T —Z2=%F(2019%:
—E=F)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE 15. ERAEEE HESE &
LIABILITIES - continued
COVID-19-RELATED RENT CONCESSIONS E2 37 & 53 AR %5 &= (COVID-19) 1B BV
SER
No rent concessions in respect of the Group's H E2020F12A31BItFEE » K&EH
operating leases were received during the year WERINEHELCEHENHESER -
ended 31 December 2020.
RESTRICTIONS OR COVENANTS PR 5 = 22 5%
Most of the leases impose a restriction that, REHHEEmMBRE - BNERIEES
unless approval is obtained from the lessor, A E BDAFAEEEETHAR
the right-of-use asset can only be used by the SEER BASEZE FHEH KT
Group and the Group is prohibited from selling HEEE RPBEBEE LG R#
or pledging the underlying assets, except for RN e REBEBNMEBERBZEVEER
the right-of-use of the leasehold lands in the RiFgieiie TREELEREBY
PRC. The Group is also required to keep those EUNERBAMRERE o
properties in a good state of repair and return the
properties in their original condition at the end of
the lease.
The Group has recognised the following amounts REBEDRFEARERATRIA:
for the year:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Lease payments: HERK:
Short-term leases MHEE — 937
Total cash outflow for leases HMERSRH A 3,307 7,481

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
lease expense was charged to profit or loss
(2019: approximately HK$937,000).

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE 15. ERAEEE HEEEBE-&
LIABILITIES - continued
COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES — REHERE —FEAEREA
AS LESSEE
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had M2020F &2019F 128310 » A&
no commitment for short-term leases. I 4550 B B R E o
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the H E2020F12A3MBIEEE > A #E
disposition of certain right-of-use assets of the RBERTREMBEEER  BEZE
Group, with net carrying amount amounting to Stan % 0 AN 5 B R2020F12A31H R
approximately HK$6,960,000 as at 31 December M ¥ 18 & 46,960,000 T & T &
2020, was restricted according to the court AEEERFEE - HEZEEFHN
orders due to the defaults of repayment of HFEHRNAMHT KRR E34 -
several bank and other borrowings. Details of the
relevant legal proceedings were set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged M2020F12A318 A E E @\ — &
certain of its right-of-use assets amounting RITIK A E € % 4 A£33,881,000%
to approximately HK$33,881,000 (2019: 7L (20194 : 4948,431,000%8 7t) 2 &
approximately HK$48,431,000) to a bank to THEAEEE ABERBEBEER
secure borrowings obtained, details of which are W BRAFBEHNEHI KRR
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial 25 -
statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Fair value AREHE
At 1 January R1A1H 2,567,861 5,512,086
Additions NE 73,766 327904
Transferred to properties under EBREBEEFTEME
development for sale (note 1) (M7 = (3,228,360)
(Loss) Gain on fair value change REME N BEZSH
of investment properties (BHE) k= (194,149) 91,594
Exchange realignment & 5 38 & 162,191 (135,363)
At 31 December M12831H 2,609,669 2,567,861

Note 1: The transfer of properties from investment
properties to properties under development
for sale represents the project of COMB+
(Beijing Fangshan) (1 piece of land under
construction during the year ended 31
December 2019).

M1 BREVEERDEZZRDHF
EMEREBRALE+HAULRE
W) (& £2019F12831H IF F &

IR R L) -

Annual Report 2020 £,

213



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The Group's property interests held under leases
to earn rentals are measured using fair value
model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
disposition of certain investment properties of
the Group, with net carrying amount amounting
to approximately HK$2,228,982,000 as at 31
December 2020, was restricted according to the
court orders due to the defaults of repayment of
several bank and other borrowings. Details of the
relevant legal proceedings were set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
pledged all of its investment properties to
certain banks and financial institutions to secure
borrowings obtained therefrom, details of
which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The fair values of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
CHFT (2019: CHFT).

The Group engaged the independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation whom
the directors work closely to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The fair values of completed investment
properties as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were determined based on the income
approach. Income approach took into account
the current rents of the property interests
and the reversionary values of the properties,
and capitalised the existing tenancies in the
remaining tenancy terms into the term interest
and assembled it with the reversionary interest.

Fair values of the investment properties under
development as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were derived using the multiple valuation
techniques, including residual approach and
comparison approach. Under the residual
approach, the independent external valuer made
reference to strata units comparable as available
in the market to arrive the capital value of the
property as if the proposed development were
completed and also took into consideration
the development cost already spent and to be
spent to reflect the quality of the completed
development. Residual approach also involved
an estimation of the capital value of a proposed
development with reference to its development
potential by deducting costs and developer's
profit from its estimated completed development
cost. Comparison approach consisted of
comparisons based on prices realised or
current asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties of similar size, character
and location are selected and analysed.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

16.

REYE-&E

M20204F &2019F12A831H » E % T
WEMEZ ARBERBRAEERE °
WAEZTHEMERZ2REERSEY
¥ EREAE RHTHHBBEREA
EEXMLAETHANE THEFES

=
=S

TR AP EYEN2020F & 20194F12
B3BZAREBERBZEMHE RN
(BRIHAKEEELERLEEERETE - B
BRGEEL BYIIBEHEEMSE
MHELAENA B EEMINES
MEBAREBE BOBRELEEED
TR OMEREXHEBLHNERE
A URBERBRTIZEREBEEMNES
FABEEN SR ERTERER
BB OB EAEE AR ARH
BT B T8 R A AN RO BR A AR K B B
EmA e B EIMERDEIRER K
A EWENRTEHEMNLRAERK -
BELOWHAE BHERIUEBRUSN
A EE -

RAEVMEZAARBER  WENK
BEREAZSRERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties
are determined (in particular,
technigues and inputs used),
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value

as well as the

the valuation

measurements are categorised based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERER
IZRAEE

TRHEINEBEEXZSEREVELR
BEZTEZEMBFIZMERZ

A RRE R

REEFEZHARBENIBEREREE

REERERK -

16. REYXE-—E
fH (B 717 X A B
BARBEFESEZA
720205124318
Significant

unobservable inputs(s)

EXFTERRARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

TIRERAREROAEEZ BE

Investment properties Fair value

held by the Group hierarchy
MMER

AEEREZRENR Ed

The COMB+ (Beijing Fangshan) —  Level 3

Under construction
(Carrying amount;
HK$2,228,982,000) (2 pieces of

land completed)

BREL: (REIL)-ER £-E
(B 2208982000 7T)
(MECHITH)

216
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Income approach (term
and reversionary
approach)

The key inputs of income

approach are:

(1) Term yield:;

(2) Market unit rent of
individual unit;

(3) Reversionary yield:
and

(4) Level adjustment

RAZ(RHREE)

LONETT N ¢
¥
() BEREE:
(2 ERIEUMTHE
i g
B ERNEE: R
W EERE

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustments to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 5.25% for
retail, of 3.25% for office.

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 5.5% for retail and
3.5% for office.

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 55% to 70%
on specific level.

RBGER HRUEALENEEE
HERBRRENZRERD
%%ﬂZE@WAﬁWﬁZﬁW

TENEENY%  HAENEA
a%%

BUEE HRAELENELE
Fﬁfﬁ%ﬁiWA&Eﬁﬁﬁ

TEMERLL% BRENEA
&m

ASNEEEZEERE NTET
BEZ55%Z70% o

A slight increase in the term yield used
would result in a significant decrease
in the fair value of the investment
properties and vice versa.

A slight increase in the reversionary
yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties and vice versa.

An increase in the level adjustment
on individual floors used would
result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties by a lower percentage,
and vice versa.

WARARSLEEMS  HEEY
RENFAAEBEFEARTS
RZIR o

WEERERAERAS HeEy
RENELRBEFEABTR
RzMa

WAERHERBE L BERR
B HEERRENRAARE
HERREZANLKE R
?‘\\ 0



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 - continued

Investment properties
held by the Group

ARERRZRENZ

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERER
IERAYE

16. BEWE-

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

=
M

R2020512 8318 &

Significant
unobservable inputs(s)

EXFTREBALS

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

FTEREABEELARE BE

The Jiashan Project (Jiashan)
(Carrying amount:
HK$184,640,000)

(Under construction)

EZEH(EZ)
(EE: 184,640,000 )
(£8)

FHF

Multiple valuation
techniques:
Comparison approach
and residual approach

The key inputs of
residual approach are:
(1) Total development
cost to completion

(2) Expected
developer profit
margin

Comparison approach
The key input is:
(1) Unit land price per
area

SERERN LBE
RABEERR

HBBEEZNIRRA
gER:

() EHEREKE
QERREFNER

HRETERALRA:
(1) BfiERHE

Estimation of development costs not

yet incurred or contracted based on

existing development plans.

Estimation of developer profit margin.

Unit land price per area, using direct
market comparables and taking
into account of time, location and
individual factors such as size and

quantum of properties of RMB1,940/

sq.m.

BERARRAHEERAELAD

THORRMA

REBHAES -

ENABRE FRERTHTEL
FEARGRES  HHREGRE
Z fImENA I REE B
THRKARE40T »

Increase in the development costs
would result in a decrease in the
expected developer profit margin
and fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
Versa.

A significant increase in the expected
profit would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measured of
the investment properties and vice
Versa.

Aslight increase in the unit land price
would result in an increase in the
fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

YRAZEM NEEHRARERN
HEXRRENXAAEEFET
B R2HR:

RENEABANSEEHRENR
AABEFEARTR  RZHA -

WEMLENE  HEEHRENZ
RABEHELT R2MHA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 16. REWE-—&

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 - continued 20205123318 1&

Investment properties Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable

held by the Group hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs(s) input(s) to fair value

MEE  HERER

FEEEECRENE Ef IERARE EXFURER NS TIRERAHBEAABECBE

The Hengnan Project (Hengnan) Level 3 Comparison approach ~ Unit land price per area, using direct A slight increase in the unit land price
(Carrying amount: The key input is: market comparables and taking would result in an increase in the
HK$196,047000) (1) Unit land price per ~into account of time, location and fair value measurement of the
{Under construction) area individual factors such as size and investment properties, and vice

quantum of properties of RMB1,130/  versa.
SQ.m.

BHER (&) g-F PRETEGARER: EMERNE RREARTSTAL WEWHENE NeBHRENE
(BRTE1E - 196,0470007% 1) () BNERLE REARGRER tERENRA NABEFELH RZTH -
(£#) 2ofimnEHAIRES RE

TARARELI307T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 16. REWXE-&

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 2019512 A31H

Investment properties held by ~ Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable

the Group hierarchy  and key input(s) Significant unobservable inputs(s)  input(s) to fair value

MMEBE  HERER

ARELAZRENE ER EX1-DN ¢ EAFUBREALE TUBRRARBAMNERCRE

The COMB+ (Beijing Fangshan) Level 3 Income approach (term  Term yield, taking into account of A slight increase in the term yield used
— Under construction (Carrying and reversionary yield generated from comparable would result in a significant decrease
amount: HK$2,280,809,000] (2 approach) properties and adjustments to reflect in the fair value of the investment
pieces of land completed) the certainty of term income Secured  properties and vice versa.

and to be received, of 5.25% for
retail, of 3.5% for office.
The key inputs of income ~ Reversionary yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversionary
approach are: annual unit market rental income and ~ yield used would result in a
(1) Term yield; unit market value of the comparable  significant decrease in the fair value
(2) Market unit rent of ~ properties, of 5.5% for retail and measurement of the investment
individual unit; 3.5% for office. properties and vice versa.
(3) Reversionary yield:
and Level adjustment on individual floors of -~ An increase in the level adjustment
(4) Level adjustment the property range from 55% to 70% o individual floors used would
on specific level. result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties by a lower percentage,
and vice versa.

BREL: (tRRIL)-EE £-F WAE(BEESE) AHUEE FRTEUBNFEE HACAESREEMA HeEX
(R MfE:2,280,809,000%7T) ZUERERMENERERD RENFLABEARTH] k2
(REBERT L) BRBzEBRATELZRE TR

TENERSL% HAENER
3.5% ¢
WAENTEGARR RBUEE FRTEUBNEZE HARAEREREEMA Hegy
B FEUmAHNARENME .  RENERABMEFEARTH

(I BBKEE: ZENE Ao BAZNEA
ik

R -

Q) EHEGHTHRE  35%¢

g
B EERER: R BRWMEEECEERR NThE WAERHRBMIBERL/BERE
WEERE B Z55%Z70% « B EBRREANELAER

AEAREZAALKE R
# o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 - continued

Investment properties held by

the Group

AEEREZRENR

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERKE
IERARE

16. REWE -

=)
o=}

A2019F128318-&

Significant unobservable inputs(s)

EXTUREBARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

FURERABBADAEEZBE

The Jiashan Project (Jiashan)

(Carrying amount;
HK$150,605,000)
{Under construction)

B
D
S5
puns)
S
Dl

H{E - 150,605,000% )

Multiple valuation
techniques:
Comparison approach
and residual approach

The key inputs of
residual approach are:
(1) Total development
cost to completion

(2) Expected
developer profit
margin

Comparison approach
The key input is:
(1) Unit land price per
area

SEEERN: LB
RABEEE

NBBEZNIRGA
8ER:

() TREFRRA
QBEREENER

HRELEBARESR:
() EfEELE

Estimation of development costs not
yet incurred or contracted based on
existing development plans.

Estimation of developer profit margin.

Unit land price per area, using direct
market comparables and taking
into account of time, location and
individual factors such as size and
quantum of properties of RMB2,000/
Sq.m.

REARRRABEERAELAD
HEEE S

FEAHERE -

EfAENE FREZTHTVEL
BEARHEEE wEREHNE
Z fimnENAIREE BB
THKAR®2,0007

Increase in the development costs
would result in a decrease in the
expected developer profit margin
and fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
Versa.

A significant increase in the expected
profit would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measured of
the investment properties and vice
Versa.

A slight increase in the unit land price
would result in an increase in the
fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

SRENEN WEERRDBRERD
NEXRRENZAAEBEAET
B RZHHK

BANEARRMREERREANR
DRABEAEARTR R2HA -

WELERE  HEEHRENZ
MBEFELT RZKA-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 16. REWXE-&

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 - continued

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERER
IERAYE

R2019F12 8318 &

Significant unobservable inputs(s)

EXFTREBALS

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

TIRERARBANABECBE

Investment properties held by Fair value
the Group hierarchy
MMEE
FEEGECRENE ER
The Hengnan Project Level 3
(Hengnan) (Carrying amount:
HK$136,447.000)
(Under construction)
LEEER L) $-F
(B EE: 136447000 L)
(£2)

Comparison approach
The key input is:
(1) Unit land price per
area

HRETERALRA:
(1) BiEE%E

Investment properties transferred to
properties under development for sale

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
ERTR
EX1-DN ¢

Unit land price per area, using direct
market comparables and taking
into account of time, location and
individual factors such as size and
quantum of properties of RMB1,200/
sq.m.

BlABHE FREARTHTEL
SEARRER HERERNRE
ZoflnnghAIREE BE
THKARE2007 -

Aslight increase in the unit land price
would result in an increase in the
fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
Versa.

WEMLENE HeEHRENZ
AABEHELN R2HA-

BREZZRRPHEVRNRENR

Significant
unobservable inputs(s)

EXTTRERALE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

TUERBAHEROAEELRE

Investment properties Fair value
held by the Group hierarchy
MMEE

AEELAZRENE ER
The COMB+ (Beijing Fangshan) —  Level 3

Under construction

(Carrying amount;

HK$3,228,360,000) (1 piece of

land under construction)
BREE: (bREIL)-EE $-F

(M 3,208,360,000 7T)
(-BERLH)

Residual approach

The key inputs of
residual approach are:
(1) Total development
cost to completion

2) Expected
developer profit
margin

HBBEE

NRERAHIEUA
$EA:

M TREERKE
QBRBRIENER

Estimation of development costs not
yet incurred or contracted based on
existing development plans.

Estimation of developer profit margin.

RERBSRAHEIRAELAD
THHRRMA

REBHBERE -

Increase in the development costs
would result in a decrease in the
expected developer profit margin
and fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

A significant increase in the expected
profit would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measured of
the investment properties and vice
versa.

YRAZEM NEEHRAREAN
HEZRRENFOREEET
B R2MRe

RENEABENRCEHRENS
RRBEGEAETR  R2HA -

Annual Report 2020 £,

221



222

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

In estimating the fair value of the Group's
investment properties, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent professional qualified
valuer to perform the valuation of the Group's
investment properties. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs
can be derived from observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are
not available, the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. The
valuation techniques have been calibrated so that
at initial recognition, the result of the valuation
techniques is reconciled to the transaction price.
Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there
were no transfers of fair value measurement
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into and out of Level 3.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

16.

REMEZ-&
ERARARERENR 2 AREERS
AEEeEAAEERZTSAIERER
BE - -HMEAF—ENBARE K
SEEZRRBUEXAERMGLEMS
AEBZREVELETHRE A&KHE
REEZEMRAE _Eb A2E -
ARG ABEBABEEMS LT
BEERREES -HRBEF_ENEHA
B AEEUERBERE=ES
ABIE 2 AERM - AERMEES
BEERERVTZERSEHEERMAE
BREXZEMRR HEEAALEE
HREAES  MERNEFREEAH
ME)ZREA

RE E2020F12A831HIEEE - F—
BErRE_BZETEQALBEFEZ
EE O BTESEANBLEEEZRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REEDLEZRE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of investment, unlisted WEKA  JEE™ 1,411,516 1,355,195
Share of post-acquisition results G kBB 1% £ 4E &
and other comprehensive losses  H fth 2 [ &5 18 (202,630) (41,365)
1,208,886 1,313,830
Place of
establishment/ Class of Proportion of Proportion of voting Nature of
Name of joint venture operations shares held ownership interest rights held business
RELELRE RI/EEHY FHERHEH BEELA FsREELH XHUE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 2019% 2020  2019%
SkyOcean Real Estate (Tangshan) PRC Paid capital 42% 42% 50% 50%  Property
Co., Ltd ("SkyOcean Tangshan") development
RAME(BIL)ERAR il BRRA MERE
(TREEW])
TianMao Cultural Development  PRC Paid capital 51% 51% 51% 51%  Property
(Jiangyin) Co., Ltd ("TianMao") development
REXLER(IB)ERAR  HE BRRA NERE
(FN;2))
Notes: M &
(i) Upon the completion of the disposal on 15 (i) M2018%F11A16H & K & & 1% -

November 2018, the Group, through SkyOcean
International United Limited (“SkyOcean
United”), a subsidiary of which 82.35% interest
is held by the Group, held 51% equity interest B 1L51% % #E -
of SkyOcean Tangshan.

FEEZEBXRFEBEBHABERA
ARABEDCBEAEERE
82.35% MMM B AR FHERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

17.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
— continued

Notes: — continued

(ii)

(iii)

As stipulated in the articles of association of
SkyOcean Tangshan, the Group has the right
to appoint one out of two directors which
are responsible for making decisions of its
relevant activities and those decisions require
the unanimous consent of both directors. In
this regard, the Group's 42% effective equity
interest in SkyOcean Tangshan is accounted for
as a joint venture of the Group.

On 30 January 2019, SkyOcean Cultural
Development Company Limited (“SkyOcean
Cultural”), an
subsidiary of the Group, entered into an
agreement with Jinmao Suwan Corporate
Investment (Tianjin) Company Limited
(“Jinmao Investment”), an independent
third party, pursuant to which TianMao was
established as the key investment entity to
obtain a land in JiangSu and to undertake a
property development project. In accordance
with the agreement, TianMao is owned as
to 51% by SkyOcean Cultural and 49% by
Jinmao Investment, and as at 30 June 2019,
SkyOcean Cultural contributed RMB71,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$83,551,000)
in proportion of its equity interest in TianMao.
On 22 October 2019, SkyOcean Cultural further
contributed RMB30,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$33,958,000) in proportion of
its equity interest in TianMao. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, SkyOcean Cultural
has further contributed RMB51,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$56,321,000) in
aggregate in proportion of its equity interest in
TianMao. As the decisions about the relevant
activities of TianMao require the unanimous
consent of all shareholders, accordingly,
TianMao is accounted for as a joint venture of
the Group.

indirectly wholly-owned

The joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

17.

REE

tRZRE-&

Bt o - — 4

(ii)

(iii)

BERRDNERES AN Z
REARR ©

%

=]

#

0% % B LA 5 R B B PR ¢
AEBEESEREERDN— 4
FEEE AR B R
BARMAKEEMRE FN— HA
B RS - AEER R EL
142% B b2 0% A B A A % B 1
ABDE-

R2019%F1A308  AEB M E 2
EMBABIXEXLERERA
AIRAEXEDEBYE=ZF& X
HEReo®2ER(XKB)ARAA(S
BEEBDITSY—MiHaE - K
VAEREATERETRE  UE
BIk —EL RAZEYERE
HE - REHSE  RKEXBAXFEXE
HEE % EZRAEXKEERES
49% K 7% 201968308 © X
HENXIERERKREZ RELHEH
& AN R #71,400,0007T (B & » 4
83,551,000 Jt) o 120194108
228 RANXERER KK Z R#E
tE Bl 3 — 2 B A R#30,600, 000
7t (F8 & M 4933,958,0005 7T) °

H Z£2020F12A31H L F & - 3&#
XL E R KK 2 IR HE L f 3 —
SHEAHLARES1,000,0007T (48
B X #56,321,0008 L) e AR A
BAKHBEHN I RAETETE2 B
BRE—BRAE WAEAEALXK
EEMNEEDRE -

FaHy



17.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 17.

— continued

Summarised consolidated financial information
in respect of SkyOcean Tangshan is set out
below. The summarised consolidated financial
information below represents amounts shown

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

in SkyOcean Tangshan’s consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

REBLHEIRE-&

RABLMEHMBEMB R M
T-TXHHEGHBBERABRERR
BEEMBRELENRB IR FE
LWEHMBHRRFARZEHE -

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,240,655 1,093,867
Current assets mEE E 2,178,325 2,871,290
Current liabilities mRBAE 697,204 523,007
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 650,044 1,080,701
The above amounts of assets and i EE N BE S E
liabilities include the following: BRENATEIER:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 13,150 14,140
Gross amounts A8 58
Revenue WA 19,959 36,769
Loss for the year FANEE (421,153) (6,593)
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEE K= (EBE)
(loss) for the year 131,436 (53,495)
Total comprehensive loss for the F R4 A &8 2%
year (289,717) (60,088)
The Group's share of KEBED1E
Loss for the year FREE (214,788) (3,363)
Other comprehensive income FREMEE K E(BER)
(loss) for the year 67,032 (27,281)
Total comprehensive loss for the HF KRR & & 18 25
year (147,756) (30,644)

Reconciliation of the above consolidated financial
information to the carrying amount of the
interest in SkyOcean Tangshan recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

ERA BEB A R BN A OE B B B
PR 7 2 B K ¥ B L R 2% R 1A 1Y
& 55 -

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$000 HK$'000

FHE T FHETT

Net assets EEFE 2,071,732 2,361,449
The Group's share of net assets ARNEBDIEEE FE 1,056,583 1,204,339
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 1. REELE2KRE—E
— continued

Summarised financial information in respect
of TianMao is set out below. The summarised

ARENPBEHRBEZEINBAT - TX
MBEMGENBMEBRERETAMT

financial information below represents amounts MEEARBEZREVBRERFPAR
shown in TianMao's financial statements ZERE o
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Non-current assets FEREBEE 445 489
Current assets B & E 2,302,329 775,766
Current liabilities B aE (2,003,430) 561,567
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (713) =
The above amounts of assetsand Fit&EEN BE S
liabilities include the following: BENTEIE:
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBEEEY 421,571 38,130
Gross amounts AR
Revenue A — —
Loss for the year FREE (46,363) (8,409)
Other comprehensive income FREMEE K E(BE)
(loss) for the year 19,875 (7.314)
Total comprehensive loss for the FR# A 18 45
year (26,488) (15,723)
The Group's share of KEB DG
Loss for the year FAEE (23,645) (4,290)
Other comprehensive income FREMIZEE K= (BE)
(loss) for the year 10,136 (3,729)
Total comprehensive loss forthe FR4G A BB A%
year (13,509) (8,019)

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 1. REELEKRE-—E
— continued
Reconciliation of the above financial information LA BEERERAEHFMERERA
to the carrying amount of the interest in BRZRREZEZETDAEMNHEEK:
TianMao recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net assets BEEFE 298,631 214,688
The Group's share of net assets ARNEBDHEEZFE 152,303 109,491
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENTFOR 18. ERITESEYE SIS E

SALE/COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

As a result of management decision to change
the use of certain properties from leasing to
sale, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group transferred certain properties under
development under the project of COMB+
in Beijing Fangshan, previously classified as
investment properties, to properties under
development for sale. The Group has established
a comprehensive strategic plan for the sale of
these properties.

At 31 December 2019, such properties were
measured at fair value of approximately
HK$4,117,7562,000 with reference to valuation
carried by an independent external valuer,
CHFT, before the transfer to properties under
development for sale. Details of the valuation of
investment properties were set out in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

UES

HREEEBrAERE TYWENRASEAH
HEHRALE  REE2019F12H31
BEFE AEEBERFILBRE
HSEETWAETERSYE(LEA D
HAREBEVE I EBEREERFPEED
¥ - AEEEH T EE2EEMKE
A EZEWE -

R2019%12A31H - RE B =3 R &
BEVEZH ZEWELL2EB
THNBEEMES ZRFEHEERD
AIEENEEEZEAABEINE  AY
4,117,752,0008 7T » I E W E W {HE
HIEER AT EHRERMT6 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

18.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE - continued

In view of recording a loss in property
development and leasing segment, delay of
construction works due to disputes under
construction contracts and borrowings, and
unfavourable market environment due to the
pandemic of COVID-19, the directors are of the
view that there is an indication of impairment
and have performed impairment assessment
on the recoverable amounts of properties
under development for sale and completed
properties held for sale as at 31 December 2020
based on the valuation performed by CHFT.
The recoverable amounts of properties under
development for sale and completed properties
held for sale had been determined using the
multiple valuation techniques, including residual
approach and comparison approach.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The estimation of recoverable amount of
properties completed held for sale by comparison
approach is arrived by comparison based on
prices realised or current asking prices of
comparable properties. Comparable properties
of with similar size, character and location are
selected and analysed. Unit market values of
the comparable properties are considered as the
unobservable key inputs of the valuation. The fair
value hierarchy was categorised as Level 3.

The estimation of recoverable amount of
properties under development for sale is derived
using the multiple valuation techniques, including
residual approach and comparison approach.
Under the residual approach, the independent
professional qualified valuer made reference to
strata units comparable as available in the market
to arrive the capital value of the property as if
the proposed development were completed and
also took into consideration the development
cost already spent and to be spent to reflect the
quality of the completed development.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE - continued

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT — continued

Residual approach also involved an estimation
of the capital value of a proposed development
with reference to its development potential by
deducting costs and developer's profit from
its estimated completed development cost.
Comparison approach consisted of comparisons
based on prices realised or current asking
prices of comparable properties. Estimation of
development costs not yet incurred or contracted
based on existing plans and developer profit
margin are considered as the unobservable key
inputs of the valuation. The fair value hierarchy
was categorised as Level 3.

As a result of the impairment assessment,
impairment loss amounting to approximately
HK$1,376,811,000 (2019:Nil) on properties under
development for sale was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group’s properties under development for
sale are situated in the PRC. Included in the
amount are properties under development for
sale of approximately HK$3,784,469,000 (2019:
approximately HK$1,127,603,000) which are
not expected to be completed and available for
sale within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the disposition of certain properties under
development for sale and completed
properties held for sale of the Group, with net
carrying amount amounting to approximately
HK$3,013,367,000 and HK$300,991,000 as at 31
December 2020, was restricted according to the
court orders due to the defaults of repayment of
several bank and other borrowings. Details of the
relevant legal proceedings were set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

18.

BRERPHGEVE BCRIGFE
Y% — &

AR Rk — &

MHBEEENSIR2EREEROHE
RENGAEEAEE HARKMA
At B3R T3 R AR AR A0 R RS B R B
BaEd o WBUERMERCHERERN
AELBMENRTELENLRA
e RERBEHRABGEERREL
HORTHMBERKARFEEEMNEX
HERRERHEENTAIEEIER A
g 2RBEELABREREZ=E -

BERETEOER & E2020F
NANBLFE ZERFPFEVER
EE 18 491,376,811,00078 7T (20194F :
EIRBEPER -

AEEBRRPHFEVEMNRTH -ZEHE
BIEERPHFEWEL3,784,469,000%
7T (20194 : #91,127,603,000/87T) * &
STRREBRE+ —EARTE TR &
HIEE -

HE2020F12A831BIEEE - AR K
RREERETRITAEMEE  BRIEZE
bras < » ¥5E E A% B 72020912 A
31H B8R ¥ E 43,013,367,000/8 7t &
300,991,000 T HE TERFPHFE
MERERTHFEMEEMEBS - B
BEERF HBHRE MY B R
=B 5E34 o
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

18.

19.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENTFOR 18. ERETFEYWE TCRIFE
SALE/COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD L
FOR SALE - continued
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT - continued WAE L — &
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group R2020F K 2019F12H31H K&
pledged certain of its properties under EHEBEAETERIPHFEVWERD
development for sale and completed properties RITFEWMEDRNL3I,5630,114,000
held for sale amounting to approximately BT (20194 : 494,083,926,0007%8
HK$3,530,114,000 (2019: approximately Jt) %300,991,000/& 7T (20194 : 49
HK$4,083,926,000) and HK$300,991,000 (2019: 283,761,000 7T) ' s EH N & T
approximately HK$283,761,000) respectively, wMEMIFE25-
details of which are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWRIE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T T
Trade receivables B 5 I A 1,567 4,839
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEBBEEE (1,461) (6)
106 4,833

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the amount
represented lease receivables amounted to
approximately RMB89,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$106,000) and RMB4,335,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,833,000)
respectively.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses) by invoice date at the
end of the reporting is as follows:

R2020F X 2019F12A31H HHEE
WHREZ2BmI N ABARES9,000
7T (FHERL106,0008T) K AR
4,335,0007T (FEE 144,833,000/
JT) ©

REERR REZAHIINES
U FRBEFHKEEBERRB) KK
DM

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FH& T

Current to 90 days BENHER =90k 106 4,833

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no debtors
which are past due but not impaired.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables
are assessed individually for impairment
allowance based on the historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the end
of each reporting period, including time value of
money where appropriate.

Movements in allowance for credit loss:

19.

ESEWFIE - &
M20204F K&2019F12A318 * W& B
BMEIERBEZEBRER -

REZEWFTEMS  AEEERE
BHMBEHREERFIR 2BLEEE
HEREERERAEBERE - H
SREFTEDRBEEEEEFRL
BB EBRGEETENFG  XHE
BARERERE EBEBERARUARR
& E BRI MR K IE B R
FANFHIELRAR EEERER
E¥NKREER -

EEBRREZHOT

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET

At beginning of the reporting 7 ¥R &S H )
period (6) (6)
Increase in allowance 1 18 0 (1,382) -
Written off 1 54 6 —
Exchange realignment e X R (79) —
At end of the reporting period e =R N (1,461) (6)
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

20. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. HMEWNRE RERFANR

PREPAYMENTS b=}
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Consideration receivable from HEKRB QR Z EBWARE
disposal of subsidiaries - 65,982
Other receivables H fth FE W FRIR 22,132 17,384
Deposits b gcira 1,625 4,420
Prepayments B R IE 3,320 5,526
27,077 93,312
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEBEEE (17,466) —
9,611 93,312
The Group considers that the deposits and EARGERAERSHANEARRENEIT
other receivables have low credit risk based EEWNBEeREAARENRRBR
on the debtors’ strong capacity to meet their K KNEER ﬁ?ﬁé&ﬁmﬁﬁ%m
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term AEEKEERKR HEE=-ZFEEE
and low risk of default, except for the credit- ﬂfﬁZﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬂﬂl%\lﬁﬁﬁl\ CHEAOR
impaired other receivable from a third party, the BWRAEBEKR -He R EMEIKR
risk of default is considered to be significant. IEZ/DZTE?%NIHi‘iﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁflﬁgﬂéﬁi :
Impairment on deposits and other receivables WkMEFERNIBANRERR 8%
is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the HEER /W@Zﬁ1ﬂWHQUAI§5%9|\ 0
short maturities of the exposures, except for the HixzHBAEEBETE -
credit-impaired other receivable from a third party
which is measured on lifetime ECL.
Deposits and other receivables are assessed ReERHEMERRBBDREBAE
individually for impairment allowance based on EBBCR R EREETER T
the historical credit loss experience, adjusted for WIREBEEAFTAERZ  BEELEM
factors that are specific to the debtors, general MAR R EREAROEEMR IR
economic conditions and an assessment of both J"Ei :ﬁlJ MAEBRBFHIELRAE  £@
the current as well as the forecast direction of HEeREBNEHREE -

conditions at the end of each reporting period,
including time value of money where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS - continued

The management of the Group considers the
ECL of deposits and other receivables to be
insignificant, except for the credit-impaired
other receivables from third parties, for which
loss allowance had been provided for the whole
amount during the year.

The movements in allowance for credit losses
are as follows:

20.

Hih BRRKIE - HERBAK
H — ]
AEBEEBRA R RAMEY
FECEBEEBAYTEA 6%
=FHERERME 2 H iR RBR S -
HEBEBERENERAIE -

FEEBEEABEHNT

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET

At beginning of the reporting ¥R & H W)
period — —
Increase in allowance 5 12 B0 (16,523) —
Exchange realignment & 5 38 & (943) —
At end of the reporting period R EH R (17,466) =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

21.

OTHER NON-CURRENT/CURRENT

HitkRE, RBEE

ASSETS
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Prepayments for certain land use FAREEMEZE T+ it
rights for investment properties  {# Fl #& 2 78 (v 3k 18
(note ii) (B Ei) 117,629 110,240
Prepayments to a construction MEEABEENKE
contractor (note i) (B 5D - 32,846
Others H 227 1,033
Other non-current assets HtIERBEE 117,856 144,119
Prepayments to a construction M EABEBENKIEA
contractor (note i) (B 3ED - 9,149
Prepayments for certain land ARERTFEWHEZET
use rights for properties under T HE AR 2 TE RIB
development for sale (note ii) (Bt =Eii) 204,483 191,640
Prepayments for taxes IERNE 51,603 53,821
Others HA 1,309 557
Other current assets EMRs & E 257,395 255,167

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Prepayment to a contractor in relation to
the construction of investment properties
was recorded as other non-current assets.
Prepayment in relation to the construction of
properties for sales paid to a contractor was
recorded as other current assets.

Amounts represented the prepayment for
certain land use rights of pieces of land in
the PRC with the lease term between 40 and
70 years for the purpose of properties under
development for sale and investment properties
under development.

At 31 December 2020, included therein are
advance to certain local government authority
of approximately RMB271,102,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$322,112,000) (2019:
RMB270,802,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$301,880,000)), which is unsecured and
will be treated as the prepayment for acquiring
certain land use rights in the areas controlled by
such local government in the future. Advances
in relation to the land use rights for the purpose
of properties under development for sale were
recorded as other current assets. The amount is
expected to be recovered over 1 year.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

GEE

(ii)

REEREVENABEELDH
BNRBEARBEMIERDEE -
RREEFEVEINTAREZ
BENFREARSEMLRDEE -

DR BEBRERTHEEDER
BRPBREMEETPR LE
BEzEMSZE  BHEN T40F
ZET70F o

R2020%12A318 * ZEREEEM
BT HIBRBHAZBROARE
271,102,0007T (A8 & 7 49322,112,000
#70)(20194F « A R%270,802,0007T
(18 & 7 #7301,880,0005 7)) * A
KRB EERRARKERR
FEFAESE 2 EF L mE R
BrHEMNZE - AREEPFHEY
¥ L FERAEZBERARABEM
RBEE - ZREEFBR —F%
Y@ o
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held
by the Group and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less.

The range of effective interest rates of bank
balances at 31 December 2020 were 0.01% to
0.35% (2019: 0.01% to 0.30%) per annum.

At 31 December 2020, the withdrawal of
bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$13,005,000 (2019: Nil) was restricted
according to the court orders due to the
defaults of repayment of several bank and
other borrowings. Details of the relevant legal
proceedings were set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

22.

23.

RITERRAE
BITHBRRLOEREERBERS
REHHAAZBEARUNZEEE

o
/NI

MN2020F12 8310 RITHEHBZBEE
FREANF0.01% E0.35% (20194 :
N F0.01% F0.30%) °

72020128318 R K £ B &
ETROKEMEE  BREZXRS®
< v ¥R EUIR 17 82 B8 4913,005,0007%
JC (20194 ) E MR & - B X2
BrcaBane oty %@k
34 -

BEERHMENRERARM
|

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade and bill payables BN RERENEE 730,071 614,303
Other payables, accruals and HmEMKE - BRREK

deposits received B iz & 99,650 90,629

Provision for litigation (Note i) SR FA RS (B 3ED 189,116 =

Provision for compensation B 18 B (P RED

(Note ii) 58,977 12,013

Provision for redundancy TU B4R B 2N 1 989 -

1,078,803 716,945
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 23.

ACCRUALS - continued
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables by

EZRAEEARBERERR
H-E
RBEMK  REREABMEUINES

invoice date at the end of reporting period is as EAFERENERE ZRESTOT
follows:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
0-180 days 0Z2180K 110,498 158,682
181-365 days 1812 365K 27,719 119,382
Over 365 days i #®365K 591,854 336,239
730,071 614,303
The average credit period on purchase of goods KEEMR2THEERSR1208 (2019
is 120 days (2019: 120 days). F:1208) -
Notes: Bt 5 -

(i) The provision for litigation represented provision
made, other than the trade and other payables
already recognised, in relation to disputes
under construction contracts in respect of the
Group's various property development projects
and defaults of repayment of bank and other
borrowings. The provision was made based
on best estimation on the outcomes of the
disputes in consideration of the development
of negotiations with the creditors and advice
sought from the independent legal advisors
and internal legal counsel. Details of the legal
proceedings are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(ii) The provision for compensation represented
compensation to end customers of properties
sales due to late delivery of real estate
certificates in accordance with the sales and
purchase agreements. Additional provision
amounted to approximately HK$46,964,000
was recognised during the year. No such
amount was used and reversal during the year.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

(i)

(ii)

FABEBEREEAEEETY
¥R RBEBZREANUDRER
BEEERTREMEEMELSN
BE CHERNESREMENRK
BRI BEDIRBUDERD
BEMED  EPFAREEEA
EENERARMB I AZERN
EABEEBEESKNER - B
FEEFZABERAHT TR
M %34 -

HEERBERBEEERSE BT
BEXNEEZEEMRDEREE
MRHBEFIELMEE RERNE
SR8 N B 1 #4046,964,0008 7T °
FAMEFEARBEDZSE -



24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

CONTRACT LIABILITIES aHEaE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Property ) 2 348,901 284,389
Lease receivable fEWHE & 654 e
Tourism park service and other T % %4 = AR 7% K E fth AR 7
service 3,445 1,483
353,000 285,872
Note: M 5F -

(a)

The Group recognised the HKFRS 15 revenue-
related contract liabilities as the Group receives
payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sale
contracts. Payments are usually received in
advance of the performance of the contracts
which is mainly the sales of properties.

The revenue recognised related to carried-
forward contract liabilities during the year is as
follows:

(a)

HRAEERENDEHESD
hEEENRERB XA TP WM
R AEERRBEEN B RERE
AIFEBRZWABBENEE - 1
RBFEANNELNZETKA
Wal - MZzEENTIEREYEN

& o
=

FARRELEANABEARN
WAESRBEMT

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Revenue recognised that was sTAG R BEHEBRUWA
included in the contract MEIEE
liabilities: Sales of properties 1,374 84,338
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES - continued 24, EHERBE-E
Note: — continued B 5 — 48
(a) - continued (a) — 15
As at 31 December 2020, the transaction price R2020F128318  pEEHEYHE
allocated to the performance obligations that HEEENABTENEBHOR
are unsatisfied related to sales of properties is SERET:
as follows:
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET

Expected to be satisfied within R —FAET

one year - 284,389

Expected to be satisfied over EH—-F®ET
one year 348,901 —
348,901 284,389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25 HBITREMEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Secured/guaranteed BER/BER
Bank borrowings* (Note a) RITIEE* (M iEa) 347,535 3,133,255
Other borrowings (Note a and b)  E & & (M sFa K b) 3,884,260 849,779
4,231,795 3,983,034
Total borrowings are repayable as EEMAE 2 ERBERWOT
follows:
— Repayable immediate or — R —FRNEE
within one year 3,770,692 1,635,613
— Repavyable over 1 year and — — FBREMEANEE
within 2 years 461,103 1,430,467
— Repayable over 2 years and — WEBBREFREE
within 5 years — 916,954
4,231,795 3,983,034
Less: Amounts shown under BoOmBABEE TR
current liabilities T (3,770,692) (1,635,613)
Amounts shown under ERBEABEETINRZEEE
non-current liabilities 461,103 2,347421
Fixed rate borrowings EBEE 648,037 849,779
Floating rate borrowings FEEE 3,583,758 3,133,255
4,231,795 3,983,034
Bank and other borrowings LT EBFECRITR
denominated in: HEmEE:
— RMB — AR 4,231,795 3,983,034
J The bank loans carried variable interest rates e RITEFRIRN F7.33%27.58% (2019

ranging from 7.33% to 7.568 (2019: ranging from
6.36% to 7.48%) per annum and are repayable
immediately and in 2022 (2019: in 2022 to

2023).

F N F6.36% 2 7.48%) H) ¥ B) F 7|
REFE - AR R 720224 (2019
& 120226 F2023F)EIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25, SBITRHEMEE-E

— continued

Notes: B 5 -

(a) At 31 December 2020, the secured bank and (a) R2020F12A31H A& B 2 H K
other borrowings of the Group were secured by WETKEMEENDNUNEAEERS
certain assets of the Group as follows: TEEEER 30T

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment - BE &K E 92,477 54,539
Right-of-use assets FREEE 33,881 48,431
Properties under development BRYFEME
for sale 3,530,114 4,083,926
Investment properties "EYHE 2,609,669 2,567,861
Completed properties held BERTHFEWE
for sale 300,991 283,761
6,567,132 7,038,518
The bank and other borrowings were also jointly WITREMEETRBRBAKREEN
guaranteed by Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain RETEBALEREHER-

related parties.

(b) The details of secured and guaranteed other (b) AEEBZERBEREEREMEE
borrowings of the Group are as follows: == (N
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET

Loans from trust fund and assets KEEEES N EEETE

management companies (note i) A7 Z & & (M 5Ei) 3,602,050 333,509
Loans from immediate holding REEEZERARZER
company (note ii) iz 282,210 258,812
Loans from an independent third RE—ZBYE=H 2 ERX
party (note iii) (B &Eii) - 257,458
3,884,260 849,779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
— continued

Notes: — continued

(b) - continued

(i)

(ii)

At 31 December 2020, the loans from
trust fund and assets management
companies are secured by certain
property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$92,477,000
(2019: HK$54,539,000); properties
under development for sale of
approximately HK$3,1770,631,000
(2019: HK$222,294,000); right-
of-use assets of approximately
HK$26,920,000 (2019: HK$25,865,000);
completed properties held for sale
of approximately HK$300,991,000
(2019: Nil); and investment properties
of approximately HK$2,413,621,000
(2019: HK$150,605,000). These
loans are jointly guaranteed by Mr.
Zhou Zheng and SkyOcean Holdings
Company Limited, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by
Mr. Zhou Zheng. The loans carry
interest at 6.36% and 12.41% (2019:
12.13%) per annum and with amount
approximately HK$3,236,223,000,
HK$118,821,000 and HK$247,006,000
repayable immediately, within one
year and over one year respectively
(2019: approximately HK$333,509,000
repayable within one year).

At 31 December 2020, the loan
from SkyOcean Investment Holding
Limited (“SkyOcean Investment”), the
immediate holding company of the
Company which is beneficially owned
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. The
loan is secured by certain properties
under development for sale of
approximately HK$359,485,000 (2019:
HK$323,490,000), carries interest at
11.8% per annum and is repayable in
2022.

MisE: — &

L
— &

(i)

(ii)

RITREMEE-&

MN2020F12A31H %k H
ERAESREEEE QR
ZEFRBHUAT&EERKR:
#4992,477,000% 7T (2019
#£:54,539,00087T) 2
ETUE - BEEEE D
3,170,631,0008 7T (2019
£:222,294,00087T) 23
EREFEME 426,920,000
#7r (20194 : 25,865,000
BIL) ZERBEE D
300,991,000 7T (20194 :
D) ZERIHEME R
2,413,621,000% 7T (2019
#:150,605,0008 ) 2%
EWME - ZSERBHBREE
EXFEREEER AR (A
FARAEEREES0%
2R HAER -ZEE
IR EFEE.36%512.41%
(20194 :12.13%) #t 8 I
AHRIE - R—FREK—
F15EEH3,236,223,000
#JC118,821,000/8 TR
247,006,000t (2019
FAR—FRNEEYD
333,509,000/ 7T) °

M2020F12A318 K& @
MARBMERZERAF X
IR EERERAR (R
K& BAARAEESRAE
80% D) BB/ BRI A
359,485,000/ 7T (20194 :
323,490,000 7T) HE T3
BHREEYEERE RFEF
E11.8% B W BR20224F

g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
— continued

Notes: — continued
(b) — continued

(i) At 31 December 2019, the loan from an
independent third party was guaranteed
by Mr. Zhou Zheng and the Company,
and secured by 100% equity of
Dream€East (Jiangyin) Cultural Medium
Co. Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The loan
carries interest at 15.46% per annum
and was fully repaid during the year.

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

25. RITRHMEE-&

Bt — 4
(b) —#&

(iii)

20194128318 - K& H
mM—EZBILE=HEBZ
EXBRBABREERAEARQA
ERYBARAMEEZE
MEARZRAS(IE)XIE
BEHEABMR DG AI100% # =
EHEA - ZBERRFERNX
15.46% st B ¥ ZBREFER
BHEE -

26. IRRESFKES

2020 2019
20205 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i & TERL FAEL
Liability components BESS
Current ik
— RMB19,680,000 9.5% (2019: — AR 19,680,000
RMB19,680,000 9.5%) REFEIB%TE
convertible bonds (2019F : AR
19,680,0007C * & F
FIR9B%:2) 2
AR E S 26(a) 24,717 23,512
— HK$124,000,000 9.5% (2019: — 124,000,000/ ¢
HK$160,000,000 9.5%) REFEIS% S
bonds (20194 : 160,000,000
BT BEFIEIE%
ARIZEFR 26(a) 129,451 158,600
— HK$400,000,000 9.5% (2019: — 400,000,000/ 7T
HK$400,000,000 9.5%) BREMEIS%EE
bonds (20194 : 400,000,000
BT BEFIEILE%
ARIZESR 26(a) 412,864 396,763
— RMB450,000,000 5% (2019: — AR #450,000,0007T -
RMB450,000,000 zero BEFE5%E B
coupon) convertible bonds (2019F : AR
450,000,0007T -
ERR) 2B RESR 26(b) - 462,110
567,032 1,040,985
Non-current ERE
— RMB450,000,000 5% — AR #450,000,0007T -
convertible bonds BREFR5%:HE 2
AR & 5 26(b) 352,460 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 26, TEAREERES &
— continued
26(a) Convertible Bonds I, Bonds I, and Bonds |l 26(a) AIMRREHRI - BHIREFHI

On 12 November 2015, the Company issued
a two-year 8.5% secured convertible bonds
in an aggregate principal of RMB29,520,000
(the "Convertible Bonds 1”) to an independent
third party. In addition, the Company issued
a two-year 8.5% secured guaranteed bonds
in an aggregate principal of HK$270,000,000
(the "Bonds |") to the holder of the Convertible
Bonds | on the same date. The net proceeds
from issuance of the Convertibles Bonds |
and the Bonds | were used for the Group's
general working capital as well as mergers
and acquisitions by the Group. The Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | were jointly guaranteed
by director, Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain related
parties. Corporate guarantee was provided by
Beijing SkyOcean International Holdings Limited
(“Beijing SkyOcean Holdings”), a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng. The Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds
| were also secured by a charge over certain
number of the Company’s ordinary shares held
by SkyOcean Investment.

On 28 June 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with the holder of the
Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | to issue
three-year 8% secured guaranteed bonds in
an aggregate principal of HK$470,000,000
(the "Bonds I1"). The Bonds Il was jointly
guaranteed by director, Mr. Zhou Zheng and
certain related parties. Corporate guarantee
was provided by Beijing SkyOcean Holdings.
The Bonds Il was also secured by a charge
over certain number of the Company’s ordinary
shares held by SkyOcean Investment. Pursuant
to the subscription agreement, SkyOcean
Investment, being the holder of Convertible
Bonds Il (as defined in note 26(b) below),
charged over partial of the Convertible Bonds Il
(the “Charged Convertible Bonds II") in favour
of the holder of the Bonds II.

R2015F 11 A128 © A X & [ —
BBUE=ZFBOIASBEAA
R #29,520,0007T 9 W F H#§8.5%
EEBABRBRES((ATRRES
De ks RAAB > AAAMEA
BREFIBFAEABRTEAESLEAR
270,000,000/ ;L 8 W F #H38.56% &
EHRBERESH(ESHI] - F1T
TRREHRIREFIZAEREF
HAREAEBRZ—REEESMN
FBRAEEETZHBESTE-
EBREHFIRES BESTARE
ERETHEBALTHEBER 28
ERAILTRKXFRBIZERBRAG
(R XFEZER] —HaARE
EERHEES0% R Z AR R -
ARBREHFIREHFIMBRFRE
BAEMNETARLBREE 2
RAIEHEM -

2016467280 + & 2 @ H 7
BPREHFIKRBEHFIFAEATL
REWE UBTASEES
470,000,000/ 7T ) = F Hi8% &
EREBEERESFTERIN - BF
IHEERABRLERETHEBAL
HEER - 2RIERBIERKF
EREM EBHINBRFERER
ENETARRALEREKE 2L
B - BRERBEHE  RFRE
(BrllEEI (& 5T XM
260NHFBEANIUNBEBHFIFEART
EARBERELs>TBRBRESR (B
BRI ESHN]) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(a)

Convertible Bonds I, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued

On 28 June 2016, the Company reached an
agreement with the holder of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | to extend the maturity
date of Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds |
from 12 November 2017 to 30 June 2019. The
extension did not result in material financial
impact on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
holder of the Convertible Bonds | exercised
its right to convert certain Convertible Bonds
I, with principal of RMB9,840,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,000,000) into ordinary
shares of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
holder of the Bond Il with aggregate principal of
HK$70,000,000, exercised its right to redeem
the Bonds Il on hand in full.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
holder of the Bond | with aggregate principal of
HK$100,000,000 exercised its right to redeem
the Bonds | on hand in full.

On 27 August 2019, the Company reached an
agreement with the holder of the Convertible
Bonds I, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il to modify
their terms retrospectively effective from 1
July 2019. The modification include (i) extend
the maturity date of the three bonds from 30
June 2019 to 30 June 2020 with extension fee
of HK$8,910,000, representing 1.50% of the
outstanding principals; (ii) the Company redeem
the Bonds | with principal of HK$100,000,000
on 30 November 2019; and (iii) the coupon
rates of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds
| adjusted from 8.5% to 9.5% whereas that of
the Bonds Il adjusted from 8% to 9.5%; and (iv)
the conversion price of the Convertible Bonds
| adjusted from HK$12 per share to HK$7.2482
per share. On 30 November 2019, the Company
redeemed the Bonds | with principal of
HK$10,000,000.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

26.

R ESkES - &

26(a)

mKRES - BERIRESRI-E

2016467288 + & 4 A £ ] #
BEFIREFIFEANEKRZ
HaBRES REFIZEHAR
20174118120 & & Z2019%67
B0R - MY EHAKEEERE
RKRBHE -

REE2017F12A3MBIEFE - 7
BRBREFIFAEATEEENBEE
FoBmBEESR (FReBAEARE
9,840,000t (48 & » #12,000,000
BTN BBRARNQRLBER -

RE E2018F12A31B LFE - K
& #8 %8 /70,000,00078 T R & I
BEABTEEEFNUBZHEED
FENEHFI -

KRB E2019F12A31BIEFE - K
4 4 % /100,000,000 7T ® (& %
IFBABTEEERUEHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(a)

Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued

On 19 June 2020, the Company reached an
agreement with the holder of the Convertible
Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il to modify
their terms effective from 1 July 2020. The
modification include (i) extend the maturity date
of the three bonds from 30 June 2020 to 30
June 2021 with extension fee of HK$8,670,000,
representing 1.50% of the outstanding
principals; (ii) the Company redeem the Bonds
| with principal of HK$30,000,000 on 31 July
2020, HK$100,000,000 on 31 December 2020
and HK$24,000,000 on 30 June 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
holder of Bonds | with aggregate principal of
HK$36,000,000 exercised its right to demand
redemption of the Bonds | on hand in full.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds |
are as follows:

(i) Conversion right

Pursuant to the subscription agreement,
the holder of the Convertible Bonds |
has the right to convert all or any part of
the principal of the Convertible Bonds |
into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time from 12 November 2015 to the
maturity date at (i.e. 30 June 2021).

For the purpose of determining the
number of ordinary shares to be issued
on conversion of the Convertible Bonds
[, the principal of the Convertible Bonds
| to be converted shall be translated
from RMB to HK$ at exchange rate
of HK$1.2195:RMB1. The price at
which ordinary shares of the Company
will be issued upon conversion (the
“Conversion Price of Convertible Bonds
[") will initially be HK$12 per share, but
will be subject to adjustment which, in
the opinion of the directors, are all for
anti-dilutive purpose to protect the right
of the holder of the Convertible Bonds |.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(a)

Convertible Bonds I,

Bonds I, and Bonds Il

— continued

(ii)

(iii)

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted,
purchased and cancelled as provided
herein, the Company shall pay to each
holder of the Convertible Bonds I,
an aggregate price of (i) 100% of the
outstanding principal at maturity, (ii) all
accrued and unpaid interest in respect
of the Convertible Bonds |, if any, and
(iii) all other related outstanding payable
by the Company to the holder of the
Convertible Bonds I.

Convertible Bond Holder’'s Redemption
Rights for Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set
out in the agreements of the Convertible
Bonds | occurs, the holder of the
Convertible Bonds | may elect to require
the Company to redeem the outstanding
Convertible Bonds | in full in the amount
equivalent to the sum of (i) 100% of the
outstanding principal of the Convertible
Bonds I, (ii) all accrued and unpaid
interest in respect of such Convertible
Bonds | and unpaid default interest in
respect of such Convertible Bonds |,
if any, (iii) a premium as set out in the
agreements of the Convertible Bonds
| and (iv) all other related outstanding
payable by the Company to the holder of
such Convertible Bonds I.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued

26(a) Convertible Bonds I, Bonds |, and Bonds Il

— continued

(i) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

The details of the redemption of the
Bonds | and the Bonds Il are as follows:

(1

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed,
purchased and cancelled,
the Company shall pay to the
holder of the Bonds | and the
Bonds Il on the maturity date,
an aggregate price of (i) 100%
of the outstanding principal at
maturity, (ii) all accrued and
unpaid interest in respect of the
bonds, if any, and (iii) all other
related outstanding payable by
the Company to the holder of the
Bonds | and Bonds II.

Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default

Should any of the events of
default set out in the agreements
of the Bonds | and Bonds Il
occurs, the holder of the Bonds |
and Bonds Il may elect to require
the Company to redeem the
Bonds | and Bonds Il in full in an
amount equivalent to the sum
of (i) 100% of the outstanding
principal of the Bonds | and
Bonds II, (ii) all accrued and
unpaid interest in respect of
the Bonds | and Bonds Il and
unpaid default interest accrued
in respect of the Bonds | and
Bonds Il, if any, (iii) a premium as
set out in the agreements of the
Bonds | and Bonds II, and (iv) all
other related outstanding payable
by the Company to the holder of
such Bonds | and Bonds II.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued

26(a) Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued
(iii) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption

Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds I, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il

The amendment of mandatory
early redemption of the
Convertible Bonds |, the
Bonds | and the Bonds Il as
mentioned below are mainly
in relation to the change of
calculation of Total Security
Value (as defined below).
Pursuant to the subscription
agreements, if in any trading
day during the remaining term
of the Convertible Bonds [, the
Bonds | and the Bonds I, the
total security value, which is
calculated as the sum of below
items (a) and (b) (the "“Total
Security Value”):

(a) total share value of the
Company, which equals
to the closing price per
share of the Company
on such trading day
multiplied by the total
number of the shares
of the Company held in
the securities account
maintained with the
holders of the Convertible
Bonds [, the Bonds | and
the Bonds Il by SkyOcean
Investment; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued
26(a)

Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued

(i) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il — continued

(b)

charged Convertible
Bonds Il is less than 2
times of the aggregate
outstanding principal of
the Convertible Bonds
I, the Bonds | and the
Bonds Il, and SkyOcean
Investment elects not
to deposit such further
number of shares of the
Company in the aforesaid
securities account, the
Company shall redeem
such portion of the
outstanding principal of
the Convertible Bonds
I, the Bonds | and the
Bonds Il (the “Mandatory
Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the
Bonds | and the Bonds
[1”) in order to maintain
the Total Security Value
not lower than 2.5
times of the aggregate
outstanding principal of
the Convertible Bonds
I, the Bonds | and the
Bonds II.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued

26(a) Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued
(iii) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption

Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds I, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il — continued

The terms of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | were
negotiated with the holder
collectively and the issuance
of the Convertible Bonds | and
the Bonds | are inter-conditional
whereas the terms of the Bond
Il were negotiated with the
holder individually. The total
net proceeds received by the
Company from issuance of the
Bonds | and the Bonds Il were
measured at amortised costs by
applying effective interest rate
after taking into consideration
of respective transaction costs.
The net proceeds from the
Convertible Bonds | have been
allocated between a liability
component and an equity
component at initial recognition
as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued
26(a)

Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued

(i) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il — continued

(a)

Liability component
of the Convertible
Bonds | was initially
measured at fair value
by independent external
valuer using binomial
tree model, amounted
to approximately
RMB28,584,000
(equivalent to
approximately
HK$35,275,000),
which represent the
present value of the
contractually determined
stream of future cash
flows discounted at
the prevailing market
interest rate at that time
applicable to instrument
of comparable credit
status and providing
substantially the same
cash flow with the
Convertible Bonds |
and was subsequently
measured at amortised
cost by applying an
effective interest rate
after considering the
effect of the transaction
costs;

26. TRAREFKESF—E&

26(a)

MR ES - BRIRESI-E

i) A|MBRESHEARED
EhzEBERERN-&

(3)

BAIREERA B
BEH - EHFIRE
A&

(a) AR E 5
&8 & &85
2 VA
s B &D (£ A
T XBER
-/
BEE"
ROANRE
28,584,000
THEE R A
35,275,000
B TT) o &% B
DEDE B
KRR E IR
EUEEMR
R E ',
R LT
he ft A
P& % 148 [
BenE
TEEK
MR R 1T
A & Bk
# R E -
BEREZ
TE®R
BRBE
il
oA E

=

bR & &

o

b

g

*

B RS Z @

Annual Report 2020 £,

251



252

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued

26(a) Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued
(iii) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption

Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds I, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il — continued

(b)

In the opinion of the
directors, the economic
characteristics and risks
of the mandatory early
redemption option of
the Convertible Bonds
| are closely related to
the host debt contract
of the Convertible
Bonds |. Therefore, the
Company did not account
for the mandatory early
redemption option
separately; and

Equity component,
which is equal to the
difference between the
net proceeds of the
Convertible Bonds |
and the fair value of the
liability component of
the Convertible Bonds |
at issue date, amounted
to approximately
RMB84,000 (equivalent
to HK$103,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued
26(a)

Convertible Bonds |, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued

(i) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il — continued

As mentioned above, the holder
of the Bonds I, the Bonds Il and
the Convertible Bonds | agreed
to extend the maturity for 1 year
with effective from 1 July 2019.
As a result, the outstanding
amounts of the Bonds | and
the Bonds Il at 30 June 2019
were remeasured at amortised
costs by applying effective
interest rates (11.12%-11.18%)
after netting off the extension
costs of HK$8,550,000. On
the other hand, the liability
and equity components of
the old Convertible Bonds |
amounted to approximately
HK$21,949,000 and HK$68,000
were derecognised respectively
on 30 June 2019 with the liability
and equity components of the
extended Convertible Bonds
| amounted to approximately
HK$23,057,000 and HK$583,000
recognised respectively on 1
July 2019 with the difference
of approximately HK$1,623,000
together with extension cost of
HK$360,000 recognised to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued
26(a)

Convertible Bonds I, Bonds |, and Bonds Il
— continued

(iii) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

(3)

Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds I, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il — continued

During the year, the holder of
the Bonds |, the Bonds Il and
the Convertible Bonds | further
agreed to extend the maturity
for 1 year with effective from 1
July 2020 with the rest of the
terms remained unchanged.
As a result, the liability
components of the Bonds | and
the Bonds Il and Convertible
Bonds | at 30 June 2020 were
remeasured at amortised costs
by applying effective interest
rates (11.40%-12.30%) after
netting off the extension
costs of HK$8,670,000, with
the difference between the
remeasured and carrying
amounts of the Bonds | and the
Bonds Il and Convertible Bonds |
of approximately HK$8,020,000
in aggregate recognised to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 26, TEAREERES &
— continued
26(b) Convertible Bonds Il 26(b) AR ME I

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued
a five-year zero coupon convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal of RMB1,500,000,000
(the “Convertible Bonds 11") to SkyOcean
Investment. The issuance of the Convertible
Bonds Il were for the settlement of certain
amount payable by the Group to SkyOcean
Real Estate (Qian'an) Co., Ltd., a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng.

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il
at the date of issuance was approximately
RMB2,040,441,000, consisting of liability
component and equity component of
approximately RMB988,425,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,247,869,000) and
RMB1,052,016,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,328,152,000) respectively. The fair
value of the Convertible Bonds Il at the date
of issuance in excess of the amount due to
SkyOcean Real Estate (Qian'an) Co., Ltd., of
approximately RMB540,441,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$682,298,000) was
accounted for as deemed distribution to the
controlling shareholder of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 since the
debt restructuring above is a transaction with
shareholder of the Company.

On 28 October 2020, the Company reached an
agreement with the holder of the Convertible
Bonds Il to modify the terms with effective
from 10 December 2020. The modification
include (i) extend the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds Il from 23 December 2020 to
23 December 2025, (ii) the Existing Conversion
Price of HK$6.80 per Share will be adjusted to
the Revised Conversion Price of HK$2.00 per
Share; and (iii) the Convertible Bonds Il shall
bear interest from, and including the Effective
Date at the rate of 5% per annum of the
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds II, which is payable semi-annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(b)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il
at the date of extension was approximately
RMB450,000,000, consisting of liability
component and equity component of
approximately RMB294,086,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$340,232,000) and
RMB155,914,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$180,379,000) respectively.

The Convertible Bonds II, constitute general,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Company and rank pari passu
and rateably without preference equally with
all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Company.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds Il
are as follows:

(i) Conversion right

The holder of the Convertible Bonds Il
has the right to convert all or any part of
the principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds Il into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time from 24 December
2015 to 23 December 2025.

For the purpose of determining the
number of ordinary shares to be issued
on conversion of the Convertible
Bonds Il, the relevant principal of the
Convertible Bonds Il to be converted
shall be translated from RMB to HK$
at exchange rate of HK$1.1569:RMB1.
The price at which ordinary shares
of the Company will be issued upon
conversion (the “Conversion Price of
Convertible Bonds [1”) will initially be
HK$2 per share, but will be subject to
adjustment, which in the opinion of the
directors, are all for anti-dilutive purpose
to protect the right of the holders of the
Convertible Bonds II.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

26.

R ESkES - &

26(b)

BB ESI—&

AHEEFEIREREAEH ZA
A EE D B AR KA50,000,000
T RRABERORERZI S
o Bl # B A R #294,086,0007T
(# 2 K #340,232,000 T) &
A B #155,914,000t (M & B &
180,379,000/ 7T) °

ABEEFIBRARRZ K
AR BEWEGERERE T
BN E R R HRMA M EKR
AREREEFZERSEN L
BEERF -

HRBEEFIZEEZHERNAT:

(i) 1

ABBREARIZEAEAR
# B2015%12H248 #£ &
2025412 A23H B B &
AHMBREFIRSENDE
REMIBLBEARARR LB
A% o

REERTREESIES
REBTHTOEBRER
B BTEBZRHTHRRES
Iz B8 A% %15 121.1669
BLTRAREITERHA
REwERBELT REHKR
BHETETHARAER
Bz ER(ATBREERIZ
BREDBDTRER2E
T MR TFIARE - EER
RO BHARNDEARE
BB Y AR B AT R E 5
FBEANOERN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(b)

(ii)

(iii)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

Redemption

The Company may redeem at any time
before or upon the maturity date of
Convertible Bonds Il at 100% of all
or any part of the principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds Il in respect of
which the conversion rights have not
been exercised by the holder of the
Convertible Bonds II.

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default

Should any of the events of default
set out in the agreements of the
Convertible Bonds Il occurs, the holder
of the Convertible Bonds Il may elect
to require the Company to redeem the
outstanding Convertible Bonds Il in full.

26. TRAREFKESF—E&

26(b)

(ii)

(iii)

AR E - &

i

% 5]

EN/NSIEIDINEIE NS s e
Hi B sk 2 A BE B i A) AR
BEHFNATRBEERIFAE
INCEE SRS ¥ 8 Il
EHREMBOARSEDN
100% f& 8] °

TR ESFKEARED
=iz HE R

i 7T 38 AR B 55 11 16 6 PR 8 2
FREHNEMHZE ATk
BREFINFEHATREEZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(b)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

(iii)

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

The total net proceeds received by
the Company from the issue of the
Convertible Bonds Il have been split
between a liability component and an
equity component at initial recognition
as follows:

(1

Liability component is initially
measured at fair value
by independent external
valuer using the binomial
tree model, amounted to
approximately RMB988,425,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$1,247,869,000), which
represents the present value
of the contractually determined
stream of future cash flows
discounted at the prevailing
market interest rate at that time
applicable to instruments of
comparable credit status and
providing substantially the same
cash flows with the Convertible
Bonds Il and was subsequently
measured at amortised cost by
applying an effective interest
rate after considering the effect
of the transaction costs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued
26(b)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

(iii) Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

(2)

In the opinion of the directors,
the economic characteristics and
risks of the early redemption
option of the Convertible
Bonds Il are closely related to
the host debt contract of the
Convertible Bonds Il. Therefore,
the Company did not account
for the early redemption option
separately; and

Equity component, which is
equal to the difference between
the net proceeds of the
Convertible Bonds Il and the fair
value of the liability component
of the Convertible Bonds Il
at issue date, amounted to
approximately RMB155,914,000
(equivalent to HK$180,379,000).

26. TRAREFKESF—E&

26(b)

AR E - &

i) A|MBRESHEARED
EhzEBERERN-B

(2)

(3)

EERR REHE
[B] 7T 8 i (& 25 11 9 5
BREZEBRRER
[ B B2 A] R B B 5
IWBEBENEY
HE - Bt - ARF
W EEBTHIER
BEOEERE R

BRI BEERA
BEEEIIFER
BFEEAREE
FIIBERD N
TEHZAREE
MEFE BOARE
155,914,0007C (48
H7180,379,000/
JL) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(b)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

(iii)

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

As mentioned above, the holders of
the Convertible Bonds Il agreed to
extend the maturity for 5 year with
effective from 10 December 2020. As a
result, the outstanding amounts of the
Convertible Bonds Il at 10 December
2020 were remeasured at amortised
costs by applying effective interest
rates (i.e. 15.645%). On the other hand,
the liability and equity components of
the old Convertible Bonds Il amounted
to approximately HK$500,373,000 and
HK$398,285,000 respectively were
derecognised, with the liability and
equity components of the extended
Convertible Bonds Il amounted to
approximately HK$340,232,000
and HK$180,379,000 respectively
recognised. The difference of liability
components of the old and extended
Convertible Bonds Il amounted to
approximately HK$160,141,000 with
approximately HK$183,241,000 credited
to profit or loss, and approximately
HK$23,1700,000 debited to exchange
reserves respectively while the
difference of equity components of
the old and extended Convertible
Bonds Il amounted to approximately
HK$217,906,000 credited to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(b)

(iii)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

The estimate of fair value of the
extended Convertible Bonds Il was
calculated by the independent external
valuer using binomial option pricing
model. The significant assumptions and
inputs used in computing the fair value
are based on the management’s best
estimate. The fair value of the extended
Convertible Bonds Il is subject to the
fundamental limitations of the model
and the uncertainties of those significant
assumptions and inputs. Any change
to those assumptions and inputs may
result in changes in the fair value of the
convertible bonds.

Key assumptions and inputs adopted in
the valuation are listed below:

26. TRAREFKESF—E&

26(b)

(iii)

AR E - &

AEBRESFKEARED
EhzEBERERN-B

B NI ER A = 1B
N TEERGEDLE
EAEREHFINAARER
HE HEARBEBEA
FANEZRE NG AR
BLEREEBN &KEM
e BERERUTBRBRERIN
AREBEESZZELNER
REHAEZEEERER
BAHBOTHETERMY
2. ZERBRERE AHE
Ky {F fa] 2 B) ] A% 8 B ]
BREFAANBEELELS -

EEAEANTIERR
BABERIIMT -

Extended

Convertible

Bonds Il on

10 December

2020

R20205

12A10HEEZE R

ARREZN

Stock price (HK$) R E (BT 1.28
Exercise price (HK$) TEE BT 2
Expected volatility T HA R 18 81.988%
Risk-free rate o =, 8 R & 3.101
Dividend yield & B & 0%
Life of extended Convertible Bonds Il BIERATBRERES I ZFH 5

Annual Report 2020 £,

261



262

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

26(b)

Convertible Bonds Il — continued

(iii)

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption
Rights for Events of Default — continued

The liability component of the extended
Convertible Bonds Il was initially
measured at fair value at date of
extension (i.e. 10 December 2020)
and was subsequently measured
at amortised cost by applying an
effective interest rate 15.645%.
The equity component being the
difference between the fair value of
the Convertible Bonds Il, and the fair
value of the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds Il on 10 December
2020 was recognised accordingly.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

26.

R ESkES - &

26(b)

BB ESI—&

(iii)

HHRESFFHAEARED
EMhzEOEN-&

EREEABRBESRINEA
EI oY H R ER B H (A
2020512 A108) & A o B
BitEg BEEBERAER
F| #165.645% & B 4 K AN 51
BRI AUTBRKE
FlIWARBERETBRRKRE
FI W& E 3D 1K2020%12
AI10BWMRAREE 2B ZE
A TFUAER -



26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 26. TRAREFKESF—E&
— continued
The movements of the above bonds and L ESRATBREFAMEFE 2
convertible bonds for both years are set out SgH)H W
below:
Liability Liability

component of component of
Bonds | and Convertible Convertible

Bonds Il Bonds | Bonds Il Total
BHIR TRRESR TRRESHI
e || gEHS BEDS gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FEL FAEL
At 1 January 2019 R201941A18 663,360 22,624 435,206 1,121,190
Interest charged MEX 67,744 2,662 37712 108,118
Interest paid B FE (57,830) (2,438) — (60,268)
Redemption of Bonds | & [l & | (110,000) — — (110,000)
Transaction costs on ERUBBRESR

extension of convertible &5 2 X HH A&

bonds and bonds (8,550) (360) = (8,910)
Extension of the ERTRRES

Convertible Bonds | — 1,108 — 1,108
Exchange realignment R 639 (84) (10,808) (10,253)
At 31 December 2019 and 1201912 A318 &

1 January 2020 2020%F1A1H 555,363 23,512 462,110 1,040,985
Interest charged FBXE 65,164 3,044 41,139 109,347
Interest paid ERFE (26,346) (1,137) — (27483)
Redemption of Bonds | & Bl {& % (36,000) — — (36,000)
Transaction costs on ERABKRESR

extension of convertible EHZ X HH K

bonds and bonds (8,310) (360) = (8,670)
Extension of the Bonds ~ EREHI EEHIR

I, Bonds Il and AR ESR

Convertible Bonds | (7556) (464) = (8,020)
Extension of the ERABRES!

Convertible Bonds Il — — (183,241) (183,241)
Exchange realignment ME 5 % = 122 32,452 32,574
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 542,315 24,717 352,460 919,492
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 26, TERESRES &
— continued
The principal terms of the outstanding RBMEBKR RTFATBRRESNE
convertible bonds at the end of reporting period DEFRB T

is summarised below:

Convertible Bonds | Convertible Bonds Il
TERES TERESI
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020% 2019 2020% 2019
Principal % RMB19,680,000 RMB19,680,000  RMB450,000,000  RMB450,000,000

AE%19,680,000% A K%19,680,0007T AK¥450,000,0007 A K%450,000,0007

HK$24,000,000 HK$24,000,000 HK$520,610,000 HK$568, 125,000
24,000,000% 1t 24,000,0007% 10 520,610,008 ¢ 568,125,000/ .

Coupon rate 28 9.5% 9.5% 5% Nil
Z
Conversion price BRE HK$7.2482 HK$72482 HK$2.0 HK$6.8
124828 10 12482% T 2087 6.8 T
Maximum potential MEETEIRNDM 3,311,166 3,311,166 260,305,193 83,545,601
no. of shares 1o be 5E¥E
issued

2064  DreamEast Group Limited 25 5 &£ EHR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

DEFERRED TAX 27, EERIE
The movement for the year in the Group’s net AEEELEHEBEEEFERFACE
deferred tax liabilities was as follows: ER O INE
Fair value change on
investment properties
REMEZAREEEZS
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FH& T FHET
At beginning of the &5 B Y]
reporting period (513,649) (502,256)
Credited (Charge) to profit st AR (BEBZHFNR)
or loss (note) (Bt 3% 9 356,975 (22,899)
Exchange realignment P& X 3 % (13,410) 11,506
At the end of the RIEHK
reporting period (170,084) (513,649)
Note: M &

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$356,975,000 was
reversed during the year, of which HK$308,438,000
was related to write down of properties under
development for sale, previously transferred from

investment properties.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from:

iIE I 7 T8 B 5356,975,0008 T2 RN F A
B[ - H 308,438,000/ JT Jy £ Hifl B %t

AMIEREMEERIERTPEENEEH -

NTEBEEEZAERBERERAEE

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHB T THET

PRC income tax losses Hh B P 1S RS 1B 400,940 332,314
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

27.

DEFERRED TAX — continued

As it is not probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the unused tax losses
of the Group can be utilised, deferred tax assets
have not been recognised.

The expiry of unrecognised PRC income tax
losses is as follows:

217.

EERE — &

P 5 T A A Bt 7 R S A8 3R Bt U 7T A
RIS AR B 2 IR 2 R R
B BLA A5 1A - B3 A EE R OE T B
BAE -

AER2TEMSHEENZIHRE
mE

2020 2019

2020F 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H — 72,192
31 December 2021 2021512 A31H 45,431 42,620
31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 33,064 31,019
31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 98,298 92,216
31 December 2024 202412 A31H 100,483 94,267
31 December 2025 2025412 A31H 123,664 —
400,940 332,314

At 31 December 2020, the Group had tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$335,652,000 (2019: approximately
HK$335,652,000), subject to finalisation of the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Hong Kong subsidiaries.

No deferred tax liabilities for undistributed profits
of the PRC subsidiaries have been recognised
as directors are of the opinion that there is no
plan of dividend distribution out of the PRC
in the foreseeable future. At 31 December
2020, the aggregate undistributed profits
of the PRC subsidiaries was approximately
HK$1,010,600,000 (2019: approximately
HK$1,188,548,000) with corresponding
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities amounted to
HK$50,530,000 (2019: HK$59,427,000).
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA
2020 2019
2020% 2019
Number Number
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
ROHE THER R &R FTHEL
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of ~ RIREHT R K
the reporting period
Ordinary shares of BREEI10ET
HK$0.10 each LERk 3,000,000,000 300,000 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHR:
At beginning of the R EH
reporting period
Ordinary shares of BREEI10ET
HK$0.10 each LERk 285,490,845 28,550 285,490,845 28,550
At end of the REEHR
reporting period
Ordinary shares of BREBEI0E T
HK$0.10 each ZEBR 285,490,845 28,550 285,490,845 28,550
SHARE OPTION 29. BERE

The Group adopted a share option scheme on 29
November 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is (i)
to closely align the interests of the directors
and senior executives of the Company with the
Company's performance and strategic objectives,
so as to lay a foundation for the Company's
future development and maximise shareholder
value, and (ii) to attract, retain and motivate key
personnel to achieve the Company's strategic
objectives by providing them with compensation
that is as a whole competitive in the talent
market.

N & B R2018F 11 B298 £ 49 — 18 B
BRERTEI([EERREET S8 )) - AR
BEENFEARAESE RS AITHRA
EMAFEAQRARRBREKEZER
B AARRTRKERETAE
R REER A R(i)Rk3] -
BREBETEABERARARRZE
BEE ARARESREAT TS
FEEARFINME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

29.

SHARE OPTION - continued

The specific eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme ("Eligible Participants”) shall
be determined by the board of directors of
the Company (“Board of Directors”) at its sole
discretion, and such determination shall be
interpreted by the Board of Directors. Subject
to the discretion of the Board of directors, the
eligible participants shall belong to any of the
following classes:

(i) executive directors, independent non-
executive directors and senior executives
of the Company who are responsible
for the decision-making, operation
and management of the Company as
determined by the Board of Directors; and

(ii) any other groups or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute
to the development of the Group including
but not limited to the qualified persons.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board
of Directors is authorised by the general meeting
to exercise discretion in determining, among
others, the grant date, the eligible participants
under the Share Option Scheme and the quantity
of share options to be granted. The Board of
Directors has the authority to determine the
conditions for the eligible participants to be
granted the share options.

The option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time during their respective exercisable period
which would be determined and notified by the
Board of Directors to the grantee at the time of
making an offer.
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29.

Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

SHARE OPTION - continued 29.

4,928,676 share options with exercise price
HK$8.18 per share were granted to certain
directors and employees on 11 December 2018
(“Grant Date”). These share options with vesting
periods from 11 December 2018 to 10 December
2022 were exercisable from the end of each
vesting periods up to 29 November 2028.

(a) No share options were exercised during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, and no share options were granted
during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Details of the share options at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

B E— &

4,928,67617 & M # 201812 411

A& E B ZTHEESTRS18HE

TERTETESERES - ZZ5HER®E
55 B Hl A 82018F 12118 £2022

F12A108  ESFEBHEREESR

20284F 11 A29H /] ¥ 171{F

(a) #H 220204 K2019412A31H
EFEEMEBERERTE K
#H 220204 K2019412A31H
EFERER D ERE -

RBEMREREZFBTET

Exercise price

Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share Number of share options
REAH FBH TEH BRITHE BREHA
2020 2019
2020 2019
11 December 2018 11 December 2018 to 11 December 2019to  HK$8.18 740,845 902,905
10 December 2019 29 November 2028
2018F12A11A 2018F12A11AE 201912811 E 818 T
2019125108 2028%11729A
11 December 2018 11 December 2018 to 11 December 2020 to  HK$8.18 740,845 902,905
10 December 2020 29 November 2028
2018F12A11A 2018F12A11AE 202061211 E 818 T
2020%12 8108 2028%11A29H
11 December 2018 11 December 2018 to 11 December 2021 to  HK$8.18 740,845 902,904
10 December 2021 29 November 2028
2018F12A11A 2018F12A11AE 2021F12811BE 818 T
202112 4108 2028117290
11 December 2018 11 December 2018 to 11 December 2022 to  HK$8.18 740,844 902,904
10 December 2022 29 November 2028
2018F12A11A 2018F12A11AE 2022%12A1AE 818 T
2022128108 2028%11A29H
2,963,379 3,611,618
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

29. SHARE OPTION - continued

(b) The cost of the share options granted
were estimated using the Black-Scholes
model by independent external valuer with
the following parameters:

Share price at Grant Date HK$8.10

Exercise price HK$8.18
Fair value at Grant Date HK$3.55
Expected Option life 8.42 t0 8.91
years
Expected volatility 40%
Expected Dividend yield 0%

Risk-free interest rate based 1.939%
on the yields of the 2-year
Exchange Fund Notes

Total fair value of the share options at
Grant Date amounted to approximately
HK$17,472,000. The non-cash share-based
payments recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 are approximately
HK$2,777,000 (2019: HK$8,818,000).

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

(b)

B -E

SRl 3 g PN R RV
BEEMEBUAT28EMEN
o — TR AR A M A

BB ERRE 8.1078 7T
TEE 8.18/8 7T
BREBHAREE 3558 T
TEHBEREFSH 842%

8.914F
T8 B & 40%
TEEI R BoE 0%
ERMEHINEE 1.939%

ERBEEEERZ
& [ A =

RELAHERECAALEE
4858 49 517,472,000 T o B
B £2020F12A831H I & = #
REIER S ARG A EBN L
KK A2,777,00078 7T (20194 -
8,818,000 jT) °



29.

(c)

SHARE OPTION - continued 29, BRE-&
Details of the movement of the share (c) EREEBRECEBFBOT:
options granted is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z2020F12A31ALFE
Number of shares issuable under the share options
BREETTRANRERA
Reclassiication
Exercise Grant  ofcategory  Exercised  Forfeited
priceper 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period share 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
W05 EREH 005
£ L EE B E k8 SRORE 198 ERRE EFAR ERGE EARM 2BNA
Directors 11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2019 to HK$8.18 97750 - - - - 97750
10 December 2019 29 November 2028
f NI8E12A11R WIBENANAE WI9E1ANAE 818
20195128108 2028511A29A
11 December 2018 11 December 2018t 11 December 2020t0  HK$8.18 97751 - - - - 97751
10 December 2020 29 November 2028
W18E12A1A NIBE1ANAE NNE1ANBE 8.18% T
0205128108 0285115298
11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 202110 HK$8.18 97750 - - - - 97750
10 December 2021 29 Noverber 2028
N18E12A1A WIBENANRE W1ENANEE 81837
021%12A108 2028117298
11 December 2018 11 December 20180 11 December 2022 to HK$8.18 97750 - - - - 97750
10 December 2022 29 November 2028
01851281 N18E12R1RE N2ENANAE 8185
0225124108 028117298
391,001 - - - - 391,001
Employees 11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2019 to HK$8.18 805,155 - - - (162,060) 643,095
10 December 2019 29 November 2028
E8 NI8E12A11A WIBENANAE W9E12AN1AE 818ET
195127108 20285115298
11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2020t0  HK$8.18 805,154 - - - (162,059) 643,095
10 December 2020 29 Novernber 2028
018512818 WIBE12ANBE WNE12ANEE 818ET
20205128108 2028113298
11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2021 0 HK$8.18 805,154 - - - (162,060) 643,004
10 December 2021 29 November 2028
018%12A1A NI8E12ANAE NNENANAE 818
2021%12A108 2028113298
11 December 2018 11 December 2018t 11 December 202210 HK$818 805,154 - - - 162,060) 643,094
10 December 2022 29 November 2028
018%12A1A N18E12A1AZE NRENANAE ALY
0225124108 20285117298
3220617 - - - (648,239) 2572378
361,618 - - - (648,239) 2963379

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

The weighted average exercise
the share options is HK$8.18.

price of
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

29. SHARE OPTION - continued 29. fERRE-E
(c)  Details of the movement of the share (c) ERTERECEDFEN
options granted is as follows: — continued T -8
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31BILEE

Number of shares issuable under the share options
EREETARANROEE

Reclassification
Exercise Grant  ofcategory  Exercised Forfeited
priceper 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period share 2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
20195 EnEl 095
4] RirA® 5885 iiE shARE WWE  ERRE  ERRR EAAR EARK nhue
Directors 11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2019 o HK$8.18 113,185 - - - (15,435) 97750
10 December 2019 29 November 2028
1] 2018512818 018%12A11BZ 019%12A1182 8.18% 7
20195124108 2028117298
11 December 2018 11 December 2018to 11 December 2020t0  HKS818 113,185 - - - (15,434) 97751

10 December 2020 29 Novernber 2028

0185128118 WIBE12ANBE NNENANAE 8185 T
N20E124108 0285117298

11 December 2018 11 December 2018 to 11 December 202110 HKS8.18 113,184 - - - (15434) 97750
10 December 2021 29 November 2028

W8E1A11B WIEIANEE NNE12ANBE 818% 7
001%125108 2008% 117298

11 December 2018 11 December 2018to 11 December 2022t0  HKS8.18 113,184 - - - (15434) 97750
10 December 2022 29 Noverber 2028

20185124118 018812A18E NNENANAE 818ET
022512108 20285118298

452,738 - - - [61,737) 391,001
Employees 11 December 2018 11 December 2018t0 11 December 2019 to HKS8.18 1,111,268 - - - [306,113) 805,155
10 December 2019 29 Noverber 2028
] 20185128118 WIBENANAE WIENANAE 81857
95128108 2285115298
11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2020t0  HK$8.18 1,111,267 - - - 306,113) 805,154

10 December 2020 29 Novernber 2028

W8E128118 WIBEIANAZ NNF12ANAE 818% 7
2005128108 2028117298

11 December 2018 11 December 201810 11 December 2021 to HK$8.18 1,111,267 - - - 306,113) 805,154
10 December 2021 29 November 2028

2018512418 0181281182 NNE1RNRE 818 T
W1E128108 028117298

11 December 2018 11 December 2018to 11 December 202210 HKSB18 1,111,267 - - - 306,113) 805,154
10 December 2022 29 November 2028

2018512818 WIBENANEE N2ENANAE 818
022512108 20285117298

445069 = = - hmg e
4897807 - - — () 366
The weighted average exercise price of ERENIEFHTEERSISHETT °

the share options is HK$8.18.
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS/
MATURITY ANALYSIS OF
UNDISCOUNTED LEASE PAYMENTS
AS LESSOR

The investment properties held by the Group for
rental purpose have committed tenants for three
months to thirteen years of which majority are
with fixed rental.

These properties are exposed to residual value
risk. The lease contracts, as a result, impose a
restriction that, unless approval is obtained from
the Group as lessor, the properties can only
be used by the lessees. The lessees are also
required to keep the properties in a good state of
repair and return the properties in their original
condition at the end of the leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases and maturity analysis of
undiscounted lease payments:

30.

REHERRE RUERBEEN
e E by

EREEA
AEERBEEHERGZIRENEZ
HPAEMR=ZFEAZE+=F"H
PRI HEZHE /B EHEE °

ZEMEDEIGEERR - Bt
HMEGNEE —ERL @ BRIFEFSE
SEWEAEBRANILE  BTRIZSE
MERERABEAFER AHEAES
ZREVERRRITNHEESRE - I
FHEBRFERBREZDE -

R R A S AR R T A S
BRNRAFNE L ARREES
HERKBRAEN KO HE ST
o

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Year 1 14 18,411 28,652
Year 2 24 14,069 34,222
Year 3 3F 171 28,510
Year 4 49 — 16,206
Year 5 54 - 10,359
After year 5 54F 14 - 36,567
32,651 154,516
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

31. COMMITMENTS 31. &IE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T F& T
Development expenditure in THIEE 2ERAK:
respect of:
Investment properties "EME 552,126 603,725
Properties under development BRPOFEME
for sale 2,390,510 2,335,765
Property, plant and equipment V- BENEE 213,794 185,697
3,156,430 3,125,187
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. REAEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FE T
Mortgage loan guarantees AEBAEXFMIIBITIRM
provided by the Group to banks K IE B E R E R (M )
in favour of its customers (note) 258,002 269,954
Note: In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of Ma: EERA AEENTBERELD

the financial guarantee contracts of the Group
are insignificant at initial recognition, taking
into consideration the possibility of default by
the relevant buyers and, in case of default in
payments, the net realisable value of the related
properties can recover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principals together with
the accrued interest and penalty. The Group
measures loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9, and when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. No
provision has been made in these consolidated
financial statements for these guarantees.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

AABERVISERRLTERX -
THEBIHEBEEDERREANT
Bl URMEERBRNIE A
MYENTEBRFETTNEE
AREERBAENER ZRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF
Scheme at 5% (2019: 5%) of the employee’s
basic salary with the maximum contribution
of HK$1,500 per month (2019: HK$1,500
per month). The obligation of the Group with
respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the MPF Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme of HK$87,000
(2019: HK$187,000) are charged to profit or loss.

The employees of the Company’'s PRC
subsidiaries are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’'s PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their employees’ payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme which
are calculated based on 20% (2019: 20%) of
the employee’s basic salaries during the year.
The Group's contributions to the PRC retirement
benefits scheme of HK$428,000 (2019:
HK$4,194,000) are charged to profit or loss.

33.

EERAKER
AEEAEEMBEEERERES NS T
et ((HRESTE]D - BES
SFEIBREAEFE LB ST EEN M
BHUEATESHEEERER - &8
SHEMNEERAASEBEESHA ' &
BYSTHAZSNESES - RiE
Basralgny  BEEREESADH
EREBEKXFH S H5% (20194 : 5%)
MEESETEFHEHRK ®HAERA
& HA1,500/8 7T (20194 : & A1,500/8
L) AEBEHAESHENETLR
BIERBESTEELAME MR H
RN MR ARMBRRKREE &
MHOER - AEEMEESFTEHR
87,000, 7t (20194 : 187,000/ JT) E
BEEZME -

ARRIFBEMBARZEE AP HK
NEEZBERERBRKBEANGE 2
ME - ARAIHPBEMNEB AR EERE
B¥FezaTaEDHRAEBKEF S
H - UEZHRKERN - AXEEBH
BRRBHFE s E—BEEE  BiEZ
FFEIEHFTESRN e B IR E
BERFRNELRFH©220% (20194 :
20%) 5T & o A& B [+ B R K g
3T &l 1F 1 2 4 3428,000% 7T (2019
F:4,194,0008C)E BB &EBR

Annual Report 2020 £,

275



276

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

34.

LEGAL DISPUTES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group is subjected
to several legal claims in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$4,143.9 million, involving
(i) disputes under construction contracts of
approximately HK$501.5 million in respect of
its various property development projects;
(i) defaults of repayment of several bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$3,590.6
million; and (iii) other miscellaneous legal claims
of approximately HK$51.8 million, which arose
during the normal course of business.

In these legal proceedings, the Group has
received court orders to restrict the disposition
of certain investment properties, property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use asset, properties
under development for sale and properties held
for sale in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$5,5680.9 million and the withdrawal of bank
deposits of approximately HK$13.0 million as at
31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the assets of the
Group restricted for disposition or withdrawal by
the court orders are as follows:

34.

EE MU

MR2020F12831H AEBSRAET
ERBER ARESTHAL1439BE
B HRFBEOPrRELZ @AY EE
RIEEMNEZEESNAUH L ABS50157
BT IETROKEMEENE
KB A3,590.68 & 8 7T & (i)
HthZ 2P REBERNALIEEE
B ZEHREHRBEEBBES
EAE -

REZELZREFT  AEECDEESE
S - YR E N2020F12831H 4
BE#55809E B8 LA TREY
¥ -UE - BEEAXE FAEEE -
BRIAFEDEREELEDEUR
IREA13.08 8B LA R 1777 X6 N
BR ] o

A2020F12 A31H » N & B 1 % bt 48
SHRAEBERIEMMEENT

HK$'000

FERT

Property, plant and equipment S 30,690
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6,960
Properties under development for sale BREPHEME 3,013,367
Completed properties held for sale BERITHFEDE 300,991
Investment properties "EME 2,228,982
Bank balances RIT 4 88 13,005
5,593,995
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

LEGAL DISPUTES - continued

In the opinion of the directors, the claims made
by the construction contractors are mainly
related to construction works that did not meet
the required standards pursuant to the terms
of the construction contracts, the Group has
the right not to certify those construction work
claimed by the contractors. In addition, the
Group has already made or is in the process of
making counter claims for compensation from
the construction contractors for causing delay in
delivering of the properties to the end customers
of the Group.

The management has sought legal advice from
the independent legal advisors or internal legal
counsel on these legal proceedings and the
Group has provided construction cost liabilities
due to litigation amounted to approximately
HK$117.7 million as at 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil) in relation to the above mentioned
construction contracts under dispute.

Other outstanding claims that are subjected to
legal proceedings and/or appeal amounted to
approximately HK$3,642.5 million in aggregate.
For legal claims other then disputes under
construction contracts, provision for litigation
on other claims amounted to approximately
HK$61.1 million (2019: Nil) has been made in
the consolidated financial statements in respect
of these claims. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group has reasonable
ground to defense those legal claims and
consider that those legal claims would not result
in any material adverse effects on the financial
position of the Group.

34.

ARG &

EERA REROHELNBRE
BETHARE SRR E D
EMEETRAMN ~AEEGRER
REEAOERRNBETRENE
9 o U N - 7 % B E{E S IE T R i
RER RERTEAFEERKE
FPREMERRERDHRMN -

ERECRZEEERFTRAEILER
R AR EEERB R EEZER
M2020F12A31H  "EBEE 5 Lt
FEADHNEEESDFIRONIIE
BB IT(2019F : M)W KNS BOE
ERABIE -

FBREERRBER K EFHOHMH
RBRAROBERLEL B3,64258 8
BT e MIEEREANUDUAINGEER
RME BRMERELBERR A HY
BHRETPHHMPARFRFLEBELD
61.1B & BT (20195 &) - A A E
ERB AEEHBEENERAZSE
FERBRRREREE URAEZEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

34.

LEGAL DISPUTES - continued

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
the following litigations with some of its lenders:

(1)

BEIJING SKYOCEAN FOUNDATION
INVESTMENTS CO., LTD** (“BEIJING
SKYOCEAN")

On 10 January 2017, Beijing SkyOcean,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a loan
agreement with Hengfeng Bank Securities
Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch** (“Hengfeng
Bank"”), pursuant to which Hengfeng
Bank granted a term loan in the amount
of RMB2,800.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,327.0 million) to the
Beijing SkyOcean for a term of 5 years for
the purpose of financing the development
and construction cost of a parcel of land
in Fangshan District, Beijing, the PRC,
under the COMB+ project (the “Fangshan
Land and CIP"). The Fangshan Land was
charged to Hengfeng Bank as one of the
securities for the repayment of the loan.

On 28 February 2020, Beijing SkyOcean
was informed that all rights under the
loan and the relevant securities charged
were transferred from Hengfeng Bank to
Shandong Financial Assets Management
Securities Co., Ltd.** (“Shandong
Assets”).

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

34.

BEMG &
BA G B RR AT HAHEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

34. LEGAL DISPUTES - continued

(1)

BEIJING SKYOCEAN FOUNDATION
INVESTMENTS CO., LTD** (“BEIJING
SKYOCEAN") - continued

On 13 August 2020, Second Intermediate
People's Court of Beijing** (the “Beijing
Court”) issued an enforcement judgement,
pursuant to which it made an order that,
amongst other things, Shandong Assets
has the right to enforce the security of the
loan by auctioning or selling the Fangshan
Land and CIP and enjoy priority to the
proceeds of the auction or the sale (as the
case may be) ("Enforcement Judgement”).
SkyOcean Holding Group Co., Ltd.**, a
company beneficially owned as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng and being one of the
guarantors of the loan (the “Guarantor”),
applied to the Beijing Court for an order
that the Enforcement Judgement should
not be enforced, which was rejected by
the Beijing Court on 13 November 2020.

In December 2020, Beijing SkyOcean
was informed by Shandong Assets that
(i) it intended to enforce the security over
the Fangshan Land and CIP by putting
it on public auction (the “Auction”) in
satisfaction of the loan (the “"Enforcement
Action”); and (ii) an application has been
made to the Beijing Court for a valuation
of the Fangshan Land and CIP, which shall
be relied upon by Shandong Assets as the
base price of the Auction. Based on the
valuation report dated 2 December 2020
prepared by an independent professional
valuer employed by Shandong Assets, the
valuation of the Fangshan Land and CIP
as at 23 October 2020 was approximately
RMB2,798.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,325.3 million) (the
“Valuation”).

34. EEMB-E

(1)

ERRFEXREFRAT (M1
RRF])-#&

M2020F8A13H P R W E —
FRARZER(EREZRDE
BHBITHTE Bt EHE
SEPBRE)LEREERRE
BREXTER L L REZE
TRAEFPITEROEER
THABEREERBERTTE)
FrissIE=ZBEEE(HITE
ETED - RFEREEBFERA
AIERAD(—HEBRBBRLE
BB AOR EZ 2 AT A
BEXMERAZD)ERIER
ER BB ES IR B BITH
TE T E B K2020%F11813
Bt ZoEBR & | o

2020128 + kR K FE L
REEEHM WEBEEBAQ
FHRE(HMEDE L RE
TR 58 Bl E 1T % L A 3K
B EBE R ME (85 5
T8 RGi)E i ZKER
BERSEILTHREZIR
MEE EALREEE TN
EEEMNKE - BEMBAILE
EEZRENBIGEMRER
B H§ &2020%12 A28 0 4 &
HE BELUTHRERIRER
2020F10B823B M E L A A
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SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

34.

LEGAL DISPUTES - continued

(1)

BEIJING SKYOCEAN FOUNDATION
INVESTMENTS CO., LTD** (“BEIJING
SKYOCEAN") — continued

On 31 December 2020, Beijing SkyOcean
was in default of an outstanding principal
of approximately RMB2,510 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,982.3
million) and the accrued interest of
approximately RMB213.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$254.0
million).

On 13 January 2021, the Guarantor filed
an application to the Beijing Court to
object the Valuation (the “Application”),
and as informed by the Beijing Court
in early March 2021, the Beijing Court
has appointed Beijing Real Estate Valuer
and Land Valuer and Immovable Asset
Registration Agency Association**
to provide a professional technical
assessment (the “Assessment”) on the
merit of the Application.

The result of the Assessment was
released on 30 March 2021 and concluded
that the Application was without merit.
On 15 April 2021, the Beijing Court also
issued a notice to Beijing SkyOcean that
the Auction is scheduled to take place
at Alibaba Judicial Auction Network
Platform** (the"Platform”) of the Beijing
Court from 27 May 2021 to 28 May 2021.

Based on the information disclosed on the
Platform after the close of the Auction on
28 May 2021, no bid was received for the
Fangshan Land and CIP and the Auction
was unsuccessful.

As at 31 December 2020, the Fangshan
Land and CIP was recognised as
properties under development for sale
amounted to approximately HK$2,801
million.

The Company is in the process of
obtaining a new loan from an independent
financial institution for repayment of the
Shandong Asset’s loan and nothing is
concluded up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements.
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B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

34. LEGAL DISPUTES - continued

(2)

HUNAN DREAMEAST CULTURAL
DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.** (“"HUNAN
DREAMEAST")

On 15 May 2018, Hunan DreamEast
Cultural Development Co., Ltd.** (“Hunan
DreamEast”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into
a loan agreement with Bank of Beijing
Co., Ltd. Changsha Branch** (“Bank
of Beijing”), pursuant to which Bank of
Beijing granted a 5-years term loan in
the amount of approximately RMB320.0
million (equivalent to approximately
HK$364.8 million) to Hunan DreamEast for
the purpose of financing the development
and construction cost of a parcel of land
in Hengyang, the PRC, under the Hengnan
Project (the “Hengyang Land").

Hunan DreamEast was in default of an
outstanding principal of approximately
RMB263.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$312.6 million). Without
notice to Hunan DreamkEast, Bank of
Beijing filed a civil claim of approximately
RMB263.1 million against Hunan
DreamEast with Intermediate People’s
Court of Changsha, Hunan Province** on
17 November 2020. Hunan DreamEast is
in the process of negotiation with Bank of
Beijing on revising the repayment schedule
and nothing is concluded up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.

34. EEMB-E
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Disposal of COMB+ Technology Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (“COMB+
Group”)

On 3 November 2020, the Group disposed of the
entire equity interests in COMB+ Technology
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, Heroic
Promise Investments Limited (“COMB+ Group”)
through deregistration. Accordingly, a loss on
disposal of COMB+ Group of approximately
HK$99,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

HEM B AT
EZ=20205F12831ALLFE

i £ COMB+ Technology Holdings
Limited & & ff & 2 8 ((COMB+ %
)

R2020F1MA3H - X & B 3 B M
$# 7 B 8 & COMB+ Technology
Holdings Limited & = ff B 2 &
Heroic Promise Investments Limited
(TCOMB+&E )z 2 &g % - Bt -
B Z2020512A3 B F B HE
COMB+ & 8 7 &5 1 999,000/ T E
RIBHEER -

HK$’'000
FET
Bank balances and cash WITHEHBR LIRS 99
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 99
Reclassification adjustment from equity to RHEEBHEREF DA
profit or loss upon disposal: HAEEED:
Translation reserves BmEFE -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZEIE (99)
Consideration RE =
Net cash inflow on disposal of a HE—HMKBRRZERER
subsidiary: R
Cash consideration received BWEHEENRE —
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of & B HERITE B NIE S (99)
(99)
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued  35.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
— continued

Disposal of Dreameast (Wuxi) Cultural
Investment Co., Ltd.

On 19 March 2020, SkyOcean Cultural
Development Co., Ltd., a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Beijing Oceansky
International Holdings Ltd, an independent
third party incorporated in the PRC, entered
into a share transfer agreement, pursuant
to which SkyOcean Cultural Development
Co., Ltd agreed to sell, and Beijing Oceansky
International Holdings Ltd agreed to purchase
the entire issued share capital of Dreameast
(Wuxi) Cultural Investment Co., Ltd., a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of SkyOcean Cultural
Development Co., Ltd. at a total consideration
of RMB2,023,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,214,000). Dreameast (Wuxi) Cultural
Investment Co., Ltd is engaged in properties
development in the PRC.

HEMBAR— &
BHZE2020512831HLLFE - &

HEERG(BH)XELREERAT

MR2020F3H19H A aBEEE &
B AR K EX(LERABR AR R
RAFBBEERERAA(RPHFE
MRS BIE=H)T LR MHEE
W Bl RFEXEERBRAR
AELE MERRFEBRIERER
RAIREBEZRH(EH) LR E
ERAR(RAEXLERAERAAZ
ERENBRARZ2HEBHITR
Ko #mREAEARE20230005T (M
BN #2,214,00087C) - BER 5 (#85)
NIEBREBRARR PR E ¥R
Eo

HK$’000

FET

Inventory FE 96

Other currents assets EMrs&EE 60

Trade and other receivables g5 K E W R IE 22,551

Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 26

Trade and other payables H 5 K E e 5RIB (20,529)

Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 2,204
Reclassification adjustment from equity to RHEBHEREH DM

profit or loss upon disposal: FAREER:

Translation reserves HEFE -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-—EHBARZE R 10
Consideration O 2,214
Net cash inflow on disposal of a tE—HHBRARZRER

subsidiary: R
Cash consideration received BB ESKE 2,214
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of il : B HERTE B LIRS (26)

2,188
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

35.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 35.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Disposal of Sophie USA Holdings Limited
(“Sophie USA") and its subsidiaries (“Sophie
Group”)

On 31 May 2019, COMB+ Technology Holdings
Limited (“COMB+ Technology”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
TA Apartment Fund Il LLC (“TA Apartment”),
an independent third party incorporated in the
United States, entered into a share transfer
agreement (the “Share Transfer Agreement”),
pursuant to which COMB+ Technology agreed
to sell, and TA Apartment agreed to purchase
the entire issued share capital of Sophie USA,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of COMB+
Technology, who owns 100% and 90% of
equity interest of Sophie USA Holdings, INC.
(“Sophie INC.") and 17422 Derian Irvine LLC
(17422 Derian Irvine"”) respectively, at a total
consideration of US$27,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$209,250,000) (the
“Transaction”). 17422 Derian Irvine is engaged in
properties development in the United States.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

HEMBAR —&
BZ2019F 128310 E

i £ Sophie USA Holdings Limited
([Sophie USA) & H B A &
([Sophief£ & )

M201965A31H ARGz EE 2B
B/ AFICOMB+ Technology Holdings
Limited ([COMB+ Technologyl)
HEATA ApartmentFund Il LLC ( [TA
Apartment] - REB MK LA B
FE=7) TR EERE ([ROERE
sl ) - # itk COMB+ Technology
EEHE MTA ApartmentA EEE
Sophie USA (COMB+ Technologyy
BEEZEMBAR) 2B HETRA:
ZNal D RIl# A Sophie USA Holdings,
INC. ( [Sophie INC.]) 17422 Derian
Irvine LLC (17422 Derian Irvinel)
100% K90 %A # - 48L{& /527,000,000
ZE T (FHEM%209,250,000%7T) (R
58] ) 217422 Derian IrvinelA&E
HEERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued  35.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
— continued

Disposal of Sophie USA Holdings Limited
(“Sophie USA") and its subsidiaries (“Sophie
Group”) - continued

Upon the completion of the Transaction on 4 July
2019, Sophie USA, Sophie INC. and 17422 Derian
Irvine ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had received
consideration amounting to US$18,900,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$143,268,000)
in aggregate with the remaining consideration
amounting to approximately US$8,100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$65,982,000)
fully received in January and February 2020.

HEMBAR— &
BZ2019F12831BLEE — &

i £ Sophie USA Holdings Limited
(fSophie USA |) & H [ B 2 7
(lSophiefE @ |) — &
M2019F7R4B XS EHTKIE -
Sophie USA:Sophie INC.}%17422
Derian Irvine TBAAXRQRZHEA
AleR2019%F12A318B AEBES
HUEA(E18,900,000%k T (FE R
49143,268,0008 )  FpREL
8,100,000 7T (fHE 1 4765,982,000/%8
JT) FA20204F1 B K2 B AR SRR -

HK$'000
FET
Properties under development for sale TRAPGFEYHE 326,203
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 1,547
Trade and other payables and accruals B REMBEMFKERERNIE (22,524)
Amounts due to related parties FE T B B A £ ROIR (4,445)
Bank and other borrowings — due within Tk & &
one year — R —FRNEE (83,040)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 217,741
Non-controlling interest in Sophie USA 7 Sophie USA 7 3F 5= §I 14 # z= (849)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBBAR 2 EE (7642)
Consideration K E 209,250
Net cash inflow on disposal of a HE—HBHBARIZIRERA
subsidiary: R
Cash consideration received BWREKE 143,268
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of Jil: B HERTE B LIRS (1,547)
141,721
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
AND OBJECTIVES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
owners of the Group through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balances. The Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds and bonds, as disclosed in
notes 25 and 26 respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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EXEREEHRRKEE

I H A AN DA 4R A 66 B R T
IREEEET RN ERE
% A7 I U A BA
BB EAAL AREZE
BT -

B o

T

[

v
/

B

% O &

W W E

BowmRE
¥

i

AREBZEAEERFESANK &
BROOKEMER  TBRBEHFRE
(M sE25 R 26FT D R EE) - E 40
BREEBESCEBWUARARTEE
ANEEEDZ (BREOBTRALFEE) -

EXETHEHEAGERE - FRZEH
HPF—R EFZREARARESZ
BEARBERR REBEESFNHEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. &#®mIA
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL (A) &R IBEZ¥ER
INSTRUMENTS
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets tRMEE
Financial assets at amortised X # £2 5k K5+ E 8 2 G
cost BE
Trade receivables 2 5 WK IE 106 4,833
Other receivables E b fE W R T 4,666 83,366
Amounts due from related FE R B8 B R B 5RIB
companies 351,698 634,833
Restricted bank balance X PR ) 8R 1T 4 #4 13,005 =
Bank balances and cash WITEHRLARE 10,771 40,980
380,246 764,012
Financial liabilities o= =R
Financial liabilities at amortised % ## g% f 7K 2l B .22
cost THEE
Trade and bills payables B 5N FIER
BN R & 730,071 614,303
Other payables and accruals H e RIE K&
T8 1 ?JXIE 99,650 90,629
Amounts due to related FE T A Bt 2 R SRIE
companies 1,157,510 1,088,762
Due to a joint venture ERN—HEa&tERK 106,469 =
Bank and other borrowings RITREMESR 4,231,795 3,983,034
Convertible bonds and bonds A # j% & & & & 5 919,492 1,040,985
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,769 4,143
7,254,756 6,821,856
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

317.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments
include trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, amounts due
from/to related companies, bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade
payables, other payables and accruals,
lease liabilities, bank and other borrowings
and convertible bonds and bonds. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated
with the Group's financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. With the
majority of the Group’s businesses
transacted in RMB and HKS$, the
aforesaid currencies are determined
as the functional currencies of the
Company and some subsidiaries
respectively.
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SRMTH-&

(B)

BEEREEEREREER

AEENTESRTABSTEER
ZRMWRIE - E b B IR K
Be - B ENBB QTR
B RTEHER S  2EH
RITHER BHEMNKE - A
fENRBELRERERRE HE
BfE ROREMERERTHR
BEZEEZ HEERTA
ZHBERSZMEARE - BAX
SESRMTAEBZEREE
mEER(E®R R & ER
2)  EERBRERDHEAR -
B ZERER 2 BERENT X

18 A B

) EEEE
NERBRIESRTAR
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

(B)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

Market risk — continued

(i)

Currency risk — continued

The Company and its subsidiaries
have foreign currency in bank
deposits, amounts due from/
to related parties/subsidiaries,
prepayments and other receivables,
other payables and bonds, which
expose them to foreign currency

@@IE _IIE
MHABEERRRKE - H

RPN Sk

E¥mbE—&
ZNUNIDS N NI
BUATIHERRE : R|RITHE
R R A
T/ MEBLRBERE - E
SRR Je E A FE WK IR
HENRBARES
SRR SR

risk.

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FE T

UsS$ 141,715 115,764
RMB 53,464 55,735
HK$ (645,196) (622,859)
In addition, amounts due from b IR E B R W
certain subsidiaries that are BAERNEBEREINE
considered as part of the Group's BEREZ oYX
net investment in foreign operations MWETHEBZREKSA
and are denominated in HKS$, at THBARARELN A

the end of the reporting period,
amounted to approximately

HK$383,959,000
HK$383,959,000).

The Group manages the foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring
the movements of the foreign

currency rate.

383,959,000/ T (2019
£F : 383,959,000/ 1) °

4 E B ) B R
WEEZ BB R
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

317.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(B)

(i)

Currency risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to
RMB and HK$. The following table
details the Group’'s sensitivity to
a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and
decrease in certain functional
currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2019:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management
personnel and represents
management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a
5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign
currency rate. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss
or an increase in profit for the
year where functional currencies
strengthen 5% (2019: 5%) against
the relevant foreign currencies.
For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of
functional currencies against the
relevant foreign currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and loss for the
year.
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AR TEEER B - &

(B)

ER:Y Ak

(i)

BEMERE—-E

BRRE DT
AEBFEEHARE
BT RER - T & i
AEERETHREER
H M AN 25% (2019
F 5% AEREEZ
B R o 5% (20194 :
5%)ABmMEBERE AES
7 2B TR & S E R KR P B
BREELLER TRKRE
EEYHEXRLSEAEE
B E e mERESM
EREBEUIINETEZ K
BEE®IER I R®
4R B gk (B K 25%
(20194 : 5%) & B) 77 &
HEHREeHE - TXH
ZIEHEDEEE R A
B INE FHEB% (20194 -
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2R ek Rz o e
fi O B & ¥ 5 4B B SN I
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 37. €@MIBR-&
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) EiKEKMREEEERBEK-&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued
Market risk — continued MR- &
(i) Currency risk - continued (i) E¥EE-E&
Sensitivity analysis — continued BRRE DT — &
Decrease (increase) in loss/ Decrease in other
(Decrease) increase in profit comprehensive income
BRRDY M,/
A G ) %8 i Hinim & WE R D
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 2019% 20205 2019%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TET THER TET
Uss EV (6,241) (5,157) - —
RMB AR 2,232 2,326 - —
HK$ BT 26,936 26,004 16,030 16,030
22,927 23,173 16,030 16,030

In management’'s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

EEERR ARER
B &Y B 3 T BE fx BR F
NEE  MBREDN
TRAKEBIINER K
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

317.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(B)

(ii)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits
and bank borrowings carried at
prevailing market interest rates
based on or by reference to the
interest rates promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China. During the
year, the Group did not hedge its
fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk. Interest rate risk is managed
by the management on an ongoing
basis with the primary objective
of limiting the extent to which net
interest expense could be affected
by adverse movements in interest
rates.

The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the interest rate
of variable-rate bank deposits and
bank and other borrowings. The
sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for bank deposits
and bank and other borrowings at
the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel
and represents management’s
assessment of the effect from
possible change in interest rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(ii) Cash flow interest rate risk —
continued

If the interest rates had been
50 basis points (2019: 50 basis
points) higher or lower and all
other variables were held constant,
the Group’'s loss (2019: loss) for
the year would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,457,000
(2019: decrease/increase by
HK$11,903,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

At the end of each of the reporting period,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on each
individual trade and other receivables at
the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure
spread over a number of counter parties
and customers.

SRMITHEH-—&

HERREEERRBE -&

™5 B b — &
(ii) BE R EFEEE &

it ¥ & £ F+ 8 T F£501E
H BH(2019%F : 5018 H*
2h) > MATE HE A EH 4
BAEg XAEBFEARNE
1B (20195 : & 18) 5 18
o m i’ﬂ 457, 0007
7T (20194 : S5 /48 N
11,903,000/B7E)

=& B B & R E AT fh

REBRSHR AEBEHDH
A EERREYHFHTRE
BITEEMERAKEHRY
BER)RE A HHHERRER

BESECEREREEZR
HfE -
AREEEERR AEEZE

E%Eﬁmakﬁ'%%ﬁﬂ
BT ARE B B EL - 1t
SN REBEE R R E KRB K
FEHEEEEE N S S EE R
ZEo R EMERRELETRE
FEfE - R EEWE 2 RIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

317.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Based on the ECL assessment, the credit
exposures for all the financial assets
(including trade and other receivables
and deposits, amount due from related
companies and bank balances), are
considered as low risk because the
counterparties have a low risk of default
and does not have material past due
amounts, except for the credit-impaired
other receivable from a third party for
which loss allowance had been fully
provided during the year. During the
year, loss allowance of approximately
HK$17,905,000 (2019: Nil) was recognised
for the Group (Notes 19 and 20).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group's
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group
is required to pay. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. In
addition, the following table details the
Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments.
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 37. &WmMIE-&
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) BEEREEEERBEK &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued
Liquidity risk — continued mE R &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued T E R g 5T - AE
The table includes both interest and TERIINFNEREAGHEERE o
principal cash flows. To the extent that fisd A SR B IZ B A X - BRI
interest flows are floating rates, the REeEBEREHR2AEMBE
undiscounted amount is derived from the e
interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand Total amount at
average  or less than 3 months 1 year 2years  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months to 1year to 2 years to 5 years cash flow 2020
20205
REXRE AfEES 1283182
NEFHRE HORZER ZEAE-F -EERE MEZRE REER REfE
% HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
% T Tén TH i Tén Thr
Non-derivative financial ~ i 2BEE
liabilities
Trade and bill payables EHEMARER N/A
ENZE TER 730,071 - - - 730,071 730,071
Other payables and accruals £ EF 308 R N/A
BRAE TER 99,650 - - - 99,650 99,650
Amounts due to related ERBBLANE N/A
companies (Note 39(E)(i)l (B #39(E)i) FER 1157510 - - - 1157510 1,157510
Due 10 4 joint venture ER-HaELER N/A
(Note 39(E)ii) T (P E39(E) i) T#ER 106,469 - - - 106,469 106,469
Lease liabllties HERE 6.88% 3,334 3,019 3351 126 10490 9,769
Convertible bonds and bonds T 2k % R E%
— Liabilities components - 11.40% 126,030 496,013 26,734 614,871 1,263,648 919,492
Bank and other borrowings  RATREMEE  6.36%-1241% 3,731,909 146,720 483,184 - 4,361,813 4,231,795
5,954,973 645,812 513,269 615,597 7729,651 7,254,756
Financial quarantees HRERAY N/A
contracts T#ER 258,002 - - - 258,002 -
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SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 37. eWMIE-&
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) HEEMEEEERBKX-&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued
Liquidity risk — continued mE R - &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued TEE RS &
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average or less than 3 months 1 year 2years  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months to 1 year to 2 years to 5 years cash flow 2019
120198
REREE AERE 128382
nEFHHE  GORzEA ZEAE-F —EERE MEZRE nELE REE
% HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% T Thn T Thn Tin T
Non-derivative financial ~ #fT£SHEfE
liahilities
Trade and bill payables BREATER N/A
ENEE T@A 614,303 - - - 614,303 614,303
Other payables and accruals  EfERFER NJA
BR7E TER 90,629 = — - 90,629 90,629
Amounts due to related ERBEAATE NJA
companies (Note 39(E)Gi)l (B FE39(E)i) TR 1,088,762 - - - 1,088,762 1,088,762
Lease liabilties HERE 5.08% 1M 3221 - - 433 4143
Convertible bonds and bonds AT R E%
— Liabilties components ~ — BEH4 8.41%-11.63% = 1,113,384 = = 1,113,384 1,040,985
Bank and other borrowings ~ RITREMIEE  5.84%-14.90% 1,623,621 254,538 1,608,149 997467 448379 3983034
3,418,426 1,311,143 1,608,149 997487 7395,205 6,821,856
Financial quarantees HRERAN N/A
contracts TER 269,954 - - - 269,954 -
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF (C) TRIAZAREETE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value of the Group’s financial TEBUFREHREERAA
assets and financial liabilities that EEFEZEREERSREA
are not measured at fair value on a BzRAREE

recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost in
these consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 38. HttBEEREER
CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM MEETHFELEBEZ2EE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Details of the changes in the Group's liabilities AEEREGHFELEAE CEEHF
from financing activities are as follows: BT
2020 20204
Non-cash changes
FREED
Extension
Foreign of
1January  Financing  exchange Disposal Accrued New  Convertible 31 December
2020 cashflow differences of ROU interest Lease  Bonds I&ll 2020
2020 HE HE ERTHR 20205

BB RERE  HEEE KAREE  EHAR FEE  EERN 2ANE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Amounts due to related N EEINGE e

companies (Note 39E(i) (% 5E39E(i) 1,088,762 (2,773) 71,521 = = = - 1157510
Due to a joint venture Efi-HagtEd

(Note 39E(ii) 5 (M 39 fii) - 100,722 5,747 - - - - 106,469
Bank and other borrowings ~ BTREMEE 3,983,034 (49,129) 297890 = = = - 423179
Convertible bonds and bonds AT R B4 R % 1,040,985 (72,153) 32,574 109,347 - (191,261) 919,492
Lease liabilities HERR 4143 (3,307) 390 (655) 662 8,536 - 9,769
Interest payable EfifE 46,665  (418,001) - = 371,426 = = =
Total & 6,163,589 (444,731) 408,122 (655) 481,435 8,536 (191,261) 6,425,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

38. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 3. HWBEERELER —E
— continued
CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM METBFELEEEZETH &

FINANCING ACTIVITIES - continued

2019 20194
Non-cash changes
FReRH

Extension

Foreign Disposal of
1 January Financing exchange ofa Accrued New  Convertible 31 December
2019 cash flow  differences  subsidiary interest Lease Bonds | 2019
20195 BE HE-F ExRTAR 219%

1ME ReRg  HEZE WBRAY  EHAE #itg Exl 12438
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TiEn TER TR TER TERL

Amounts due to related ERBEARNRE

companies (Note 39E(ii) (I 339 i) 1,098,050 29,37 (34,217) (4,445) - - — 1088762
Bank and other borrowings ~ BITREMEE 3,968,634 191,558 94,118) (83,040) - - — 398303
Convertible bonds and bonds AT EARES 1121190  (179,178) (10,263) - 108,118 - 1108 1,040,985
Lease liabilities HEaR 10,167 (6,544 (50) - 570 = = 4143
Interest payable EfHE 46,665 (303,533) - - 303,533 - = 46,665
Total s 6,244,706 (268,323)  (138,638) (87485) 412,21 - 1108 6,163,589
Notes: M &E -

(a) The cash flows with amounts due to related (a) FHEMEBATRE BT RE
companies, bank and other borrowings, lease mEE HEBE AIRREFK
liabilities, convertible bonds and bonds and BEURERNMBEZRESRER
interest payable represented the net amount of EHReRERARENSE T
certain proceeds and repayments disclosed in BRERERFE -

the consolidated statement of cash flows.

(b) Other changes mainly represents amortisation (b) HMmeHTEEBETREMEE
of up-front fee of bank and other borrowings. TET R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Apart from the related party transactions
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
significant related party transactions during the
year.

(A)  During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group entered into property
management agreement with Tianrong
Property Service Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“Tianrong”), a company
held as to 64% by Mr. Zhou Zheng,
pursuant to which Tianrong would provide
property management service to the
Group from 1 August 2018 to 18 October
2021. The service expense for the year
was approximately HK$3,939,000 (2019:
HK$9,948,000).

(B)  During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group entered into an agreement with
DreamEast Pictures Co., Ltd. (“DreamEast
Pictures”), a company held as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng, pursuant to which
DreamkEast Pictures would provide the
Intellectual Properties Rights to the
Group from 1 August 2019 to 31 July
2021. The service expenses for the year
was approximately HK$4,242,000 (2019:
HK$4,200,000).

(C) During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Sanhe SkyOcean Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Sanhe
SkyOcean”), a company held as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng, pursuant to which
Sanhe SkyOcean would lease the theme
park to the Group with the lease term
from October 2017 to December 2019. On
13 December 2019, Sanhe SkyOcean and
DreamEast Sanhe renewed the Theme
Park Agreement from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The rental payment for
the year was approximately HK$2,141,000
(2019: HK$2,161,000).

39.

AT ZKE
RUSAGHBRRAMEI RS
ZHBALRS  AEERFRY
BT TREREBALRS -

(A)

(B)

(C)

MREZE2018%F12A318ILFEE
NEEETianrong Property
Service Co., Ltd. R EME AT
([Tianrongl) (—FIREKREE
BHE6A% D 2 AR FINMEE
%55 Bt Tianrong B 20184
8A1HZE2021F10A18B B RAIA
EBIREYEEBRY - FRRES
HEH%4A3,939,000% T (2019
4:9,948,000/87T) °

REZE2019F12A31BILEE
AEBEERFEZERDA
(BRAEF]) (—HBEAK
THEFBB0% 2 AR RIS ek
Bt - 2R ABEFHE2019F8A
1HZE2021F7A31BHERASE
EREANBEE - FTRREER
4 E4,242,0008 7T (20194 -
4,200,000/ 7C) °

REZE2017F12A3MBIEEE -
N 2 [ B = JA] K ¥ O B o EE B B
BRAR ([ZAXRFH ] - —HH
B &L EES0%ER 2 AF])
RN E e B =W RIF
BrALEHAEEEE B
H2017F10AE2019F 128 - 1
2019412 A31H » = WK ¥ 5 &
BEH (=) REBFRAREE
FERABWZE  HRAB2020F1
A1BE2022F12A831H - FRHA
ENMRAA2,141,000/8 7 (2019
££:2,161,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

39.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
— continued

(D)

(E)

During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group entered into consultancy
service agreement with Tianmao,
pursuant to which the Group would
provide consultancy service to Tianmao
from 21 February 2019 to 20 February
2020. The service fee for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was nil (2019:
HK$24,172,000).

The above transactions also constituted
connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in the
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES

(i) At 31 December 2020, amounts
due from related companies
of HK$351,698,000 (2019:
HK$634,833,000) were all non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year.
Mr. Zhou Zheng has controlling
interest in these related companies.
The maximum outstanding amount
due from related companies
was HK$634,833,000 (2019:
HK$890,586,000) during the current
year.

(ii) At 31 December 2020, amounts due
to related companies and due to a
joint venture of HK$1,157,510,000
(2019: HK$1,088,762,000) and
HK$106,469,000 (2019: Nil) were
all non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on
demand. Mr. Zhou Zheng has
controlling interest in these related
companies.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

39.

BEALTZRE &

(D)

(E)

REZE2019F12A31BIEFE
REBE KR AT A RIS e -
Eit NEBEBH2019F2H218E
2020F 2 A20 B AKX IZHE
MRS - MELE 202012 A31H
IHFE - REERAEZ (20194
24,172,000/ 7C) °

352 5 7B A _E 48 A 58 4
BT MBS R 5 S B
%50

ERREMEA T2 RIEBEER

(i) R2020F12A318 -
JE U BE B A R 2 K IA
351,698,000/ T (2019
£ :634,833,000/87T)
BIBEHME  EmER R
BEREAR—FRNEE-H
WaEEER L E@EE QR
I R NATEE
FEUR BB A A 2 RE B
THi & A634,833,000/8
7t (20194 : 890,586,000
BIT) °

(i) 20204128318 Ef
BB AR LEN—EEE
{3 2 50181,157,5610,000
B (2019 %F
1,088,762,000%& 7T) &
106,469,000 7T (2019
F:®)HBIHFEBESUE -
EER 2B REAKREX
BE -AREEHANLERS
/N g ek 3 e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
— continued

(F)

(G)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP

Key management personnel of the Group
representing the directors, who have
authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly.
Compensation to key management
personnel represents directors’
emoluments and is disclosed in note 11.

GUARANTEES PROVIDED BY RELATED
PARTIES

(1) At 31 December 2020, Mr. Zhou
Zheng and certain related parties
provided joint personal guarantee for
the borrowings granted by certain
banks and other financial institutions
to the Group with the carrying
amount of RMB3,561,648,000
(2019: RMB3,572,981,000), which
is equivalent to approximately
HK$4,231,795,000 (2019:
approximately HK$3,983,034,000),
details of which are set out in note
25.

(ii) At 31 December 2020, SkyOcean
Holdings Group Limited, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by
Mr. Zhou Zheng, provided corporate
guarantee for the borrowings
granted by certain banks and
other financial institutions to the
Group with the carrying amount
of RMB3,561,648,000 (2019:
RMB3,572,981,000), which
is equivalent to approximately
HK$4,231,795,000 (2019:
approximately HK$3,983,034,000),
details of which are set out in note
25.

39. BAMMATZHE-&

(F)

(G)

FEBMITEEEASHM

AEBTEERABEEREN
MEAEARE  HEREH K
SEEHIRNREEZES -
TEZEEABRMEESTZH
B IR ENRE -

BABATRMHZER

(i)

(ii)

MR2020%F12A318H AR
TENETHBALRE
TFHRTREMS B E
MASEERTE ZEEE
ABANRH3,561,648,000
T (2019F : AR ¥
3,5672,981,0007t) (48
B N44,231,795,000
B (2019 F 4
3,983,034,000/7T) ) 2
EERHELRMBEAER:
BRAFFIBE N 250

MN2020%12A318H " A
BEEE=zHEBES80%
mZ AR XKFEZR
SEERARSAE TIR
Tk EAM S HEERAR
EEREC2EEEAS
AR®3,5661,648,000
7T (2019F : AR
3,5672,981,0007t) (48
B N44,231,795,000
B (2019 F 4
3,983,034,000/7T) ) 2
EEREATER BEF
BEHRHIFE25

—
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SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

39.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
— continued

GUARANTEES PROVIDED BY RELATED
PARTIES - continued

(G)

(iii)

(iv)

At 31 December 2020, DreamEast
(Sanhe) Entertainment Limited, a
company beneficially owned as to
80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, provided
corporate guarantee for the
borrowings granted by certain banks
to the Group with the carrying
amount of RMB267,499,000
(2019: RMB304,681,000), which
is equivalent to approximately
HK$317,831,000 (2019:
approximately HK$339,647,000),
details of which are set out in note
25.

At 31 December 2019, Mr. Zhou
Zheng and the Company provided
joint personal guarantee for the
loan from an independent third
party to the Group with the carrying
amount of RMB230,953,000, which
is equivalent to approximately
HK$257,458,000, details of which
are set out in note 25.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

39.

BEALTZRE &

(G)

BABALTRHE 2R &

(iii)

(iv)

R2020F12A8318 ' AR
EEEDZHEBS0NER Z
NRBRF (Z0) 1REER
ARG E FHRITRAARE
Bt zEREEAARE
267,499,0007T (20194 :
AR#304,681,0007T) (48
ER#317,831,000/8 ¢
(20194F : #9339,647,000
BIL) ) ZIEEREQFE
R BEFFEENMIFE25 -

MN2019%F12A318 A
BEERARNE G —F
BYE=ZFRAAEER
HZ2EEBEAEARE
230,953,0007T (FHERL
257,458,000/ 7T) 2 B
REXRBEAER
BN FE25 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
— continued

(G) GUARANTEES PROVIDED BY RELATED
PARTIES - continued

(v)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019,
Mr. Zhou Zheng and a related party,
provided joint personal guarantee
and Beijing SkyOcean Holdings, a
company beneficially owned as to
80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, provided
corporate guarantee in favour of the
holders of the Convertible Bonds I,
the Bonds | and the Bonds Il (note
26). Furthermore, Convertible Bonds
I, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il are
also secured by share charge over
certain number of ordinary shares
of the Company held by SkyOcean
Investment Holdings Limited, the
immediate holding company of
the Company, details of which
are set out in paragraph headed
“Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds |
and the Bonds II” in note 26. In
addition, SkyOcean Investment
Holdings Limited, being the holder
of Convertible Bonds II, charged
over certain part of Convertible
bonds Il in favour of the holder of
Bonds Il (note 26).

39. BAMMATZHE-&

(G) BEBMALRHZER-&

(v)

M2020F % 2019412 A31
B Ak kL R —HE
TRATBRER &5k
EHFINZHB AR HLFRE
AER MARLEEEZR
HESO%EZ 2 ARIE R
KAFZBREEREARE
R (M3E26) ° pboh - AR
&R EHIREHII
P N/NEIN= S /NI N
FRELEBRERAAES
ZARREE T LR 2K
MERIEER BEFEE
BN FE26 [ o8I P
Bl EE - EHIRE
FI] —E& o pboN ATIRAR (B
HIFHAEARFEZEER
BRARBRABEFIIFEA
LIRE T o AT R ESH
(Mf5E26) °
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Name of subsidiary

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

40.

FENBARESR

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company

Principal activities
and place of operation

HRmAL/ BRTRARZ
WEARER RYBHRAH RE/ERRE AADFBEzEGRAES TEEBREEHY
2020 2019
2020 20194
SkyOcean International United ~ Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 82.35% 82.35%  Investment holding,
Limited 19 August 2010 Hong Kong
REEBHAERATA 55/ 10,000 1T 82.35% 82.35% REBRR AR
20104 8719A
Skyleaf Holdings limited* BVI/ US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding,
8 August 2013 Hong Kong
RERRERAA ERRRES/ 1% 100% 100% REZKR FE
201358 /8H
Beijing SkyOcean** PRC/ RMB249,000,000 100% 100%  Property development,
(Limited liability company) 6 March 2014 PRC
IRRAEEREGRAR B/ AR %249,000,0007C 100% 100% MEER $H
(EREEAR) 2014F376H
DreamEast (Sanhe)** PRC/ US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding,
(Wholly foreign-owned limited 29 January 2015 PRC
liability company)
ERACCHREERAT  HE/ 1,000,000% 7 100% 100% HREAR HE
(NEBEEREEAR)  201561A29A
DreamEast Jiaxing Cultural PRC/ US$58,820,000 100% 100%  Property development,
Investment Co., Ltd** 6 December 2016 PRC
(Wholly foreign-owned limited
liability company)
BRF(ZFR)UREERRA $B/ 58,820,000% 1T 100% 100% NEER $H
HEEEEREELR) 2016412 768
Hunan DreamEast** PRC/ RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Property development,
(Limited liability company) 7 March 2017 PRC
HNEERAXERARAR B/ A B #100,000,0007 100% 100% MEER $E
(EREEAF) 2017%3A7H

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. TEMBARIER &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Place and date Issued and fully
of incorporation/  paid share capital/  Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company and place of operation
gAY/ BETRARZ
WEARER RS RAH BA/ERRE RADFHEZEERAES FTEBROEHY
2020 2019
20205 2019F
Jiangsu DreamEast** PRC/ RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Property development,
(Limited liability company) 16 December 2015 PRC
SRACIH)XLREER B/ A& #100,000,0007 100% 100% WEEE TE
BERRA(EREART) 20155124168
DreamEast Future World** PRC/ RMB6,000,000 100% 100%  Tourism park operation,
(Limited liability company) 5 February 2015 PRC
ERHARER(ZW)RE @/ AR #%6,000,0007C 100% 100% MHRELEZE $E
BERRA(ERERART) 2015%2A58
SkyOcean Cultural PRC/ RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Property development,
Development Limited** 20 April 2017 PRC

("SkyOcean Cultural”)
(Limited liability company)

REXEEERDH e/ AE#500,000,0007 100% 100% MEERE $H
(IREXMEDN(ERETRR) 2017548208

3 Issued capital held directly by the Company * EETRABARREERFSA
33 English name for identification only *x EBEXLEEERSZ2E
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SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FEMIBATER &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
The above table listed the subsidiaries of the NERREINEETRAETEFELRSE
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, ERFEKEEEIENELEBEE
principally affected the operating results of FEITERLZARBINBE AR - &
the Group for the year or formed a substantial ERE REEMWBAGZFBEE
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BRITEK °
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
Note: B 5 -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities REZEBBENBRARCRITEMELE
at the end of the year. 7 o
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES HEEBIERFEZH M RER ([FEEH
WITH INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL NON- D) 2HEARMBEER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (“NCI")
The following table shows the information TRIWTEBESE RFEEH T #E
relating to the non-wholly owned subsidiary B2 EMBRAIZER - MBEE
that has material NCI. The summarised financial BB ERARBEHEA B8 -
information represents amounts before inter-
company eliminations.
SkyOcean
International
United Limited
RXEEBRES
BRAF
At 31 December 2020 742020512 H31H
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests SEVERI R A
HE 25 L ) 17.65%
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B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

WITH INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL NON-

40. FEMIBATER &

BEAEREARFEZEG MRS ([FEZH

MEm ) ZHBARTKEN -&

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (“"NCI”) - continued

HK$'000
F#& T
Current assets MEEE 216
Non-current assets EMENE B 1,056,584
Current liabilities mEEE (21,078)
Non-current liabilities ERMEBAE -
Net assets BEFHE 1,035,722
Carrying amount of NCI JEFE R MRS 2 RAIAE 182,805
HK$°000
FE T
Year ended 31 December 2020 H Z£2020F12A31B L& E

Revenue A -
Expenses Fl X (214,788)
Loss & 18 (214,788)
Other comprehensive income HEiiz Al s 67,032
Total comprehensive income AW SRR (147,756)
Loss attributable to NCI FEVE S = R B 1R (37,910)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI JE#E &l M 4E 25 FE(E 42 & 5 18
4858 (26,079)

Net cash flows from:
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

THRMIREREFE:
REFRY
KREED
A

(1)

Total cash inflows

Ren ABE

(1)
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SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FEMBRARER &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
WITH INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (“NCI”) - continued

BEAE B E A= ([FRZEH
s ) NBARNHER -&

308

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7

SkyOcean
International
United Limited
RAFBEKES

BRAR
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12A31H

Proportion of NCI's ownership interests FEFIMES I EREER
L 1 17.65%
HK$'000
FH&E T
Current assets mEEE 217
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,204,339
Current liabilities mEAE (21,079)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE —
Net assets BEEFE 1,183,477
Carrying amount of NC| FJEVEGIME R 2 BREE 208,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IS AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FEBARER &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES EEEBIE RIEEHEIERE R ([FEiEE

WITH INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (“NCI”) - continued

MEm ) ZHBARTKEN -&

HK$'000
FE T
Year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31MAILEE
Revenue WA —
Expenses X (3,362)
Loss E 18 (3,362)
Other comprehensive income H 4R 6 I &= (27.281)
Total comprehensive income AW LS (30,643)
Loss attributable to NCI FE IR RS B 1R (593)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI  JF #2 &I 14 # 25 FE (h 42 & 5 18
BEE (5,409)
Net cash flows from: TIFFMEReREFRE:
Operating activities 5 E B 1
Investing activities " EEE —
Financing activities B & E B =
Total cash inflows RemABRE 1
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B OB IS AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued
COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

40. FEMIBATER &

REEZ AR

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Number of
Principal activity operation wholly-owned subsidiaries
FTEER SE AR SL RS R AR b B TEMBEAREA
2020 2019
20205 20194
Investment holding Hong Kong 4 4
REER o
Investment holding BVI 5 6
REER EEERES
Investment holding PRC 1 1
REER e
Property development and PRC
management 9 1
MEERNER H
Provision of corporate services Hong Kong 1 1
RERBRY NG
Tourism park operation PRC 1 1
e B L E H
Movie and television culture PRC 3 3
R b e
Inactive BVI — 3
EEER EEBERES
Inactive PRC 3 4
TEER H
27 34
Place of incorporation/ Number of

Other activity

establishment and
operation

non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries

Hi %% SEM AR SL,RR ML R AR b B FEEMBRARHE

2020 2019

2020F 20194

Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
"EZER i

Movie and television culture PRC 1 1
A8 XAt H

2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB W R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION N, AP BRRARRES
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,623 4,010
Investments in subsidiaries RWEBRARIZEKE 450,002 726,768
Amounts due from subsidiaries R I NGIE @] 1,151,253 1,622,757
1,603,878 2,353,635
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and ~ H b EWFHE - &
prepayments P — 4,993
Amounts due from related JiE U B Bk R R SRR
companies 4,039 —
Bank balances and cash RITEHMR S 509 3,819
4,548 8,812
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals Hfth BT 5018 R TR 1R 1B 8,961 145
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 1 B B & T F QL] 124 29,000
Amounts due to related FE 1 B B A B SRIB
companies — 8,650
Lease liability HEBE 3,407 4,143
Convertible bonds and bonds ARk ESENRES 567,032 1,040,985
579,524 1,082,923
Net current liabilities B R EFE (574,976) (1,074,111)
Total assets less current HEERABARG
liabilities 1,028,902 1,279,424
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds and bonds MR ELRERES 352,460 =
NET ASSETS EEFHE 676,442 1,279,424
Equity Ex
Share capital & 2= 28,550 28,550
Reserves i 1 647,892 1,250,874
TOTAL EQUITY B 676,442 1,279,424
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B IRKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 8318 L F &

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION f. FPERBRRRRFEE &
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY -

continued

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVES FARRERE
Convertible
Share bonds  Exchange
Share Other options equity translation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TRRES
RBEE  HbHE BERERE EERt  EXRE  REEN EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEL TEn TEnL ThL TAn
At 1 January 2019 #2019171A 183,172 (490,381) 496 398,363 (243039) 1376536 1,225,137
Profit and total comprehensive M EF R &AM
income for the year EE - - - - - 42,377 42,371
Extension of the Convertible R AR R B %]
Bonds | (Note 26) (K 26) - - - 515 - - 515
Equity-settled share-based 1R iE% EE LR
payments (Note 29) BEEFR
(K 29) - - 8818 - - - 8918
Exchange difference on BEEEVERER
translation — — — — (25,973) — (25,973)
At 31 December 2019and  H2019512A31B &
1 January 2020 20201718 183,172 (490,381) 9,314 398,868 (269,012) 1418913 1,250,874
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREAEE
loss for the year 2% - - - - - (638.264)  (638,264)
Extension of the Convertile L&A R REHI
Bonds II (Note 26) (P¥3k26) - - - (217906) - 217,906 -
Equity-settled share-hased ~ REZEENRR
payments (Note 29) BRI
(B 29) - - 21 - - - 1M
Share option forfeited BRI B
(Note 29) (B £29) - - (3,678) - - 3,678 -
Exchange difference on BEEE/EREE
translation - - - - 32,505 - 32,505
At 31 December 2020 R2020512831R 183,172 (490,381) 8,413 180,962 (236,507) 1,002,233 647892
42. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 42. HESHMBE®RE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 31 May 2021.

DreamEast Group Limited Z2E T E B[R A7
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